; Ceun e
m parish in the | books at £8, and in the patronage of Lord Suffield.
ﬂ‘%ﬁ' (#v byw’)‘*ﬂn The church, dedicated to St. Andrew, was rebuilt, with

a portico of the by Sir William Harbord,

mg‘ﬁ a rectory, in the urchdeamry
d&oweofuncom rmdinthei'ingsbooki at £16. 2, 6.,
and in the of the Dean and Chapter of Lin-
coln. The church is dedicated to St. Helen. '!’hereis
a chalybeate spring in the parish.
in the wapentake of Bnur;u.on,
of KesTeven, county of LincoLw, 2§ miles (8.W.

8.) from Colsterworth, containing 149 inhabitants.
'l'he living is a rectory, united in 1773 to that of Stamby,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
kin%s books at £4. 4. 2. The church is dedicated to
St. Nicholas,

GUNBY, a parish in the Wold division of the wa-
pentake of C.mm.nsuon, parts of Linpsgy, county of
Lincowun, 5% miles (E.) from Spilshy, containing 69 in-
habitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £8. 10. 2%., and in the patronage of the Duke
of Rutland. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

GUNNERSBURY, a hamlet in the parish of Acren,
Kensington division of the hundred of Ossvisroxe,
county of Mippresex, 5% miles (W.) from London.
The population is returned with the parish. Her Royal
Highness the late Princess Amelia, youngest daughter of

I11., resided in an elegant mansion at this place.
. GUNNERTON, a joint chapelry with Chipchase,
in the parish of CHOLLERTON, north-eastern division of
" Tinpave ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 8% miles
(N. by W.) from Hexham, containing 409 inhabitants.
Here was anciently a chapel, but not the slightest vestige
of it is now visible. There are traces of a Roman en-
nt, and a large barrow called Money-hill, where
coins have frequently been found.
- GUNTHORPE, a parish in the hundred of Hovr,
county of NorroLk, 5§ miles (W.S.W.) frm Holt, con-
ning 317 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rec-
ry, with that of Bale annexed, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
#£13. The Rev. Charles Collyer was patron in 1798.
- The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
GUNTHORPE, a township in the parish of Lown-
uAM, southern division of the take of THURGAR-
. wox, county of Norrinemam, 7% miles (E.N.E.) from
‘ .ﬂdtﬂnghun containing 870 inhabitants. There is a
% of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The river
it is here crossed by a ferry.
‘ GWTHORPE anciently a hamlet in the parish of
-mm! soke of Oaxmam, county of Rurrano, 2}
ﬂu !l.byl.) from Oakham, containing 7 inhabitants.
! avillage, but it has been reduced to
W, ‘inhabited by a poor shepherd and his

' Arm a township i the parieh of Pt
entake of Starncross, West ri of the
) 7»} miles (W.) from , eon-

!puuﬁin the no;fﬂ:;m d!visio:*d the
(GHAM eonty ORFOLK, 4} miles
h Walsham, ‘ ‘inhabitants

%

GUNTON, a parish in the hundred of Murrorp
and Lo‘rmmunn county of Surrorxk, 1§ mile (N. by
w.) from Lowestoft, containing 67 inhabitants. The
living is a diachuged rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £5. 6. 8., endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bounty. R. Dundas, Esq. and
others were patrons in 1801. The church is dedicated to
St.Peter. The parish lies on the coast of the North sea.

GUNVILLE-TARRANT, county of Doun-See
TARRANT (GUNVILLE).

GUNWALLOE, a parish in the hundred of Kzn-
RIER, county of Comwuu., 5 miles (8.) from Helston,
containing 252 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, united, with those of Cury and Germoe, to the
rectory of Breage, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and
diocese of Exeter. The church is dedicated to St.
Wynwallow. Here is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists. A small school is supported by annual
donations.

GUSSAGE (ALL SAINTS), a parich in the hundred
of Knowrron, Shaston (East) division of the county
of DorseT, 5 miles (W.8.W.) from Cranborne, contain-
ing 348 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage,
in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol,
rated in the king's books at £6. 3. 9., and in the patron-
age of the Archdeacon of Dorset.

GUSSAGE (ST. ANDREW’S), a chapelry in the
parish of Hanpbrey, in that part of the hundred of
Six-pENNY-HANDLEY which is in the Shaston (East)
division of the county of DorseT, 6§ miles (W. by N.)
from Cranborne, The population is returned with the
parish.

GUSSAGE (ST. MICHAEL), a parish in the hun-
dred of Bapsury, though locally in the hundred of
Knowlton, Shaston (East) division of the county of
Dorser, 6 miles (W. by 8.) from Cranborne,

246 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol, rated in the
king’s books at £20. 0. 2}., and in the “of
J. and R. Randell, Esqrs. The church is a handsome
edifice, with a My embattled tower. On the line of the
London road, near Cashmore Inn, is the easternmost of
seven earth-works, & to have been thrown up
by the Belgw® across the road between this and Tarrent- :
Hinton, which afford reason for the opinion that the
neighbourhood was the scene of some remarhbleacﬂn
in the time of the ancient Britons.

GUSTON, a parish in the hundred of ansaom,
lathe of St. AucusTinNg, county of Kent, 2 miles (N.
by E.) from Dovor, containing 206 inhabitants. The
Bvinglsnperpetnn.lcumcy in the peculiar jurisdiction

of the Archbishop of , en-
dmdwith £200 private benefaction, and mmyd
bounty. The church is dedicated to St. Martin.

GUTON, a hamlet in the parish of !mn
hundred of Eynsrorp, “of Nowrrork, 3 miles

(8. E. by E.) from Reepham. , name is written Gu-
thchhmt;ii.n Bomeldly- and at the period of the
fhw P wrcan f ¥t

tirely destitute of note.
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GUY'SCLIFF, ahnnlctmthem Woor- was a chapel dedicated to the Holy Trinity,. ]
TON, Kennworthdsvhionof the hundred ¢ m.gv been totally demolished, the tower ‘having been
county of WARWICK, 14 mile (N.N.ll.) &pm atmck. down in 1778, In 1827 a Mcb%
on the south side of the Avon. It is so called from its was There are places of worship
connexion with the legend of Guy of Warwick, of whom and Wesleyan Methodists.

it is said that he retired to an ancient Jm‘mnage which
existed here long before the Conqmt and to whose
memory, in the reign of Henry VI, a chapel was found-
ed, and dedicated to St. Mary ene, by his de-
scendant, Richard Beauchamp, Earl of Warwick, who
placed therein two chaplains; aubseqnently the cele-
brated antiquary, John Rous, resided in it as a chantry
priest. The founder caused also a gigantic statue of
the famous Earl Guy to be carved out of the solid
rock, which still exists, though in a mutilated state.
This spot, to which is now attached an elegant modern
residence, possesses great picturesque beauty.

GUYSON, a township in the parish of SHILBOTTLE,
eastern division of COQUETDALE ward, county of NorTH-
UMBERLAND, 8% miles (S. by E.) from Alnwick, con-
tum 1178 inhabitants. A priory was founded here

ime in the twelfth century, by Richard Tyson, and

m'de annexed to the abbey of Alnwick, by Eustace

Fitz-John ; its revenue, in the Lincoln taxation of tem-
ties, was valued at £3. 15. 4. per annuin.

GUYTING (LOWER), or GUYTING-POWER, a
parish in the lower division of the hundred of Kirrs-
GATE, county of GLovucesTER, 6 miles (S.E. by E.) from
‘Winchcombe, containing, with the chapelry of Framcote,
629 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage,

the archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester, rated

the king's books at £14. 19. 5. Francis Lawson,

(. was patron in 1797. The church, dedicated to

t. Michael, is in the Norman style of architecture. In

omesdny-book five salt pits are recorded to have ex-
isted here at the period of the Conquest, but there are
tm traces of them at present. -

" GUYTING (TEMPLE), a parish in the lower divigion
nf the hundred of KirrsaTe, county of GLOUCESTER,
ﬂmﬂes (E. by 8.) from Winchcombe, containing 510

itants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
chdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester, endowed with
£400 private benefaction, £600 royal bounty, and
£600 parliamentary grant, and in the of the
Dean udgdiCanons of Christ Church, Oxford. The
chul":h cated to St. Mary, is a small but handsome

, with an embattled tower at the west end ; it was
b’ly built by the Knights Templars, who possessed

or in the thirteenth century.

b AP, a pm'is&h mixi:h:he ht_tx;dre)d f:\: Kerrier,
cog.nty Qonwvux.l., 3: (E S m Redruth,
cOntumingQQ inlnbtmtl Thell g is a discharged
Ex carage, in ;he a&? Corn 3 and diocese of

eter, rated in t £1 IB A1
in the kge‘ Dean and g‘.xd.er

the

an addnﬁqn of two hnnared
Society

The church, dedicated to St Wenap, hqphglyuuiwd

§ '-’\" o "h

GWERNESNEY, a parish in the uppenﬁw
the hundred of Us:, county of MoNmMoOUTH, 24 milm
(E.N. E.) from Usk, containing 69 inhabitants. The
living is a dncharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
an(;l%hocese of Llandaff, rated in the king's books at
£2, 18. 64., endowed with £200 entary grant,
and in the patronage of the Earl of Abergavenny. The
church is dedicated to St. Michael.

GWINEAR, a parish in the hundred of Pnnwm.
county of CorNwALL, 74 miles (S. W. by W.) from
Redruth, containing 2383 inhabitants. The living is
a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and
diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £1%2,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Exeter. The
church is dedicated to St. Winnear. There are several
copper mines in the parish, of which the principal are
Herland, Weal Alfred, and Weal Hope ; the first pro-
duces also native silver.

GWITHIAN, a parish in the hundred of sz.uwmn,
county of CorNwALL, 74 miles (W.) from Redruth, con-
taining 412 inhabitants. The living is a rectory united
to the rectory of Phillack, in the archdeaconry of Corn-
wall, and diocese of Exeter, The church, dedicated to
St. Gothian, has been long since demolished, and the
ruins, with a considerable portion of the parish, are over-
whelmed with sand, blown hither from the sea-shore by
violent gales of wind. The sea-rush, the roots of which
prevent the further dispersion of the sand, has been plant-
ed in sufficient quantity to protect the village from a
similar fate. The river Gwithian runs h the pa-
rish, in which it is crossed by a bridge, and. into&t .
Ives' bay. Several mines have been wrought at shallow
levels, the lodes being very large, but rm from
want of capital. A singular kind of me, Con-
sidered by geologlsts a great curiosity, is obtained hcre
and used in building chimnies instead of brick.
remarkable spring formerly rose ~ the
called, from its perpetual bubbling, the Boiling-
which had never been frozen, but an adit w
near it has caused its disappearance. TE \
moats remaining of extensive earth-works,
varnon Rounds, within which cannon halls hm
discovered. AR

GYHIRN, a chapelry in the parish uﬁ
Wisseacs, hundred of Wisseach,

5

of CamBRIDGE, 5% miles (N. N. W
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the parish of Wirarey which is in the higher division
of the hundred of BLacknurN, county palatine of Lan-

CASTER, 2 miles (S.W.) from Burnley, containing 4612
imhabitants,  The cotton manufacture is extensively
carried on here, '

" 'HABROUGH, a parish in the eastern division of
the wapentake of YamporoueH, parts of LiNpsky,
county of LincorLn, 10 ‘miles (W.N.W.) from Great
Grimsby, containing 286 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged vicarage, united in 1740 fo that of Killing-
holme, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in' the king’s books at £8, endowed with £400 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of — Pelham, Esq. The
church is dedicated to St. Margaret. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

. HABTON (GREAT), a' township in the parish of
Kirgny-MisperToN, Prckering lythe, North riding
of the county of York, 5% miles (N.W. by N.) from
New Malton, containing 136 inhabitants.

HABTON (LITTLE), a township in the parish of
Kirkny-MisrerToN, Prekerine lythe, North riding
of the county of 'York, 5 miles (N.W. by N.) from New
Malton, containing 50 inhabitants,

' HACCOMBE, an extra-parochial liberty, forming,
with the parishes of Combintinhead and Stokeintinhead,
and Shalden Green, a distinct portion of the hundred
of Wonrorn, county of Devon, 8 miles (E.S.E.) from
Newton-Abbot's, containing 27 inhabitants. The living
i8'a rectory, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Bishop
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £25, and in the

ronage of Sir H. Carew, Bart. The church, dedi-
cated to St. Blaize, is partly in the decorated style, and
containg some very curious monuments: it was for-
merly collegiate, having been endowed with the great
s iweombe and Quithcock, in Cornwall, for
of ‘an arch-priest and five inferior ones.
JONBY, a parish in the wapentake of Ave-
wtsiof Kesteven, county of Linconn, 3%
N. by’ B.) from Bourne, containing, with the

et of Stainfield, 321 inhabitants. The living is a
chs ‘vicarage, united in 1782 to the vicarage of

Morton, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £5. 17. 6. The church,
dedicated to ‘St. Andrew, has portions in the early,
‘with insertions in the decorated and later styles of

it}

 © HACEBY, a parish in the wapentake of AvELAND,

! of Krstevex, eounty of LincoLn, 8% miles (E.)
Grantham, containing 65 inhabitants. The i
, in the archdeaconry and diocese of ;ji!xlxg
the king's books at £5.2.11. W.§.
{, a parish in the hundred of Logzs,
K, 2 miles (N. by E.) from Wickham-
- 534 inhabitants. The living is a
with, that of Parham, in the arch-

285

5. The village is romanti

THAC

. HACKERSALL, o joint township with Preesall, in
that ag:nof the parish of LAﬁcmg'twhich\is in_the
hundred 8(:{ A)lxounnn;mna, county palatine of Lan-
CASTER, 83 miles (W. by N,) from Garstang, containing
700 inhabitants, O D), T o ‘

~ HACKFORD, a parish in the hundred of Eyxs-
FORD, county of Norrork, 14 mile (W. by 8.) from
Reepham, containing 643 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged rectory with the vicarage of Whitwell united,
in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the King's books at £14. 10. 5. George Hunt
Holley, Esq. was patron in 1812. The church is dedi-
cated to Al Saints,

HACKFORD, a parish in the hundred of Forenog,
county of NorroLx, 4 miles (W. by N.) from Wymond-
ham, containing 222 inhabitants, The living is a dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and dio-
cese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £4. 15. 10.
George Hunt Holley, Esq. was patron®in 1801. The
church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HACKFORTH, a township in the parish of Horx-
BY, partly within the liberty of St. PeTER of YorK, but
chiefly in the eastern division of the wapentake of Hane,
North riding of the county of York, 3§ miles (8.) from
Catterick, containing 134 inhabitants,

HACKINGTON, otherwise ST. STEPHEN'S, a pa-
rish in the hundred of WestGcaTE, lathe of St. Avgus-
TINE, county of KenT, 1§ mile (N.) from Canterbury,
containing 349 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury, rated in
the king's books at £5. 2. 3., and in the patronage of
the Archdeacon of Canterbury. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Stephen. In the church-yard, in 1187,
Baldwin, Archbishop of Canterbury, began a chapel
in honour of St. Stephen and St. Thomas of Canter-
bury, wherein he proposed to found a noble college for -
forty secular priests, the king and all his s
bishops to have a prebend, each worth forty marks a
year; but the year afgerhe had settled some secular canons
at the place, the pope, at the instance of the monks at
Christ Church, ordered the chapel to be levelled with the
ground. 'The bishop erected a chapel in honour of St.
Thomas & Becket at the foot of St. Thomas' hill.,

HACKLESTON, a hamlet in the parish of Pioping-
ToN, hundred of WysersLEy, county of NorTaame-
TON, 5% miles (8. E.) from Northampton. containing
402 inhabitants. The Particular Baptists have a place
of worship here, :

HACKLESTONE, a tything in the parish of Frr-
TLETON, hundred of Evstus and EvVERLEY, county of
WiLts, 84 miles (W. by 8.) from Ludgershall. Tt
population is returned with the parish. The General and
Particular Baptists have each a place of worsh%h"ere, .

'HACKNESS, a parish in the liberty of

StraND, North riding of the county of York, compri-
ging the chapelry of Harwood-Dale with Silpho, and
the townships of Broxa, Hackness, and Suffield wif
Everley, and containing 632 inhabit
ber, 143 are in the township of Hackn
by N.) from Scarborough, The
curacy, in the archdeaconry of the
mvoffﬂ,\'ﬁq&ng’ 1 £1C X
in the age of Sir J. V. B,
church, ‘fé‘é"“““ cated to St. Peter, i
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from whnc\\ nevenl others run in various
across the conntry: the bﬂhwhwhuquﬁe

from one hungired to one hundred and twenty
perpendiculzr height, and their declivlﬁu are pto-
fusely adorned with lofty trees of the richest foli
Sprmga of water, rushing in natural mudu from.ﬁ

\?’of the hills, or falling with gentle murmurs, con-

te to the beauty of the scenery; and the Derwent,
w}nch has its source in the mountainous country to the
north, glides in a gentle stream past the village : the
whole scene is of a most sublime character. Here was
formerly "a cell belonging to Whitby abbey, which, at
the dissolution, contained four monks of the Benedictine
order. .
HACKNEY, a parish in the Tower division of the
hundred of OssursToNg, county of MippLESEX, 2 miles
(N. E.) from London, comprising three districts, viz.,
Hackney St. John, South Hackney, and West Hackney,
and containing 22,494 inhabitants. It is almost united to
the metropolis by successive ranges of building, of which
some are of handsome and respeectable appearance, and
was among the earliest of the adjacent villages inhabited
by the more opulent merchants of London ; and from its
having been the first of those retreats pmv:ded with re-
g&lm‘ conveyances to that city, it is supposed to have
en name to the numerous coaches which ply in the
ts of the metropolis, and in the principal towns of

the kingdom. Among the various mansions of distin-
ished persons who anciently resided here, are Brook
house, at Clapton, the residence of Lord Brook (now con-
d into an asylum for lunatics), and the palace of the
prior of the Knights of St.John of Jerusalem, in Well-
t, at present let out in tenements to poor families.

the south of Lea bridge are mills, formerly belonging

ta the Knights Templars, and subsequently to the
ghts Hospitallers of St. John of Jerusalem, having
been since employed for preparing sheet-lead ; they are
now unoccupied. The parish is lighted with gas, and
ﬁtly supplied with water : the houses are irregularly
many of them in detached situations are hand-

some, and in various parts’of the parish there are ranges

of modern houses of neat and respectable appearance.
On the site of an ancient building in the old church-yard,
formerly used as a school-house, a spacious edifice has
been erected, and gradually enlarged, containing sundry
ents for the meetings of members of
different local trusts, and for other purposes of parochial
business. The environs are in many parts pleasant, and

mill of very gmt m&qnityh mmudh

the inhabitants of Clapton with water : Amm
of bricks and tiles is made in the hourhood, and
several of the fields in which the clay has been exhausted
have been since advantageously cultivated or built upon.
The Regent's canal passes through thewutunpcrtof
the parish, and the Lea river navigation through the
eastern. The parish is within the jurisdiction of a court
of requests held at Whitechapel, for the recovery of
debts under 40s., and has been recently included wuhin
the limits of the new police act.

Until recently Hackney constituted one parish,
under the dcmgnatlon of St. John's, connsﬁng of a
vicarage and a sinecure rectory, rated in the king's
books at £20, and for all civil purposes it still con-
tinues so; but by an order of the ng in council, dat-
ed March 1825, it has been divided into three districts,
each of which now comstitutes & distinct
called respectively Hackney, South Hackney, and West
Hackney, and with the consents required by the acts
passed iu the 58th of George I1L., and 8rd of George IV.,
and by means of the liberal sacnﬁces of income made
both by the patron, as lessee of thes rectorial tithes,
and by the incumbent, the rectorial and vicarial
tithes of the whole parish have been consohdated,
and apportioned, with every other source of eccleuiasti-
cal emolument, among the incumbents of the three
newly constituted rectories, each rector having an exclu-
sive right to such tithes and dues as shall arise with-
in the limits of his benefice: they are in the juris-
diction of the Commissary of London, concurrently
with the Consistorial Court of the Bishop. The
age is in W, G. D. Tyssen, Esq., as Lord of the
Manor, which is co-extensive with the houndaries of
the whole parish. The church of St. John the Bap-
tist, which now constitutes the church of the central
dutnct or Hackney (proper), was erected under an
act of parlin.ment obtained in 1791, &t a short distance
northward of a more ancient oneé, the tower of
which is still standing, the new
considered of sufficient strength to
It is handsomely built of brick, with
dome. of stone subsequently added to
secrated in 1797, and contains uﬁmy
of three thousand personn
piece of mechanism,
b b
ing of s s
cel, n:azd one dat the f¢
pain glass.
moved from the old

of Henry VIL, and
o died in 1521, '
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. commissioners in
1823, at an expense of £15,302. 14.: it is a hand-
some edifice in the Grecian style of architecture, with
a cupola and a portico of the Doric order, designed
by Mr.Smirke. The site of the church, and an ample

allotment of ground for a cemetery, together with an ad-
piece of land for the site of a parsonage-house,

and the purpose of a garden and slip of glebe,
were given by the patron: the house was built by sub-
scription, at an expense of about £2000. The church
of South Hackney (formerly a chapel of ease), situ-
ated in Well-street, was built in 1810, on a site given
by John Dekewer, Esq.; the erection and subsequent
alterations cost nearly £8000, which was defrayed by
subscription : a considerable part of the church is ap-
propriated as free sittings. In addition to the three
rectories a sub-district has been apportioned from the
central district, or Hackney (proper), to the chapel at
Upper Clapton, called Stamford Hill chapel, and formerly
proprietary, but purchased by subscription among the in-
habitants, and subsequently enlarged, in aid of which the
rector of the parish, and the Incorporated Society for the
ent of churches, each contributed £200, for ex-

tending the number of free sittings. An endowment of
£ 150 per annum has been assigned to the minister, in ad-
dition to which a transfer has been made by the rector
of all dues for whatever occasional services should be
f within the chapel. There is also a small
ancient chapel at Kingsland, situated partly in West
Hackney parish, and partly in the parish of Isling-
ton : it was formerly attached to a lazar-house belong-
ing to St. Bartholomew's hospital, and in the patron-
age of the Governors of that institution : the endowment
is very insignificant, and the only other source of
emolument to the minister is the pew-rents, which, from

the small size of chapel, are very inconsiderable.
At Homerton, within the district attached to Stam-
ford Hill chapel, is Ram's chapel, a private proprie-

resent in disuse. There are places of
Saptists at Homerton and in Mare street;
fénts, at Homerton, Clapton, Kingsland,
St. Thomas' square; for Wesleyan

; and for Unitarians, in
ministers of the Inde-

. .
o Mies, uwe Audley, #1616, left by will £20
_ per annum, for the maintenance of a schoolmaster in
he parish, which now forms a portion of the salary
master of the parochial charity school. The
harity schools were established in 1714, for
élothi: ' ‘and twenty girls,

| 987
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tions in the centre of the building for a master and z
mistress, and in thewmgn,twmyhrge and conve-
nient school-rooms, the guardians of the charity were
enabled greatly to extend the benefit of this institution,
which now affords instruction to as many children of
the twdpnt poor properly recommended, as the school-
rooms will admit, one hmndred of each sex being clothed
also. The charity is supported by annual subscriptions,
occasional benefactions, and two half yearly collections
in the parish church. The schools are under the super-
intendence of their respective committees of visitors,
and the general concerns of the institution are regulated
and controlled by a committee of managers annually
elected by the subscribers. The other schools in con-
nexion with the church in the central parish, are, a
school of industry in Dalston-lane, built by subscription
on a piece of waste ground granted by the lord of the
manor for that purpose,in which forty girls are instructed
and clothed, principally by the produce of their own in-
dustry. An infant sehool has also been established in
Homerton within the last three years, which is sup-
ported by voluntary subscriptions ; it contains about
one hundred children. In the district of Stamford Hill
chapel, a school for boys and another for girls have been
recently erected by subscription, containing at present
ninety-five of the former, and seventy of the latter.
There is also a school for younger children, under the
superintendence of a mistress, originally established by
the present rector, for the numerous population at the
tile-kilns and brick-fields adjoining, but it has been re-
cently connected with the above schools as preparatory
to them, The members of the Cumberland Benevolent
Institution, have also a small establishment in Church-
street, for the maintenance, clothing, and iastruction of
seven boys and two girls, who are admitted from the
age of nine to twelve, and continue till they are four-
teen. The only school in connexion with the church of
South Hackney is one belonging to the Rev. H. H.
Norris, which was erected by him in the year 1810, on
land in Grove-street, belonging to himself, and continues
to be his own property: the building contains suitable
accommodations for a master and a mistress, and separate
school-rooms for about sixty boys and thirty girls. In
West Hackney a boys' school has been recently erected
by subscription, in which there are at present ninety
children. There is also a considerable girls’ school, the
children being allowed the temporary use of a school-
house in the central district, until they are enabled by
the liberality of the inhabitants of West Hackney to
erect one in their own. The boys' school at Homerton,
in connexion with Ram's chapel, was established by
subscription in 1801, and has realized from \
cies and benefactions a fund of £2000; and a school
in the same connexion, in which twenty-
five are educated and clothed, is supported partly by
the dividends on £950 three per cent. consols,, arising
from various benefactions, and by subscription, In
addition to the church schools in the three

nexion with, and supported by, the several denomi-
nations of dissenters, in their resp !
The dilmthg:‘eho:léin Well-street is support
by an income of £46 per annum,
tions and lous; Unpat
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in 1666 by Dr. William Spu )am
who endowed them for ‘six :
in 1819, at an expense of uasc. 11«4., ‘which sum had
accumulated from the sa of l endow-
ment, augmented by subsequent benefactions : the in-
mates are appointed at a vem'ymthtg, and receive
a quarterly sum of money, and an annual allowance
of coal. Six almshouses were built in Wells-street,
for six aged men, by Henry Monger, Esq., who endowed
them with an annuity of £12, to which subsequent
benefactions have been added. Tbe ‘almshouses at
Clapton were founded by Thomas Wood, Bishop of
Lichfield and Coventry, who endowed them for ten
aged widows, with a rent-charge of £50, and £5 per
annum to a chaplain to read prayers. There are also
various charitable bequests for distribution among the
poor, which, in consequence of the partitioning of the
parish, have beéen divided into three distinct portions,
by the direction of the commissioners. The Retreat,
for eight widows of TIndependent and four widows
of Baptist ministers, near Paradise fields, is a hand-
some range of buildings, comprising six dwelling-houses,
and, a chapel in the centre, in the ancient style of
_English architecture, erected at the sole expense of
Semuel Robinson, Esq.,, who allows each of the in-
' ‘Mates £10 per annum, and on his decease £3 per ann.
will be added to each allowance. Near St. Thomas’ square
are twelve almshouses, erected in 1828 by the Bakers'
- Company, for decayed members and their wives, adjoin-
ing which are eight additional tenements, recently erected
' by — Thorne, Esq., and appropriated to the same use.
. The London Orphan Asylum at Clapton, founded in
‘1813, a spacious’and handsome brick building, orna
i mented with columns and cornices of stone, was erected
! by subscription, at an expense of nearly £30,000, and
‘comprises, in addition to a commodious chapel “detached
Jfrom the main building (for the exclusive benefit of
the children and officers connected with the establish-
hent and in which ghe service of the clmrch is regu-
larly perfétmed by the master of the school, who must
a' clergyman of the established church), a centre in
vhieh are all the domestic offices, under the superintend-
‘ence of amatron; and two wings, in one of which are the
'schivol-room and dormitories for the boys, under the in-
spection of the master, and in the other similar
ments for the girls, under the care of the mistress: there
m of three hundred children in this institution,
dédfrommpectableparents whoaremaj,n
tained, clothed, and educated in virtuous and religious
principles, and on their leaving the asylum, if not scttled
-by the bouﬂnfmnnagement in some t situation,
‘conduct by annual rewards iﬁb-

ateeneer B wocadi
meetings a!mﬂnch thayhlm attended with certificates
‘of'character. The The Metropolitan Female Asylum:

street was established in.1829 it s int
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church of England : he is not allowed to take
the number ahm‘es ‘are one hundred and 1
£15 per t 1n ; gz,

church- is thew

of £1300. 'l‘he‘

to 'the number of annual

e

sixty inmates ; wwai WMWW
benefits of'ﬁnmhm ‘as the patr
the public shall enable the - to carn 2
fectmoWwdeMe»!‘heH Church of
and school is in" union with - !ﬁm .
's College, London, for the puﬁou"nf pro-
vxdmg a course of educatidn for youth, comprising
religious instruction in conformity with the Wm
of the established church, classical learning, the
languages, mathematics, and such other branchés of
knowledge as may be advantageously introduced. ‘IM
head and second master are ‘always to be clergymen
of the established church, and graduates of one of the
Universities of Oxford and Cambridge, or of Trinity
College, Dublin. The second master may take bolrdm
with the consent of the committee of management,
pupils belonging to the school. The institution is formed
by a proprietary of shareholders limited to one hundred
and fifty shares of £15 each; with a discretional power in
the committee to call for an additional £5. Each pro-
prietor has the right to nominate one pupil for each share
he may hold, and shall pay for each pupil, if under twelve
years of age, £10. 10. per annum, and if twelve years
of age, or upwards, £12. 12. per aunum, the same to be
in full of every charge for tuition, books, and gtationery :
no child is to be admitted under seven years of
The building, situated in the Back-lane, Clapton, il
wholly of brick-work, in the Grecian style of architec-
ture, with a portico of four fluted Doric columns, which,
together with the entablatures and principal front, are
finished in Roman cement, to imitate stone : it euntains
on the basement story a school-room and hat-rooms for
the students, committee and class-room, head master's
room, Jamtors room, and apartments for th*me on
the upper story. The site, about an acre in extent, in-
cluding a play-ground and fives-court at the rear of ‘the
bmldmg, is enclosed on three sides by a boundary wall,
and in front by an ornamental iron railing and two pair
of gates, through which the principal ‘entrance is ap-
proached by a carriage sweep of ample dimensions : the
school-room‘is warmed by a hot-water apparatus, upon |
a new and improved principle :  the expense of the
whole was nbont #£1750. There is another inetitu-
‘tion, designated the name of the Hackney Gram-
mar school, foun andsuporteﬂbyn ;
of shareholders, which admits pupils of ev
denomination. The head master is & ¢




- of time
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'six years : the first two are occnpied
pursuits ; the remainder in classical,

, and philosophical studies. The present
\Nﬂdhg of brick, which is plain and neat, and very
commodious, was completed in 1823, on the site of a
former one. at an expense of nearly £10,000, defrayed
by subscription : it contains a good library of classical
and theological works, and of others in the general
branches of literature. Among the distinguished indi-
viduals interred at Hackney may be mentioned Henry,
Lord Percy, Earl of Northumberland, who died at his
house in this parish, June 29th, 1537, being the same
earl, who, according to the assertion of Henry VIIL,
was contracted to Anna Boleyn, and under which pre-
text the sentence of divorce was pronounced between
that monarch and her ; Edward Vere, Earl of Oxford,
a statesman, poet, and dramatist, who flourished in the
reign of Elizabeth, and died in 1604 ;. Dr. John Worth-
ington, an eminent divine ; and Sir Francis D' Oliveyra,
a Portuguese emigrant, who wrote against the inquisi-
tion, and died in 1783. Sir Ralph Sadleir, a distin-
guished statesmnan in the reigns of Henry VIII., Ed-
ward VI., and Elizabeth, was born here ; and Howard,
the great philanthropist, is supposed to have been born
at Clapton, in this parish.

HACKTHORN, a parish in the eastern division of
the wapentake of Asuacog, parts of Linpsey, county
of LincoLn, 8 miles (N. by E.) from Lincoln, contain-
ing 256 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage,
in the archdeaconry of Stow, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at’ £4, endowed with £400
royal bounty. R. Cracroft, Esq. was patron in 1827.
The church is dedicated to St. Michael.

ADDENHAM, a parish in the hundred of AyLES-
BURY, ity of BuokinguaMm, 3 miles (N. E. by E.)
from Thame, containing 1204 inhabitants. The living is
a vicarage with the perpetual curacy of Cuddington an-
nexed, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £15.17. 1., and
in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Rochester.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. There is a place
of worship for Baptists. In 1204, the monks of the
convent of St. Andrew, at Rochester, obtained a charter
for a weekly market to be held here on Thursday, which
was discontinued in 1301: a fair was also granted for
three days, at the festival of the Assumption of the
Virgin Mary. There are two mineral springs in the

ish,
p.“HADDENHAM a parish in the so division
of the hundred of Wrrcurorp, Isle of Evry, county of
Gauumen, Bj miles (8. W. by W.) from Ely, contain-

: i ‘The living is a perpetual curacy
sdiction of the Bishop of Ely, and
rchdeacon of Ely. The church,
pity, is principally in the
".Wesleynn Methodists h’e

in the pnmh of
pmlyl—l:cm;u, lower

of Boommr-Gum, parts
(NCOLN, 7**“‘““ _(‘ﬂ W-WS )
bitants.
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HADDISCOE, a parish in the hundred of Craver-
ING, county of Norrork, 4% miles (N.N.E) from
Beccles containing 816 inhabitants. The lmng is a
dlscha.rged rectory united to that of Monks-Toft, in the
archdenconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king’s books at £12. The church, dedicated to
St. Mary, has a Norman archway and ‘a round tower.
Here was a preceptory of Knights Templars, to which
Henry III. was a considerable benefactor.

HADDLESEY (CHAPEL), a chapelry in-the parish
of Birkix, lower division of the wapentake of Barx-
sTONE-AsH; West riding of the county of Yorx, 44
miles (8. 8. w.) from Selby, containing 199 inhabitants,
The chapel is dedicated to St. John the Baptist.

HADDLESEY (WEST), a township in the parish
of Birkrn, lower division of the wapentake of Bark-
sToNE-AsH, West riding of the county of Yorxk, 5 miles

(8. W.) from Selby, containing 293 inhabitants.

HADDON, a parish in the hundred of Normax-
Cross, county of HunTiNGDON, 3 miles (N, W. by N.)
from Stilton, containing 112 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon; and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £11. 5. The
Earl of Aboyne was patron in 1819. The church is
dedicated to St. Mary.

HADDON (EAST), a parish in the hundre(l of
NosporrLe-Grove, county of NoORTHAMPTON, 71 miles
(N. W) from Northampton, containing 617 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Northampton,and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the
king's books at £5. W. Sawbridge, Esq. was patron
in 1814, The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is an an-
cient structure, having portions in the decorated style of
architecture. There is a small provision for the educa-
tion of children.

HADDON (OVER), a township in the parish of
Bagrwerr, hundred of Hicn Prak, county of Danny,
2 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Bakewell, containing 266 in-
habitants." At this place is Haddon Hall, one of the an-
cient baronial mansions, &ehghtfully situated on a
gentle eminence overlooking the river Wye : the vener-
able castellated towers rising above the woods produce
a magnificent effect, and as the whole building is still in
nearly a perfect state, it is an object of general interest
and curiosity.

HADDON (WEST), a parish in the hundred of
GuiLssoroUGH, county of NoRTHAMPTON, 74 miles
(N. N. E.) from Daventry, containing 893 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated
in the king's books at £13. 6. 8. 5. Spence, Esq. was
patron in 1826. The church is dedicated to All Saints.
Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists have each a place of
worslup Ostor hill, a high tumulus, snpposed to be
that Ostonus, the proprztor in Britain, is situated
in th

{ FIELD, a township in the parish of Grossor,
of Hieu Peak, county of Dermy, 11 miles
by W.) from Chapel en le Frith, containing 659 inha-
nts. There is a neat Wesleyan Methodist chapel,

“with a school attached, in which upwards of four hundred

chxldmg are. educated. About thirty years since this
distri almost entirely an wﬂmﬂ one, and but
thinly nhabited ; but now there are many flourishing

cottanns geofthd‘ma hl?mk),which



HAD

afford employment to nearly the whole of the popula-
tion : there are also several good stone quarries. The
river Mersey bounds the township on the north. Cattle
fairs are held on the 9th of May and the 15th of Oc-
tober, -

HADHAM (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
EpwinsTrEE, county of HErTFORD, 3 miles (W. N. W.)
from Bishop's Stortford, containing 787 inhabitants.
The living, with that of Much-Hadham, forms a rec-
tory, within the jurisdiction of the Commissary of Essex
and Herts, concurrently with the consistorial court of
the Bishop of London.

HADHAM (MUCH), a parish in the hundred of
EpwinsTrREE, county of HERTFORD, 43 miles (W. 8. W)
from Bishop's Stortford, containing 1208 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory with Little Hadham, within the pe-
culiar jurisdiction of the Commissary of Essex and Herts,
concurrently with the Consistorial Court of the Bishop
of London, rated in the king's books at £66. 13. 4., and
in the patronage of the Bishop of London. The church
is dedicated to St. Andrew. The Independents have a
place of worship here. There is 2 small endowment for
the education of ‘six boys aund six girls. Here are the
remains of a palace belonging to the Bishops of London,
now a private residence. Dr. John Owen, an eminent
non-conformist divine, was born at this place in 1616.

HADLEIGH, a parish in the hundred of Rocarorp,
county of Essex, 24 miles (W. by N.) from Leigh, con-
taining 329 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese of
*ondon, rated in the king's books at £11. 14. 7., and
in the patronage of the Rector and Fellows of Lincoln
College, Oxford. The church, dedicated to St. James, is
an ancient structure ; the eastern end is semicircular,
and in the Norman style. In the reign of Henry IL, a
castle was built here by Hubert de Burgh, Earl of Kent :
the remains, which are picturesquely situated on the
brow of a steep hill, consist chiefly of two dilapidated
circular towers.

"HADLEIGH, a market town and parish in the hun-
dred of Cosrorp, county of SurroLk, 104 miles(W.by 8.)
from Ipswich, and 64 (N. E.) from London, containing
2929 inhabitants, This town was probably founded
during the Heptarchy, and it was called by the Anglo-
Saxons, Headlege, whence it derived its modern name.
Some of the kings of East Anglia were interred here ;
as also was Guthrum, or Gormo, a Danish chief, who
submitted to Alfred the Great, and renounced ism
after the great defeat of the Danes at the battle of Kthan-
dune : a tomb is still shown in the church as the monu-

ment of Guthrum, who died in 889; but it is ob-

viously of much later date than the ninth century. The
town is situated in a valley, the air of which is re-
markably salubrious : the streets are neither lighted nor
paved : thé inhabitants are plentifully supplied with
water from springs. The woollen manufacture formerly
flourished here, but there is now only a small silk-ma-
‘nufactory, lately established. There is a large market,
m y for corn, on Monday ; another, formerly held
" on Saturday, has beendhoonnzmud fairs are held on
Whit-Tuesday and the 10th of October, for- toys, &c

The Corn Exchange, erected by subscription in 1

290

818, is pu
by & mayor, alderssen, and sommon
‘surrende

dering its charter upon & quo

HAD

warranto to James II, these privile were_lost,
have never been restored ; it ml:l?)w within the mﬁgs:
tion of the county magistrates, who hold petty sessi
here. Courts baron are held for the manor, at which the
steward presides. The living is a rectory, rm '
king's books at £45. 2. 1., and within the exempt deanery
of Bocking, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of
the Archbishop of Canterbury. The church; dedicated to
St. Mary, is a handsome spacious structure, surmounted
by a lofty spire of wood covered with lead : it ischiefly of
the later English character, and has two south porches :
the aisles and clerestory are co-extensive with the nave
and the chancel. In the chancel is a beautiful altar-
piece, erected in 1744, by Dr. Wilkins, the incumbent,
constructed of wainscot with neat cane-work, and ex-
hibiting paintings of Moses and Aaron. The font is
of great antiquity, and bears an ancient inscription in
Greek characters, which being translated is,  Wash and
be clean.” In front of the parsonage-house is a vener-
able gateway with two hexagonal towers, built of brick
in the year 1490, by Dr. Pykenham, Dean of Suffolk,
and rector of this parish. There are places of worship
for Baptists, Independents, and Wesleyan Methodists.
A house in Hadleigh and some land were given by John
Alabaster, in 1667, the produce to be applied for the
instruction of four children in reading and writing ; and,
in 1701, Mrs. Aune Beaumont bequeathed an estate for
the same purpose; from which benefactions united a
salary of about £34 per annum is paid to a master
for the instruction of twenty-four boys. A National
school for an unlimited number of scholars of both
sexes is supported by voluntary contributions. Twelve
almshouses for decayed tradespeople, with a chqpel
attached, were founded by Dr, Pykenham, in the
of Henry VIL, and are under the management ofr,e:ﬂ
rector and the churchwardens: they are now, appro-
priated to the accommodation of twenty-four aged per:
sons of both sexes, and are endowed by the fquﬁ;‘-
with valuable estates in Whatfield, Hadleigh, Aldham,
Newton, Elmset, and Semer, and  a farm at Foxearth in
Essex, the bequest of Mrs, Mary Clark. Four
almshouses were founded in the reign of Edward VI., by
John Raven, of Hadleigh, and endowed by him with the
profits of two farms in Roydon and Holton, for the
support of eight poor aged inhabitants of the pari
There are several other bequests for the benefit of tl
poor. Dr. William Alabaster, a learned divine, of
seventeenth century, was a native of Hadleigh,
HADLEIGH (HAMLET), a chapelry
of the parish of Boxrorp which is in the
Cosrorp, county of SurroLk, cantaining

HADLEY, a joint tything with Blagrave, in
parish and bundred of LAMBOURN, county of B

i
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i8'a square tower of fiinit, on"the top ‘of which is an iron and £300 parliamentary grant, and in the. :
mm ngst eminent’ ons buried ‘here were of the Rev. Richard Mere(i‘;:: The church, dedicated

Sir 'William Stamford, a learned judge and writer on
the ‘law; ‘Dr. John Monro, a physician, author of a
treatise on insanity ; and Mrs. Chapone, who wrote
“Letters on the Improvement of the Mind.” This place
was formerly a hamlet in the parish of Edmenton.
' "HADLOW, a parish in the lowey of ToNBRIDGE,
lathe of Avresrorp, county of Kent, 3% miles (N. E.)
from Tonbridge, containing 1757 inhabitants. The living
i¢ ‘a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ro-
Chester, rated in the king's books at £18, and in the
atronage of the Rev. P. Monypenny. The church is a
ow structure dedicated to St. Mary. There are places
of worship for Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists. This
is an extensive parish, in which there are several hop
plantations and good pasture lands. It is crossed by
the river Sheet, which joins the navigable river Med-
way a little above Brandt bridge. At Hurlake Bolt is a
flowing bolt by which, in dry seasons, the meadows can
be irrigated, this plan being found highly advantageous.
There is a fair on Whit-Monday.

HADNALL-EASE, a chapelry in that part of the

sh of MippLeE which is within the liberty of the

ough of SarREwsBURY, county of Savor, 53 miles
(N. N.E.) from Shrewsbury, containing 363 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, with the rectory of
‘Grinshill, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of
Lichfield and Coventry, endowed with £400 private
benefaction, and £1000.royal bounty. The chapel is
dédicated to St. Mary Magdalene,

"HADSOR, a parish in the upper division of the
‘hundred of Havrsnrre, county of WORCESTER, 14 mile
‘g.'n.) from Droitwich, containing 135 inhabitants.

“The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's books at
#£6.7.84. —Amphlett, Esq. was patron in 1808. The
church is dedicated to St. John the Baptist. ~ The Bir-
‘mingham and Worcester canal runs through the parish.

" 'HADSPEN, a tything in the émriuh of Prrcoms,

‘hundréd of Bruron, county of Somerser, 13 mile

“(B.) from Castle-Cary, containing 246 inhabitants.

" '"HADSTOCK, a parish in the hundred of Fresu-

“werLL, county of Essex, 14 mile (8.) from Linton, con-
‘taining 392 inhabitants. e living is a rectory, in the
jurlsdfction of the Commissary of Essex and Herts,

“eoncurrently with the Consistorial Court of the Bishop
'of London, rated in the king's books at £19, and in the

5 mage of the Bishop of Ely. The church, dedicated
‘g'ﬁ.‘ﬁo‘toiph, is an ancient structure having a curious

1 door-way. A school of industry is attended

fifty children, and principally supported by

E.) from Morpeth, containing 88 inhabitants,
"HAGBORNE, a ‘in the hundred of MorETON,
of Berxs, comprisi g the liberties of East Hag-
Vest Hagborne, and containing 708 inhabit-

to St. Andrew, is a handsome structure in the early
style of English architecture, with a square tower ; the
north aisle was built by John York, who died in 1413,
In the village is a stone cross, surmounted by a sun-
dial. There is a small sum for the education of chil-
dren. A fair is held on the Thursday preceding the
11th of October. On the 24th of May, 1644, the par-
liamentary army, under the command of the Earl of
Essex, quartered at this place, on their route from
Reading to Abingdon.

HAGBORNE (WEST), a liberty in the parish of
Haepor~E, hundred of MoreTON, county of BErks, 64
miles (W. by 8.) from Wallingford, containing 184 in-
habitants. Here was anciently a chapel.

HAGGERSTON, a parish in the Tower division of
the hundred of OssuLsToNE, county of MipDLESEX, 14
mile (N.E. by N.) from London. The population is re-
turned with the parish of St. Leonard, Shoreditch. This
place, formerly an inconsiderable hamlet in the parish
of St. Leonard, Shoreditch, has, within the last few
years, become an extensive and populous district,
Many new streets have been formed, consisting of neat
ranges of houses of a moderate size : the parish is par-
tially paved, lighted with gas, and amply supplied with
water, Among the larger of the various works which
have been erected on the banks of the Regent's canal,
which passes through the parish, are those of the Im-
perial and Independent Gas-light and Coke Companies,
the former of which was established in 1822, for lighting
the eastern district of the metropolis, and the latter
incorporated in 1829. The facility afforded by the canal
has contributed greatly to increase the trade of the
place : there are several chemical works on an exten-
sive scale, manufactories for japanned leather, floor-
cloth, and hearth-rugs; a manufactory for bone ashes,
several lime-works, tile-kilns, dye-houses, and coal-
wharfs, affording employment to a considerable portion
of the inhabitants. The parish is within the jurisdic-
tion of a court of requests held at Whitechapel, for the
recovery of debts under 40s.

Haggerston was constituted a distinet parish in
1830. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of London, and in the patronage of the Arch-
deacon of London., The church, dedicated to St. Mary,
and erected in 1827, at an expense of £15,000, by a
grant from the parliamentary commissioners, is a spa-
cious structure, blending the early and decorated styles
of English architecture, with a lofty square embattled
tower of singular design, destitute of relief in the lower
part, and profusely ornamented in the upper with
crocketed pinnacles, with which a smaller tower rising
from the centre is connected by flying buttresses ; at the
western extremities of the -aisles are turrets,
with domed roofs surrounded by crocketed pinnacles
rising from the angles : the interior, which is neatly ar-
ranged, contains one thousand nine hundred and sixty
sittings, of which one thousand are free. = There are
places of worship for Independents and Wesleyan Me-
thodists.  Sunday schools in connexion with &? esta-
blished church and the dissenting congregations are

by subscription, and an infant school is about

to beestablished. Six almshouses, for six poor mem-

bers of the Company of were founded in
P
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1705, in Goldsmith-place, in this parish, by Richard
Morrell, who endowed them umgg’ﬂlglrper-
petual maintenance. !’onmen almshouses, 1
in the centre, were erected in Kinglhid-mﬂi.in 1713,
by Sir Robert Geffery, Knt., for poor members of the
Company of Ironmongers, On the south side of the
Ironmongers’ almshouses are twelve others founded by
Mr. S, Harwar, citizen and draper of London, of which six
are for poor freemen of - the aners’ Company, and six
forpoorpmnna of the parish. To the north of the
Ironm " almshouses are twelve for poor freemen
of the Company of Frame-work knitters and their
widows, founded by Thomas Bourne, Esq., who gave
£1000 for their erection, and £ 2000 for thexr endow-
ment, to which additions have been made by subsequent
benefactions.
Htx(:lHMON (or EAUGHMOND) ABBEY, an extra-
+ parochial liberty, in the Wellington division of the hun-
dred of Brinrorp (South), county of Saror, 43 miles
(N.E.) from Shrewsbury. In 1110, William Fitz-Alan,
of Clun, founded an abbey here for canons regular of
the ohler of St. Augustine, and dedicated it to St. John
the Apostle and Evangelist, the revenue of which, at
the ‘dissolution, amounted to £204. 12. 9. Tt forms
part of the demesne of Sundorn: the remains consist
of the chapter-house, which is entire, the south door-
way of the nave of the church, and a range of build-
ing supposed to have been the abbot’s lodging and hall,
partly in the Norman, but chiefly in the early, style of
English architecture. The Rev. William Clarke, Chan-
cellor in the Cathedral Church of Chichester, idai s
tiquary of no mean repute, was born at this place in 1696.
. HAGLEY, a parish in the lower division of the hun-
red of Harrsuire, county of WorcesTER, 2 miles
.) from Stourbridge, containing 595 inhabitants. The
livmg is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Worcester, rated in the king's books at £10. 6. 5.,
and in the patronage of Lord Lyttelton. The church,
dedicated to St. John the Baptist, has been lately en-
by the addition of one hundred and ninety-four
si , one hundred and thirty-four of which are free,
the '!ncorpnrated Society for the building and enlarge-
ment of churches and chapels having granted £100
towards defraying the expense : it is beautifully situated
in'the park of the Lyttelton estate. In 1754, the chancel
was It of freestone by the first Lord Liyttelton, and
decorated with an east window of rich painted glass.
Among the monuments to different members of the
Lyttelton family, it contains a particularly chaste one
to ﬁhe‘memmyef Lucy, wife of George, the first Lord
¢ his lordship, an elegant historian, poet, a
miiﬁe!l?mna ‘writer, was born at this place. H
han ‘an @ark,ﬂm eligh '.'mddeneemdpropertyof

T
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& parish in. the.
whot' Q!,-‘ E, parts
Lincorx, 5 “&m =) TPORA SR ST
91 i living is _ By
the archdeaconry mddimofmmm ¥

king's bookl at £8,n1~}m the patronage of
Coltman, Esq. The church is dedicated to St /
A navigable cut, called the Catch water, passes

the southern extremity of the parish. . .. .. .

HAGNABY, a hamlet in the pmsh of HaNNAY,
Wold division of the hundred of CAncEworTH, parts
of Linnsky, county of Lincoun, 34 miles (N.E. by N.)
from Alford, containing 106 inhabitants. A Premon- .
stratensian monastery, dedicated to St, Thomas of Can-
terbury, was founded here in 1175, by Herbert de Op-
peby, the revenue of which, at the dxnolntion, nmonnte&
to £98. 7. 4.

HAGWORTHINGHAM, a parish in the hlmdted o{
Hivr, parts of LinpsEy, county of LiNcoLN, 4% miles
(N.W. by W.) from Spilsby, containing 533 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £14. 10, 5., and
in the patronage of the Bishop of Ely. The church is
dedicated to the Holy Trinity. :

HAIGH, a township in that part of the pmnh ol
WiGaN which is in the hundred of West DErBY, coun-
ty palatine of LaNcasTer, 2§ miles (N. by E.) from
Wigan, containing 1300 inhabitants, A free school is
supported by the rental of a house and ten acres of
land, the bequest of Miles Turner, in 1634, producing
about # 50 per annum ; and by the interest of £100, the
gift of Dame Dorothy Bradshaigh, in 1792. The
“ Receptacle,” an almshouse for ten poor men and ten
poor women of this township and those of Wigan,
Blackrod, and Aspull, was erected by the same lady, and
endowed with a sum now invested in the three per cant,
consols., and producing £ 136. 13, 2. per annum: to.
each&enementusmall ofgroundulttached‘%z
considerable quntxt.y of cannel coal is obhmed ilt thh
district. R

HAIGHTON, a township in the pcmh of 3
hundred of Auovnmum, county palatine of Lan-
CASTER, 3% miles (N.N.E.) from Preston, oommmu
inhabitants.

HAILES, achapelryinthewwhoimm'
lower division of the hundred of Kirrsears, county of
GLOUCESTER, 2 miles (N.E. by E.) from. Whm

bitants. mhvipgi:f perpetu:




and June 8rd. Hailsham is -within the

6th
J Imeuter The magistrates hold a meeting
fortnight, on Wednesday. The living is a

‘the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese
ofChichﬂer,ntedinthe 's books at £16. 6. 8.,
and in the pa of E. W. Michell, Esq. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary, is principally in the later
style of English architecture. There is a place of
worship for Baptists. A National school for boys and
girls, recently erected on a common adjoining the town,
is supported by subscription. In the reign of Henry II.,
a monastery of Premonstratensian canons was founded
here, which was afterwards removed to Bayham.

- HAIL-WESTON, a parish in the hundred of Tose-
LAND, eounty of HunTiNGDON, 2% miles (N.W.) from
St. Neot's, containing 297 mhabltants The living is a
perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of Southoe,
in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, and diocese of
Lincoln, = The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas. The
Particular Baptists have a place of worship here.

- HAIN , a parish in the hundred of TAveERBAM,
county of Norrork, 2% miles (W.) from Coltishall,
containing 484 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in
the ¢ .and diocese of Norwich, rated in

th“mbﬂoh’\ﬁ £6. 2 1. Robert Marsham, Esq.
was pa in 1317 The church is dedicated to All
Saints.

H.MNTON .puichxn the eastern division of the
wapentake of Wraceox, parts of Linpsey, county of
Lincory, 6} miles (N.E.) from Wragby, containing
298 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage,
in t.he ction and patronage of the Dean
‘ ‘Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
E‘F W30, ’nleelmrehisdedicatedto St. Mary.

" HAISTHORP, & township in the parish of AcNEs-
Bura of Dickerine, East riding of the

K, 4 miles (8. W. by W.) from Bridlington,
%ﬂl inhubitants,

aparish in that part of the liba'tyofSou'rx-
wrt, and Scroony which separates the morthern from
 the
ox, county of NorTiNGHAM, 1

division of the ntake of THURGAR-
mile (w by N.) from

310 mhbmntl The livmg i

Mcy,hthe iar ndlctzonmd
gt o mfﬁw’"“

nteChnml;

hitldellenBushell,)oinﬂymthﬁmum fm‘
! mltructionoi’tenchildren also a trifling
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St John was also’ um&edﬁo &u M'”‘" branch
the Grand Western cﬁm dfm %

"HALDEN (HIG a paﬁ.h in the hundred of
Buux(n;?n: lad)xe f:-:,f Sc';n, county of Kenr, 3§

y N m Tenterden, con 724
inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in Mhm
conry and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the km%x
books at £19. 4. 7., and in the patronage of the Arch-
bishop of Canterbm'y The church, dedicated to St.
Mary, is a large edifice, remarkable for &
steeple built in the reign of Henry VI. There is an
endowed school, under the direction of ten trustees,
posseemng an estate of the value of £26 per annum,
founded in 1725, by Mr. James Tylden about twenty
children are educated in it. The rivers Tarn and  the
River” (so called for the sake of distinction, having no
proper name,) run through the parish in their course
to the Medway. The clay being of an excellent, guality
for common earthenware, there are many manufac-
tories for articles of that kind. A mineral, called by
the inhabitants “ Crownstone,” consxstmg of the oxyde
of irom, clay, and manganese, is found here in great
quantities ; also hones of a particular quality, resembling
those of Turkey, and strata of marble of about three
quarters of an inch thick.

HALDENBY, a joint township with FEastoft, in
the parish of Am.mennn', lower division of the
wapentake of Oscorpncross, West riding of the county
of Yorx, 91 miles (8. E. by 8.) from Howden, containing |
69 mhubltants

HALE, a township in the parish of Bownon, hun-
dred of BuckLow, county palatine of CrnrsTer, 3§ miles
(8.E.) from Altrincham, containing 958 inhabitants.

HALE, aparish in ALLERDALE ward above Darwent,
county of CuunEnLAND, 24 miles (8.E.) from Egremont,
containing, with the hamlet of Wilton, 249 inhabitants,
The living i a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Richmond, and diocese of Chester, endowed with £ 800
royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Earl of
Lonsdale. The church, which has a small tower and
spire, stands at a short distance from the village, Free-
stone and limestone abound in the parish.

HALE, a township in the parish and hundred of
Wno'm.ua, lathe of AvLesvorDp, county of Kent, 34
miles (8.8.W.) from Wrotham, with which the popu- .
lation is returned.

HALE, a chapelry in the parish of Cnn.mu,u.,
hundred of Wrst Derpy, county palatine of Lancas-
TER, 74 miles (8.) from Prescot, containing 630 inhabi-
tants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with £600
private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £300 par-

., liamentary grant. J. Blackburn, E“i mpﬂl‘mh-

‘1818. The chapel is dedicated to $

was erected in lm,byWilhamPalt,md

the Ellenlidsaltlhtoh vd, ,'“"”,,. m’
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"HALE (Gm%aparisﬁ’mm wapentake of A
WARDHURN, parts of KesTeyeN, county of LiNcoLy,
5§ miles (E.S.E.) from Sleaford, conta "ﬂw‘im !

tov;lnslll:p of Ll}:ﬂc Hale, 83.; mha:‘iietants Th
a discharged vicarage, in the arc

of Lincoln, rated in the king’s books at ga 6., ahd in
the pa of the Crown. The church, dedicated to
St.John the Baptmt is principally in ihe decorated style
of English architecture.

‘HALE (LITTLE), a townslup in the parish of
Great Have, wapentake of AswARDHURN, parts of
KesTEVEN, county of LiNcoLN, 63 miles (E.$.E.) from
Sleaford, containing 286 inhabitants.

BALE-WESTON county of HuNTINGDON, — See
HAIL-WESTON. :

HALES, a parish in the hundred of CLavERING,
county of Nonrox.x, 4% miles (N.W. by N.) from Bec-
cles, containing 252 inhabitants. The living is a perpe-
tual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich. Sir Thomas Smyth, Bart. was patron in
1816. The church is dedicated to St. Margaret.

HALES-OWEN, a parish comprising the market
town of Hales-Owen, in the Hales-Owen divigion of the
hnndred of Brimstrer, a detached portion of the
county of Savor, and the chapelry of Cradley, and the

| hamlets of Luttley and Warley-Wigorn, in the lower di-
' vision of the hundred of Havvszire, county of Wor-
‘('t:sn-:n, and contmmng 10,946 inhabitants, of which
' number, 8817 are in that part of the parish which is
| in the county of Salop, and 1759 in the town of Hales-
Owen, 35 miles (8.E.) from Shrewsbury, and 120 (N.W.)

; from London. This place is said to have been formerly
' a borough, though it does not appear to have ever re-
'tm'ned members to parliament. King John, in the
'sixteenth year of his reign, gave the manor and the
‘advowson of the church, which is stated to have been
‘built prior to the Norman Conquest, to Peter de Ru-
;ﬁbua, Bishop of Winchester, who founded here a priory
Premonstratensian canons, which, from parts of the

yet remaining, though concealed by brambles and

s, appears to have been an extensive edifice, and from

e gable end of the chapter-house, in which are some
ﬁ‘e lancet windows, to have been in the early style of
Wi:t architecture. At the dissolution, its revenue was

‘at £387. 15. 6.: some vestiges of the abbot's

kitpw are still visible in a farm-house near the town.
‘ is more celebrated for having been ‘the
place and residence of the poet Shenstone, than

for uyevenu of historical interest. The town is si-

tuated in a fertile vale watered by the river
whigh lnutl meemthe eighbouring hills,
with hndpletumi
ist ﬂ;:;u ofone -trget mwh
wellings irregularly . ¢ vicinit

m- ' :

b Master and W
jurisdiction of t'tse cmnity pistrates
and low bailiff, ooi!ltablé and he
nually appomt.ed at the amrc leet
manor, = A court of re is h
under an act %?:ed in %he 47t1| of T,
recovery of debts under £5, the jﬁrisﬂ!ctiouof vhich
tends over the parishes of Hales-Owen,  Rowle
Tipton, West Bromwich, Harborne, ‘anil the' maos
Bradley, in the parish of Wolverhampton, in ’ﬁ!e W
ties of Worcester, Salop, and Stafford. i
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archded-
conry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the kin,
books at £15. 8. 114, and in the patronage of .
Lyttelton. The church, dedicated to St. Mary and S!'“
John the Evangelist, is a spacious structure in the Nor.
man style of architecture, with later insertions, hhb
a tower surmounted by a lofty spire : the interior con-
tains a handsome monument to the memory 1jo!
Halliday, and an urn to that of the poet Shenstone, Who
was buried in the church-yard in 1763. There m‘é
of worship for Independents and Wesleyan Me
The free grammar school was founded under a %
sion for charitable uses, in 1652, and endowéd
lands and tenements bequeathed by various benefactors
to the parish, now producing more than £100 per hﬁ%’
of which, £30 is paid to the usher, and the remainder
the master, who also the school-house, with a'good
garden and six acres of land ; there are about fmy‘boyu,
who are now instructed in Engliuh grammar, Wwritin
and arithmetic. ~Shenstone received the ‘rudiments |
his education in this school. At H “fﬁ’ this
.parish, a free school was founded, in 1 i
Smith, and endowed with lands ;
per annum, for the education of tw
Dr. Adam Littleton, author of a Iaﬂn» ction
other works, who died in 1694 ; and William '
the celebrated type-founder,‘wlo dljﬂ in 1'
born in this h. g
. HALESWORTH, a marlet mm a
'htmdred of !Bt.nnme, county of .
(N. E. by N.) from Ipswich, and 101 (N. E.) fre
don, containing 2166 inhabitants. Mm
situated in & valley on the banks of the river B
: Mﬂhrently‘ )




shz ches and cha
2 gh low, is handsome,
ery a;itd clock recently put up.

ces of wors meuptIsta, Independents,
Tt A Natlonal school, in which two hun-
! m edncqted. is endowed, accordmg to
' m«»f the Commissioners for inquiring into cha-
es, £30 per annum, the rent of a pew in the
urch bequeath .by John Hutcher in 1816. In a
m ;g]ohng the church-yard, six poor children are
by means of a benefaction of £60 left by
Thomas Neale; and there is a school for twenty boys
and twenty glrls endowed with a rent-charge of
£17. 6. 8. bequeathed by Richard Porter, Esq. There
are eight almshonuses belonging to the parish] in which
are faurteen poor widows, who have a small weekly
allowance; and a few other benefactions have been made

for different purposes.

"HALEWOOD, a township in the parish of CaiLp-
waLL, hundred of Wesr DerBy, county palatine of
NCASTER, 6 miles (S.) from Prescot, containing 934
inhabitants, .
HALFORD, a chapelry in the parish of Baouunn,
hnnd;ed of MunsrLow, county of Saivop, 8} miles
(N.W.by N.) from Ludlow, containing 51 inhabitants,

HALFORD, or HALFORD-BRIDGE, a parish in the
W division of the hundred of KingTox, county of

ARWICK, 4 miles (N.) from Shipston upon Stour, con-

uﬁmng 313 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in

and diocese of Worcester, rated in

? kiaga books at £10. 9. 9%, and in the patronage
Stu Ihry

of Worcester, The chuarch i is dedicated to

HALIFAX, a parish in
the wapentake of MorLEY,
West riding of the county
W' of Yomrk, comprising the

 market town of Halifax, the
| ), chapelries of Elland with
1)/, Greetland, Heptonstall, Ras-
7, trick, and Sowerby, and the
%5 townships of Barkisland, Er-

‘rmgden, Fixby, Ihpperholme
g ® ‘with Brighouse, Langfield,
Seal and . Midgley, Norland, Ovenden,
aram SouthOmm.Bll worth, Shelf, Skircoat,
! 8 ‘Wadsworth, andWarley,

ing 93,850 | itants, of which number,
town of Halifax, 42 miles (8.W.) from
(ngw.) from London, on the road
~ This town, thongh no:;gf

very similar to the guillotine used
Revolution.

‘ ‘lnrg;ingmdlthweubnﬂtﬁ
\ bmrhogg. Itusltunm&ton the Giafl

T
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man E‘rench, is an old plural nom dqwma
The woollen manufacture for which the tow md
neighbourhood have been disting: “Pl' _ages, pre-
vailed so early as the year 1414, tho W}‘ ﬁm',it-
ed scale, and continued to increase fromozhu

1540, during which the number of houses was |
nugmented from fifteen to five hundred and twenty
manufacturers in the Spanish Netherlands ne:liﬁnﬁge
from the persecutions with which they were as

% overnment of the Duke of Alva, repaired in great
num ers to England, and many of them are supposed
to have settled at Halifax ; a conjecture which derives

h from the sxmllanty of dialect existing between
the labouring classes here and in the Low Countries, par-
ticularly Friesland. In 1642, during the great civil war,
the town was garrisoned by the forces of the parliament,
and the inhabitants seem to have been strongly attached
to their cause. At that period an obstinate engagement
took place on Halifax bank, adjoining the road to Wake-
field, from which the place still retains the name of Blood
Field :"there are also, in different parts of the parish, ves-
tiges of intrenchments ; and tradition states it to have
been the scene of various skirmishes.

For many ages a mode of trial and execution, styled
the Gibbet ‘Law, existed in the Forest of Hardwick,
which was co-extensive with the parish of Halifax, The
inhabitants within this forest had a custom, observed from
time immemorial, that if a felon were taken within their
liberty, with goods stolen either out of or within the liberty
of the said forest, of the value of thirteen-pence half-
penny, he should, after three markets, or meeting-days,
within the town of Halifax, next after such apprehension,
be tried, and if condemned, be taken to the gibbet and
have his head cut off. The following is the process of
the gibbet.law: when the felon was apprehended he was
immediately brought before the lord's bailiff, at Halifax,
who kept the common gaol in the town, had the custody
of the axe, and was the legal executioner. The bailiff
then issued his summons to the constables of four several
townships within the liberty, to require four frith-bur-
gesses within cach to appear before him on a certain
day, to examine into the truth of the charge. At the
trial the accuser and the accused were confronted before
tlns unsworn jury, and the goods stolen were produced.

If the accused party was acquitted, he was instantly
liberated; if condemned, he was either executed im-
medlately, if that was the principal market day, or
in the stocks on the less meeting-days, with the stolen

on his back, if portable, otherwise they were
placed before him. The last executions took phce n
1650, forty-nine delinquents having suffered during the
pmeedmgcen ;andafterthatpeﬁodthammn
;ﬁ disused. The gibbet, of Wthhhnm;em remains may
be seen at the gaol, appear!to ve an
Moot e wngg

ﬂ-

The town is nearly three quarters
from east to west, butm‘w

, which is very al



HA&

separates the townships of Halifax and Ovenden from
North Ouram, the whole substratum. ‘of the parish is
grit-stone, y to the east of this valley, ar-
gillaceous strata, with their general concomitants, stone
and iron, appear ; and to this canse, added to the abun-
dant supply of fuel and the rapid descent of its nume-
rous brooks, so important inmufechuu before the
introduetion of the ‘the vicinity of Halifax
is greatly indebted for its wealth and population. The
parish is the largest in England, including an area. of
one hundred and twenty-four square miles, or seventy-
nine thousand two hundred acres. The town is abun-
dantly supplied with pure water, lighted with gas, and
paved throughout. The theatre, built by subscription,
is neat and commodious ; and the dramatic perform-
ances take place in the months. of January, February,
and March. The new assembly-rooms, recently erected
nhuilmon, are handsome, and the interior is finished
with ' considerable taste, and .with due regard to com-
fort : subscription assemblies are held at stated periods
during the winter season : attached to the rooms are
a public library, news-room, &ec. . There are also public
baths, in a delightful valley a short distance from the
road to Huddersfield, affording every accommodation
for warm and cold bathing, and for swimming,
¢ The principal articles of manufacture in the town
and neighbourhood are shalloons, tammies, duroys, cali-
mancoes, everlastings, moreens, shags, kerseys, baizes,
woollen cloth (narrow and broad), coatings, and carpets.
Several mills have also been erected in connexion with
the cotton manufacture, which is rapidly increasing ;
and wool cards of superior quality are made in the neigh-
bourhood, which abounds with coal mines and freestone
quarries, the produce of the latter being shipped in con-
. siderable quantities to the metropolis. . The Rochdale
canal affords a medium of communication with Liver-
pool, Manchester, and the western district ; and the
Calder navigation with Hull and the eastern district.
The market, which is one of the best in the north of
England, is on Saturday; and there are two annual fairs
for live stock, viz., on the 24th of June, and the first
Saturday in NovembcrnﬁwThe piece-hall, erected a few
years by the manufacturers, is a Jarge quadran-
Wﬁgdmg of freestone, occupying an area of ten
thousand square yards, with a rustic basement story,
and two upper stories, fronted with two interior colon-
nades, which are spacious walks leading to arched rooms,
wﬂlngoodhin ‘an unfinished state are deposited, and
exhibited for sale to the merchants every Saturday, from
M mlvé o'clock : this structure, which com-
at an expense of £12,000, and opened on the
lw-hm-ry 1779, unites elegance, convenience, and
security ;- ét mlmﬂupe mdned and. ﬂﬁaen 'epum

is a vicarage, in them

cese onork rated in the king's boolil O&ﬁa% 43.,
and in the patronage of the Crown. The

church, with the exception of part of tha north
which appears to have been built in the time of Edmdl«
was erected between the years 1450 and 1470: it is &
fine building -in the later English style, having a nave;
chancel, aisles, and two cthels one founded by A:ch-.
bishop Rokeby, who was sometime vicar of the

and the other by another vicar named Holdsworth : it
has an embattled tower surmounted by eight pmcln,
and underneath the church, towards the east, is a erypt :
the ceiling is adorned with the armorial bea.nngl of -all
the incumbents, from the ordination of the vi , i
1274, to the present time, with those of the m
factors to the church : several large handsome modern
monuments adorn the interior. There are twelve chapels
of ease in the parish, to which the vicar appoints the
curates. . A handsome new church of Grecian architec-
ture was erected in 1798, by Dr, Conlthurst, then vicar,
and dedicated to the Holy Trinity : the living is a perpe-
tual curacy. Here are places of. worshlp for Baptists,
the Society of Friends, Independents, Wesleyan Metho-
dists, and Unitarians.

The free grammar school, situated in Sku'coat, wp,%
founded by letters patent of Queen Elizabeth, in 1585,
under the superintendence of twelve governors
from among the most respectable of the parishioners;
they have the appointment of the head master and usher,
the former of whom must have been a student for a
period of five years at one of the Universities. The
present school-house, with six acres of land contiguous
to it, was given by Gilbert, Earl of Shnewubugy,’ Edward
Savile, Esq., and Sir George Savile, Knt., in 1598 ; and
several benefactions have since been added to the origi
nal endowment, among which is one by the Rey.
Milner, who, by will in 1722, the.
and Fellows of ) St. Mary




of poor children
- addition of six more

, by will dated January 18th,
of £8, for teaching poor
dedgn has been frustrated. There

S ‘institutions for the relief of the sick
‘dem, among which are the dispensary, afford-
‘medical and cnl aid; and the Benevolent
for the distribution of food and clothing to
poor.  The workhonse was originally established
Nathaniel Waterhouse, in 1635, and men of the
respectable inhabitants'of the town were incorpo-
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“being found inconvenient for the purpose of
mm to spin worsted, and make bone-lace,
& new one was purchased in the year 1700, and from
| 1707 to 1720 the old house was used as a sessions-house

wn ﬁm'uughly red and restored to its original
M remains of British and Danish an-

ﬁqﬁﬁ. Me, at ;igermt times, been discovered in dtl;he
i ~About @ century ago, a countryman dig-
peat Mm,$MmMckhs
‘@ black polished stone, near which lay a
brass celt, in excellent preservation, four
w-h ‘black flint, a light battle-axe of a beau-
| gred Q&M:,lhdnhonowmge or scoop, of hard
_stone, ey ly intended for the excavation of

n vessels: the last is unique, and the whole seems
m Tﬂi’ﬁ of the armour of a British soldier,
: erhaps two thousand years ago, among
all remains of the body,togethermth
pons, had long been entirely de-
chuuctera ‘who were born

enry Briggs, an emi-
| di.loova'ia relative to
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charter of Charles L., to superintend its concerns:-

wwm iamthemnﬂ«
Litchurch, :
" HALLAM (NETHER), nm-up

» -l?.;
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~ the parish of SuerrieLp which is in the southern

division of the wapentake of STrarrorT: and TicK-
HrLL, West riding of the county of York, 2 miles (W.)

from Sheffield, containing 3200 inhabitants, A school-

roomwueectedmanyyearugoatUpperKeely by sub-

scription among the inhabitants, who also purchased land

towards its support ; the annual income, including the

pmeeed- of £150 bequeathed by Thomas’ Chapman in

1801, is about £18, for which sum eighteen children

are imtructed Another school-room was erected by
subscription in 1791, with a dwelling-house for the
master ; it is partly supported by means of a bequest
of £100 from William Roncksley, in 1723, and partly
from land allotted under the enclosure act in 1794
thirty children are ht to read in the school.

HALLAM (UPPER), a township in that part of
the parish of Sae¥rieLp which is in the southern divi-
sion of the wapentake of StrarrorTE and TickHILL,
West riding of the county of York, 3% miles (W.8.w.)
from Sheflield, containing 1018 inhabitants.

HALLAM (WEST), a parish in the hundred of
MogrvresToN and LircHURCH, eonntyof DErpY, 8 miles
(N.E, byE)fmm Derby, containing 706 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in the king's books at £8, and in the patronage of -
Francis Newdigate, Esq. The church is dedicated to
St. Wilfrid. The Rev. John ill, in 1662, bequeath-
ed £540 for the erection and endowment of a free school :
the annual income is about £ 174, of which the master
receives £60 for teaching fifty-eight children, who
each paid ninepence per week out of the same fund,
according to the directions of the testator. There
a mineral spring, the water of which is similar in
qualities to the Harrogate water. A canal has been
recently cut along part of the boundary of the parish,
where there is acoulwhurfmeomelionwithamlgh-

colliery,

HALLATON, a parish (formerly a market. town)
in the hundred of GArRTREE, county of Lneln'll.
7 miles (N. E. by N.) from Market-Harborough, and

Efw

m lm; Archbiahq)QDO‘(NNW)from London, containing 664 inhabitants.
! ‘in the township The

_name is supposed by some to be a corruption of -
Hollow-town, in allusion to its being situated in'a
valley, or hollow spot ; byothmitudeﬂmd'ﬁm»/
Holy town. The market-cross is still ‘but the
market has not been held within the memory. of the

inhabitants. An attempt was made to revive
*, which proved abortive, m‘u&m a

Matothehndnmd‘m

;;
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Mehbz'm tracery : it contains an ancient square
font, | bymlmtmmdwuhmq\w
heads. is a place of worship for Baptists, A cha-
mschoolhunmdmmdzaopammmaing

ritable bequests for annual dhtl'lbutlon among the poor.

/On #he western side of the town, at the distance of
a mile, is the site of an ancient fortress, called Hallaton
Castle hill : the most conspicuous part of the remains
is a conical eminence, one hundred and eighteen feet
high, and six hundred and thirty feet in circumference,
on which stood the keep, occupying, with the out-
works, about two acres of ground. About a quarter
of 'a mile south-west of this spot are traces of another
fortress of nearly the same extent. A battle is said to
have been fought near this town, and these vestiges lend
countenance to the tradition, as also does the name of
Blood-wood, affixed to a meighbouring spot.  Halla-
ton is distinguished by a singular annual custom which
is thus described : on every Kaster Monday the inha-
bitants meet on a piece of ground which was bequeathed
to the use and benefit of the rector, who then provides
~ two hare pies, a quantity of ale, and two dozen of penny

loaves, to be scrambled for. Attempts have been made
to put down this custom, and appropriate the bequest to
charitable purposes; but so attached are the inhabit-
ants to it, that these efforts have always failed, and on
. one occasion a riot was the result.
|+ HALL-GARTH, a township in the parish of Prr-
| PINGTON, southern division of EasineTon ward, county
' palatine of DuraAM; containing 304 inhabitants,
'\ HALLING, a parish in the hundred of SmHAMWELL,
- lathe of Ayvrusrorp, county of Kent, 44 miles (8, w.)
from Rochester, containing 346 inhabitants. The living
is a vies , in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ro-
éhester rated in the king's books at £7. 13. 4., and in

the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Rochester.
The c¢hurch, dedicated to St. John the Baptist, is prin-
cipally in the early style of English architecture, with a
low western tower and spire. The river Medway runs
through, and a ridge of hills extends quite across, the
parish. The bishops of Rochester had a palace here
before the Conquest: it was rebuilt some time in_the
twelfth century, and additions made to it about the year
1820 ; the remains are considerable, and the wnW ag
the | nearly entire.

HALLINGBURY (GREAT), a parish in the
ol'anww, county oﬁEnu. 2 miles (S.E. by
. SMM 678 '

# Harbottle, and Linsheeles, and containing -

church is dedicated to St. Luwmd:re ‘
2 HALLINGTON, a ~in the
onN Lz, southern division of TiNpALE ‘ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 11 miles (N.N.E«) ~from Hex-
ham, containing 129 inhabitants. On an emihence
called the Mote-Law is a square intrenchment, with a
hearth-stone in the centre, onwhioh bucmﬁenm
formerly kindled. ‘ it
HALLIWELL, a wwnnh:pinthepnhhelm
hundred of Sarrorp, county palatine of Lancaster,
1§ mile (N.W.) from Great Bolton, containing 2288
inhabitants. Here are extensive bleaching-works,
HALLOUGHTON, a parish in that part of the liber-
ty of SourEwELL a.nd rooBY which separates the
northern from the southern division of the of
TaureArRTON, county of NoTTiNncaAM, 14 (8. 8. W)
from Southwell, containing 101 inhabitants. The living
isa tual curacy, endowed with £ 1000 royal bounty,
and in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the
Prebendary of Halloughton in - the Co Oblmh
of Southwell. The chapel is dedicated to St. James.
HALLOW, a chapelry in the parish of Gnua.n,
lower division of the hundred of OswarnpsLow,
of Worcester, 3 miles (N. N: W.) from Worcester,
containing 1081 inhabitants. The chapel is partly of
Norman architecture, and partly in the early E
style, with a belfry of woed and plaister, the tower
ing been demolished : it has lately received an addition
of two hundred free sittings, the Incorpprated Society
for the t of churches and chapels having
granted £200 towards defraying the expense. The
navigable river Severn runs along the eutem*bonhy
of the chapelry. Hereianchdybeﬂcqmng
HALLOWICKS, a hamlet in the parish of%
muNHAM, hundred of Dessoroves, county of Buck-
ingaAM. The tion is returned with the parish.
Here was fomerllwpnh beer
HALLYSTONE, a parish in the western division of
CoQUETDALE wud,cmmtynf‘ﬂonnmww com-
prising the townships of Barrow, Dueshill, one,

, of which number, 132
, 7 miles (w*byn.yfn.:m
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A Mhshowhhofm, is situated on the river Colne,
mﬂl'hhmdﬁahmdndofmunu,my and on the high road from f
®D, containing 553 inhabitants. London to Norwich, through ¢
vy ‘a parish in the hundred of Wln Der: Bury-St. Edmund's.: it is
- palatine of LANCASTER, comprising the cha- neither lighted nor paved,
Mdlqdim Maghull, and Melling, and the town- and is supplied with water
ships of Down-Holland and Halsall, and containing from springs. Inthe reign of Elizabeth, the French Pro-
3588 inhabitants, of which number, 970 are in the town- testants being violently persecuted in their own country,
ship of Halsall, 3 miles (W.N.W.) from Ormskirk. The many of them fled to England, and settling at Halstead
living is a mctuy in the archdeaconry and diocese of and Colchester, introduced the manufacture of baize and
Chester, rated in the king's books at £24. 11, 55. The says, nowdiscontinued. A large silk-mill was erected a few
Misses Blundel were patronesses in 1816. The church, years since on the site of a flour-mill, at which a con-
dedicated to St.Cuthbert, has portions in the decorated * siderable number of children is employed, and the trade
and later styles of Engluh architecturé, and a lofty is in a flourishing state. A market for corn is held on
- In the church-yard is a school-house, erected in Friday ; and there are cattle fairs on May 6th and Oc-
lm, by Edward Halsall, who bequeathed a rent-charge tober 29th, Courts leet and baron are held about once
of %18, 6. 8. for its malntenance as s free grammar & year, by the lord of the manor; and the petty ses-
school for twelve boys. The Leeds and Liverpool canal sions for the division of South Hinckford are held here
passes thmgh the parish. A bituminous turf, called Lit- every Friday. There is a house of correction, in which
turf, is found in Halsall moss, which burns like a candle. a tread-mill has been erected. The living is a vicarage,
HALSE, a hamlet in the parish of St. PeTeR, bo- in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Commissary of Essex
rmgh of Brackrey, hundred of King's Surron, and Herts,concurrently with the Consistorial Court of the
of Noa'm‘urron, 2*\ miles (N.W. by N.) from Blshop of London, rated in the king's books at £17, and
pnlatwn is returned with the parish, in the patronage of the Bishop of London. The clmrck,
Mm'ﬁmer a chapel dedicated to St. Andrew, dedicated to St. George, is a spacious edifice, chiefly in
which has been lhnnhshed. i the later English style, except the chancel, which is de-
-+ HALSE, a parish in the hundred of WiLLiTon and corated ; and the spire is constructed of wood, in place
FreemaNNeRs, though locally in the western division of one destroyed by lightning about eighty years ago.
of the hundred of Kingsbury, county of Somrrser, 4 It probably belonged to a college of priests, founded
‘miles (E.) from Wiveliscombe, containing 447 inhabi- here in the 14th of Edward IV., the revenue of which,
tants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch- at the dissolution, was £26. 5. 8 Here are places of
deaconry of Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, worship for Baptxsts, the Society of Friends, and
rated in the king's books at £5. 19. 7., endowed with Independents. A free grammar school was founded
£600 private Wuﬁo&, £400 royal bounty, and by Lady Ramsey, in 1504, for the education of forty
£800 parliamentary grant. Sir J. Langham, Bart. was children belonging to the parishes of Halstead and
m in 1798. The church is dedicated to St. James.  Colne-Engaine, and endowed with a rent-charge of
- HALSHAM, a parish in the southern division of £20 and a house for the master, under the patronage
'&'ht wapentake of Houperness, East riding of the of the Governors of Christ's Hmpm\l London. Mr.
Md ‘Yorx, 6 miles (E. by 8.) from Hedon, con- Martin, in 1573, left lands producing £130 per annum;
815 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the « and Mrs. Holmes, in 1783, left £4000 three per cents.,
; of the East riding, and dmcueof\’osk, for the benefit of the poor of this parish. Thomas
’m&ﬁakhQim.t £13. 6. 8., and in dm ‘Bourchier, Archbishop of Canterbury in the reign of
of Sir T. Constable, Bart. The church is Edward IV, a distinguished patron of literature, was
cated t ‘M Spints: on an eminence mear it is a neat \nﬁeoflhhtead.

! ! dehmm&ced#b H*S‘l‘EAD,apmshmthchundredofComv
inthemelbuuﬁfulmm aeath, lathe of Surron at Howng, wnnty of 1
"ﬁMSﬁ'WﬂMM whose E*Ilﬂll(N.W by N.) from Seven Oaks,

rounded by those of Hsanou- v
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¢ ¢$ 2., and in the patronage

: ";‘&m\ued Yo' the vicar.
ar jurisdiction' of
e lalstock in the Cathe-
", endovbed with £400 royal
entary grant. The church-is

extra-parochial liberty, in the hun-

dred of Wﬁkr county of Saror, 3} miles (E.N.E.)
from Oswestry, contai 39 inhabitants. There is a
mes 'é'hhpel belonging to John Mytton, Esq., who
yoints the minister, The Ellesmere canal touches
m the boundary of the liberty, which is crossed by
a small stream called the Perry; this, by a diversion of

Ytl channel, has been made to resemble a large river,
called Halston Pool, covering about forty acres, The
its Tem lars had a preceptory here, dedicated to

the irgin Mary, which subsequently belonged

vtk aM’ ‘ “fﬁfl&w e 1

“HALTON. a ¢h (M et town) in
the parish of RuNCORN, liumlndwfhvcim&} count;
palatine of CuEesteR, 34 miles (N.' N. E)) from'
sham, containing 1066 'inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry mAIAMﬂ

Chester, endowed with £600 private b Jand
£600 royal bounty, and in the of Sir, R,
Brooke, Bart. The church is

“to St. Mary.
The Mersey and Irwell canal, and the Duke of Bridge-
water's canal, pass through the parish.: Halton was given
by Hugh Lupus, Earl of Chester, to his cousin N
with the constablery of Chester, the earl at the' same
time making him his marshal : these great offices of
constable of Chester and earl marshal were attached to
the barony, and enjoyed by his successors the barons of
Halton, who, amongst other privileges granted them by
the earls, were authorised to have a castle and a ’pl‘m

W the hosp!tallers and was valued, in' the 26th of at Halton to hold a weekly market and two annual

anryVIII at £160. 14. 10. per annum : in the reign
of Mary it was re-granted to the order of St.John of
Jerusalem, and in that of her successor Elizabeth it was
possessed by William Horne.

HALSTOW (HIGH), a parish in the hundred of
Hoo, lathe of AyLEesrorp, county of Kent, 53 miles
(N. N. E.)) from Rocheater, containing 350 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Rochester, rated in the King's books at £14. 5. 74.,
and in the patronage of the Rev. B. Burt. The church
is dedicated to St. M

HALSTOW (LOWER), a parish ‘in the hundred
of Mivrox, lathe of Scray, county of Kent, 4 miles
(W. N. W.) from Milton, contammg 220 inhabitants.

living is a discharged vi , in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's ksat
of the Dean and

of Canterbury. The church is dedicated to St. Margutt
alstow is situated at the upper end of
 whieh it has a communication with the Medwny

“‘i‘,% above Sheerness. Here vessels from fore
uhmu that cannot produce clean bills of health, are
] to perform quarantine, and to remove their s

into two large

fairs, a court for the cognizance of various om,
and for all pleas and actions within the barony, ex-
cept such as belonged to the earl's sword, and to have
a master-serjeant and eight under ser “within
their fee. The castle was built goon after the Norman
Conquest, on" the brow of a hill commanding a ves
extensive prospect over a great part of Cheshire, z
across the Mersey into Lancashire. Among its va-
rious di hed possessors may be mentioned John
of Gaunt, Duke of Lancaster, with whom it was a fa-
vourite residence. It was for ﬂlo’wh
the early part of 1643, and for the

1644. There are few remainsof its ancient w:
the habitable part of it, which appears to have been
chiefly rebuilf since the civil war, has been fitted up s
an inn: there is a room in which the courts for the
honour are held. A charity school is endowed ‘with
about £20 per annum, arising from various benefac-
tions. Analmnhoueformxpootmﬂw
edinlm,byrmeynrodkem.
£54. 12. peruumm
~ HALTON, a
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\ (EA.ST) _township in that part of
of SkiprON hich is in the eastern divi-
wapentake of Staincrirye and Ewcross,

of the county of York, 4 miles (N. A
Skipton, containing, with Bolton, 141 in-

the pa
P
by E.) from
HALTQN (WEST), a parish in the northern divi-
of the wapentake of MaANLEY, parts of Linpsey,
county of LincoLn, 85 miles (W.) from Barton upon
‘Humber, containing, with the hamlet of Gunhouse, 374
hﬂl‘bitlntl. The living is a rectory, in the archdeacon-
1y of Stow, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
booh at £16, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Norwich. The church is dedicated to St. Ethelreda.
. HALTON (WEST), a township in that part of the
; of Arncrirre which is in the western division
of the wapentake of StarncLirre and Ewcross, West
of the county of York, 7 miles (8. by E.) from
Settle, ini

190 inhabitants.
. HALTON-GILL, a chapelry in that part of the pa-
rish of Arnorivre which is in the western division of
the take of Srtarncrirre and Ewcross, West
of the county of Yomrk, 11§ miles (N. E. by N.)
from Settle, containing 114 inhabitants. The living is
a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
M ‘endowed with £400 royal bounty, and £200
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Vicar
wof Aracliffe. A school was erected in 1630, by William
Faweett, and endowed by him with an annuity of
£18. 6. 8, for the instruction of poor children.

HALTON-HOLEGATE, a parish in the eastern di-
:"mh!mf the soke of BoLiNGBROKE, parts of LiNDsSEY,
Lancorn, 14 mile (E.S.E.) from Spilsby,

s 460 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in
y and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £16.17.11. Mr. and Mrs. Burrell
m&mmuh 1779.  The church is dedicated to
HALTON-SHIELDS, a tomhipin the parish of
.mmw,umdmawﬁ TiNDALE ward, county of
"Munuumn,'f (N E. by B.) from Hexham,

§'

is situated on the line of

imln’~

mdﬂdtwhuﬁe, aﬁmﬂa(w.) from New
and 815 (N. N. W.) from London. Tbum
called Haltwesel, is pleasantly situated on the h
ﬁonCnhslemNeweuﬂz on an eminence whi
‘nﬂndslnchandextmweprospectofthe i
country, and of the windings of the river 'I'ynenrw
its fertile vale. The buildings are irregular, and there
are but few good houses ; the streets are neither paved
nor lighted, but the mhabmmts are plentifally snppm
with water from wells, and from brooks which are situ-
ated northward from the town. The only b of ma-
nufacture is one of coarse baize, recently introduced, A
market, in which grain is sold, is occasionally held on
Thursday ; and the fairs are on the 14th of May and the
22nd of ‘November, chiefly for cattle; those on the 12th
of May and the 11th of November are statute fairs.
The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of North-
umberland, and diocese of Durham, rated in the king's
books at £12. 3. 1§, and in the patronage ofnie
Bishop of Durham. The church, which is dedicated
‘to the Holy Cross, stands on an eminence southward
from the town ; from the church-yard there is a beau-
tiful and extensive prospect. Here are places of wor-
ship for Primitive Methodists and Presbyterians. A
charity school was founded and endowed with £35 per
annum, arising from lands at Faversham, in Kent, in
the year 1719, by Dorothy Capel, Baroness Dowager of
Tewkesbury : the number of boys at present is about
eighty : the master receives a salary of £30 per annum,
with a small quarterly payment from the scholars. The
vicar of this parish allows £10 per annum to a
schoolmaster at Greenhead, for instructing the chil-
dren of labourers, On an eminence eastward of the
church are the vestiges of a fort, environed on all
sides but the south by an embankment of turf; in
the centre of the enclosure is a large spring, which from
neglect has converted the place into a . In the
township of Thirlwall are the remains of a castle, for-
merly one of the boundary forts between England and
Scotland.

HALVERGATE, a parish in the hundred of Waws-
HAM, county of NorroLk, 3§ miles (8.8.E.) from Acle,
containing 449 inhabitants. - The living is a disc
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Norvm:h
rated in the king's books at £5, and in the pat
the Bishop of Ely. The church is dedicated to St. ] etcr
and St. Paul.

HALWELL, a parish in the hundred of Bx,wt
TorriNeTON, county of Devon, 6% miles (8. E. bys.)
from Holsworthy, contnm.mg 216 inhabitants,
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Totnm, gd
diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £12.3. 9.,
and in the patronage of the Crown. Goodfreenmg.n
obtained in the parish.

‘ HALWELL,apmahmthehundredof ERIDG
county of Devox, 5% miles (s..by W) ;’x‘m Totne

eonhm:ngwainhab
“to the vx'



HAM, ntythmgin%tpare of the parishof BAvG-
HURST ghich is in the hundred of Barron-Sracey,
division of the county of Sovrmameron, 74
milen (N. any‘ﬂ.) from Basingstoke. The population

parish

HAM, a hamlet in the parish of KinesTon upon
Tuames, first division of the hundred of Kinaeston,
county of Surrey, 94 miles (S. W. by W.) from London,
containing, with Hatch, 961 inhabitants. This place,
which is pleasantly situated between Kingston and Rich-
mond, contains several handsome mansions and de-
tached villas.. There is a pleasure fair on the 29th of
May and the two following days, which is much fre-

quented. It is in contemplation to ereet a chapel of
_ease in this hamlet. Here is a place of worship for
Independents. Ham house, a noble mansion now be-
longmt% to the Countess of Dysart, is said to have
3 e place where the cabinet council of Charles II.,
called “ the Cabal,” held their meetings ; and James II.
- was ordered by the Prince of to retire to Ham
- house just before his flight to France in 1688.
' HAM, a parish in the hundred of Erstus and Ever-
| LEY, though locally in the hundred of Kinwardstone,
| county of Wivrs, 33 miles (8.) from: ‘Hungerford, con-
‘taining 171 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the
‘archdeaconry of Wilts, and diocese of Salisbury, rated
in the king’s books at £12.6, 8., and in the patronage
of ;l';le Bishop of Winchester. The church is dedicated
to
HAM (EAST), a parish in the hundred of Brcon-
ThEE, county of Esstx, 6 miles (£.) from London, con-

ring 1424 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in
of Essex, and diocese of London, rated

s books at £14. 3. 9., and in the
th‘hop of London. The church, dem
, is partly of Norman architecture.
‘ q‘ s ‘of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
'~ﬁ|'rcr bounds the parish on the south-east,
and Bow creek separates the counties of Essex and
lﬁmexm the west. An almshouse for three poor

by Giles Breme, in 1621; besides which considerable

was erected and endowed with £40 per annum, 421
made, for various charitable

sum of money glven by ,
Stawell for apprenticing poc

HAM (LOW), a c\mpdry in 1he‘ of Hiew
Hawm, hundred of WaiTLEY, county mm’f
miles (N. by E.) from Langport. Thepepuhﬁm‘k :
turned with the parish. ’

HAM (WEST), a parish in the hundred of Becos-
TREE, county of Essex, 4 miles (E. by N.) from London,
comprising the wards of All Saints, Church-street, Plais-
tow, and Stratford- Langthorne, and conuining 9758'1!&
habitants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdea
of Essex, and diocese of London, rated in the king's
books at £39. 8. 4., and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church, dedlcated to All Saints, is a spacious strue-
ture with a lofty tower at the west end, and containg
some handsome monuments. A charity school was'
founded in 1728, for ten boys : the endowment having
been afterwards greatly increased by various ’bequub,
forty boys and twenty girls are now clothed, ed
and apprenticed. A school for clothing and eduming
forty poor girls has also been established, in pursu-
ance of the will, dated in 1761, of Mrs, Scnhbonnét.
who left £3000 in the funds for that purpose. The
West Ham water-works, on the river Lea, supply Strat-
ford-Langthorne, Bromley, Bow, Stepney, Bethnal-
Green, and the lower part of Whitechapel. At Strat-
ford-Langthorne an abbey was founded by William de
Montfichet, in 1135, for Cistercian monks, and dedis’
cated to theVirgngarynndAllSl&nu. In thydr‘
1807, the abbot was summoned to parliament
at the time of the dissolution of the greater réig!bm
houses, the revenue of the abbey was estimated at up-
wards of £650. Margaret, the mfmmﬂomw.i of
Sainsbm—y beheaded on a charge of high treason in the

reign of Henry VIIL., resided within the precincts of the '
abbey about theperiod of its dissolution. The principal
remains are a brick gateway and mormmmd W
about three south-west of the church. Ge
Edwards, the natural hlstonan, whodied

‘bomutﬂtnﬁord-flnﬁﬁhm
HAMB’LEen% CE a parish. h*h




s v s formerly a market on Monday,

v

lSlf, uuh fair on the festival of St, Bartholomew, in

Hmmapmahpmﬂymthehnndmdof
uxoll-S'rou, but chiefly in the hundred of HamsLe-
pon, Portsdown division of the county of SovrHAMP-
TON, 6 miles (E.S.E.) from Bishop's Waltham, com-

prising the tythings of Hambledon, Chidden, Denmead,
l‘.urvih and Glidden, and. containing 1886 inhabit-
ants. The living is a vicarage, rated in the king's books
at £26. 19. 2., in the peculiar jurisdiction of the vi-
car, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Winches-
ter. The church, dedicated to St.Peter, is partly in the
early, and partly in the later, style of English archi-
‘tecture. Fairs for horses are held on February 18th,
the first Tuesday in May, and October 22nd. Windmill-
down, in this parigh, is noted as being frequented by
the crickebphyem of Hampshire and the neighbouring

i, . HAMBLEDON, a parish in the first division of the
W of GopALmING, county of SURREY, 3% miles
(8. by w.) from Godalming, containing 381 inhabitants,

' The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Surrey,

" and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king’s books at
£6.7.11. The Earl of Radnor was patron in 1810.
The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

HAMBLETON, a chapelry in the parish of Kirkuam,
lmndred of AMOUNDERNESS, county palatine of Lan-
©AsTER, 2§ miles (N.E.) from Poulton, containing 338
inhabitants. Thp living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester, en-

dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £400 royal
bmty,undintheputmmge of the Vicar of Kirkham.
‘children are educated for a trifling sum, the be-
quest of Matthew Lewtas, in 1791. .
HAMBLENN a parish in the hundred of MaArTINS-
mmﬁnmmmn:&smﬂug Bl.:;) from Oak-
M 308 itants. e living is a vicar-
ﬂ!:::rﬁu»nry of Northampton, and diocese of
orough, rated in the king's books &t £10.17.1.,
in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Lin-
‘mchmh is dedicated to St.Andrew. Nine
instructed for a mll annuity, the gift of

B Wogmanmeand

a parish in hundred of
:amw:dlmgsn."s&m.

.8.E.) from Horncastle, containing 149 i

lhe living is a discharged rectory, that of field
nﬂted,inthemhdewmy. and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £8, 14. 2. Mrs, Coltman was
pw::u:m 1814, 'The church is dedicated to All

HAMERTON, a parish in the hundred of Leicn-
TONSTONE, county of HunTingpoN, 7 miles (8. B.W)
from Stilton, containing 141 inhabitants, The livi
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, #hd o-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at, £13, 15. 5.,
mdmthepatronageof James H. 8. Barry, Esq. The
church is dedicated to All Saints.

HAMFOLLOW, a hamlet in the parish and upper
division of the hundred of BrrkELEY, county of
GLOUCESTER, containing 437 inhabitants.

HAMMERSMITH, a chapelry in the parish of
Fuormawm, Kensington division of the hundred of Ossuw-
STONE, county of MippLESEX, 34 miles (W. by 8.) from
London, on the great western road, containing 8809
inhabitants. This village, which by a continuity of
buildings is almost united with Kensington, forms
one of the most populous appendages to the western
part of the metropolis, and is pleasantly situated on
the northern bank of the river Thames. The principal
street extends along the line of the turnpike-road, and
a wide street, called the Broad-way, diverges from it
towards the river: the houses are in general of re-
spectable appearance, and there are some handsome
ranges of modern erection: in the environs are nu-
merous seats and elegant villas, especially towards
the river, on the bank of which was Brandenburgh
house, a noble mansion erected by Sir Nicholas Crispe
in the reign of Charles I., which General Fairfax
occupied in 1647, while the parliamentary forces were
quartered in the neighbourhood, pending the propo-
sition between Charles I. and the parliament ; it was af-
terwards the residence of the Margrave of Anspach; and
subsequently of the late Queen Caroline, since whose de-
cease in it the building has been taken down. The streets
are well paved, and lighted with gas, and the inhabitants
are supplied with water by the West Middlesex Company,
established at Hammersmith by act of parliament in
1806. A suspension-bridge over the Thames was com-
menced in 1825, and completed in 1827, from a design
by Mr. Tierney Clarke, at an expense of 54-5.00&
The distance between the suspension towers, whi
are forty-eight feet lggh, and form handsome arched
entrances of the order, is four hundred feet ;
from these towers are suspended eight chains, con-
uw.mg;f bars of wrought iron, having a dip of twmt;y.
nine in the centre, from wlnch pass perpendicular
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‘\mdunuth it.

Hlmmﬁthilnbmt to besepm&ed from the pamh
of Fulham, and to be divided into two distinet parishes.
The living il‘mu'petual curacy, in the ‘archdeaconry of
Middlesex, and diocese of London, and in the patronage
of the Bishop of London. The church, erected in 1631,
and dedicated to St. Paul, is a spacious and neat edifice
of brick, with a square tower: against the north wall
‘of the nave is a handsome bronze bust of Charles L,
erected in remembrance of his royal master

Sir Nicholas Crispe, whose heart, in pursuance of

o directions, was enclosed in an urn and placed
A church dedicated to St. Peter, and
containing one thousand six hundred and one sit-
tings, of which six hundred are free, was erected in
1829, by a grant from the parliamentary commissioners,
at an expense of £12,223. 8.4.: it is a handsome edifice
of Suffolk brick, in the Grecian style of architecture,
and of the Doric order, with a neat stone tower : the
living is & perpetual curacy, in the patronage of the
Bishop of London. St. Mary's chapel, a neat brick
building, was erected in 1813, at the sole expense of the
late Richard Hunt, Esq.: the living is a donative, in
the gift of Charlu, Edward, and Richard Hunt, Esqrs.

. There are places of worship for Baptists, the Society of

dents, and Wesleyan Methodists, besides

Indepen: i
| q&uman, Catholic chapel. A school for clothmg and

‘boys was founded in 1624, by Edward

Latymer, Esq., who gave thirty-five acres of land, pro-
ducing a rental of upwards of £540, of which a part
mwmpnmdtotbe clothing of aged men; there
are boys in the school, and thn-ty men are
«clothed. A charity school, in which fifty
edmttedand clothed, is supported partly by
“twelfth part Ofm %fya farm now let for
450 per annum, the Dowager
~and partly by subscription : there is also a
- Catholic school at Brook-Green, supported by
: mmu Sunday schools are support-
tion. There are alnshouses for | old
' WMMMM
Tsles, D.D., in 1629 ; and various charitable bequests
MM ‘made for the

A courtwrndmusmmint

endowed by Thomas par
wamw A mechanics’

-~

d’ - e
Arthur Murphy, a muﬁ a WM
of celebrity, are among mmwmmhm
been interred :qe . Philip James ?«i v f.h
celebrated landscape painter, resid at phoe

HAMMERTON. (GREEN), a township in that X‘qt
of the parish of Waixrey which is in the upper
sion of the wapentake of Craro, West riding of the
county of Yorxk, 74 miles (8,E. by 8.) from Ald
containing 329 inhabitants. There isa place of w:
for Wesleyan Methodists. 4

HAMMERTON (KIRK), a parish partly in thc

upperdivision of the wapentake of Craro, West

and compriamg the township of Wilstrop, within the
ainsty of the city of York, East riding, of the county of
Yorx, 8 miles (S.E. by 8.) from Ald.borou.gh containing
504 inhabitants. The living is @ perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Richmond, and _diocese of Chester,
endowed with £400 private beneft.ctlon, £200 royal
bounty, and £300 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Rev. W. Metcalfe. The church is
dedicated to St.John the Baptist. There is a place of
worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The manufacture
of linen is carried on here.

HAMMERWICK, a parish in the southern di
of the hundred of Orrrow, county of STarromp,
miles (8.W. by W.) from Lichfield, containing 218 in-
habitants, The living is a perpetnd
the vi of St. Mary, Lichfield, in the peculiar juris-
dlctmnof the Dean of Lichfield, endowed with £600

Tk

 HAMMOON, a parish in the hu

Blandford (North) division of thé

7 miles {s.w.bys,) from
71 inhabi is

annexed to

=




' HAMPHALL, a joint with. Stubbs,. in
the parish of Apwick le STREET, northemn division of
the wapentake of | wwortH and TroxmiLn, West

of the emmtyof York, 6 miles (N.w.) from
lI;‘;)g::‘;nmer containing 140 inhabitants. A priory of
Outetcunnum,mhnnonrof the Blesseil Virgin Mary,
was founded here about 1170, by William de Clairfai
and Avicia de Tarry, his wife, the revenue of which, at
the dissolution, was £85.,6. 11,
i:lAMPNE'l'l’ aparish in the hundred of Bunmv,
of Gmuclmn, 14 mile (N.w. by N.) from
North Leach, 121 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, with which that of Stowell was united in 1660,
in the and diocese of Gloucester, rated in
- the king's books at £10, and in the patronage of Lord
~ Stowell, The church, dedicated to St.George, is prin-
 cipally in the early style of English architecture. A
. brook rises in this parish, which gives name to the
adjoining town. of North Leach. The old Fosse-wa;
ng the south-eastern boundary.
TT (WEST), a parish in the hundred of
of CHICHESTER, county
1§ mﬂe (N. B.mm Chichester, containing

A

e from the colder winds, and

TR T

ir al- Mhmwm;md‘wm.

eof 4 miles (N. by w.) from London,
- bitants, .« This

er- the monks of St.Peter at Westminster, and the grant

- _having been confirmed by William the

- continued in their possession till the dissolution of the

7263 inha- -
place was granted by King Ethelred to
r, it

convent in the reign of Henry VIII, Thelnmentszge '

- house, of which scurccly a memorial remains, was the

residence of the monastic superintendent of the manor,

£ ‘and the prior resided at Belsize house, which was

snbseqnently converted into a place of public enter-
tainment. Hnmpsteud was anciently an inconsider-
able hamlet in the parish of Hendon, from which it
was separated, and wmade a distinct parish, in the
year 1598, when its churchwardens for the first time
attended the bishop's annual visitation. The election
for the county members took place on the heath in 1681,
and continued to be held till 1701, when it was remov-
ed to Brentford. Its pleasant situation, the salubrity of
the air, and its proximity to the metropolis, had made
it the residence of some of the more wealthy citizens,
and from the discovery of its chalybeate springs and
mineral waters, in the early part of the eighteenth cen-
tury, it became the resort of numerous invalids, for whose
accommodation and amusement a pump-room, tavern,
and coffee and assembly-rooms, were successively erect-
ed. The water of the chalybeate spring contains oxyde
of iron, muriates of soda and magnesia, sulphate of lime,
and a small portion of silex, and its mean tem

at the wells is from 46 to 47° of Fahrenheit. Other
saline springs were afterwards discovered at the south-
eastern extremity of the heath, near Pond-street, in
their properties generally resembling the Cheltenham
and Harrogate waters : the water continued for some
time to be sent in flasks from the wells by accredited
agents of the principal houses, called the Upper and
Lower Flask Houses.

Hampstead is at present more regarded as a henlthy
and pleasant place of residence than on account of
its waters, which have within the last few years fallen
almost into disuse. The village is situated on the
southern acelivity of a hill, on the summit of which is
an extensive heath, commanding, at different elevations,
varied and beautiful views of the ~and the
adjacent country, abounding in picturesque scenery, and
agreeably diversified with richly-wooded hills, -exten-
sive meadows, and sequestered vales, inwrspenedviﬂ:
elegant villas, splendid mansions, and rural
The heath is dmdedmtotheUpperundLowerM
the Vale of Health, other subdivisions, possess-
ing a temperature of te proportioned to their se-

veral elevations; or to their different degrees of shelter
Mu&-




~ ticing them there is a fund of £2100 three

ts of Kentish Town,
Glmden Town, and Mmham(}onrt road, Petty
sessions are held here occasionally, and courts leet and
baron on the Monday bhefore Whitsuntide; a general
court baron and customary court are also held annually
mthm:mornxweeksaﬁ:er Christmas : the

parish is within the jurisdiction of a court of requests

held at Kingsgate-street, Holborn, for the recovery of
debts under 40s., and is also within the limits of the
W ce establishment.

living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
d' uidd]uex and diocese of London, and in the patron-
age of Sir Thomas Maryon Wilson, Bart. The church,

dedicated to St. John, a neat brick edifice, was erected in

1747, on the site of the ancient church, which was taken-

down : the steeple is at the cust end, and among the
monuments is one to the memory of Lady Erskine, beauti-
fully executed by Bacon the younger. In 1771, William
Pierce bequeathed £ 1700 three per cent. consols., direct~
ing the dividends to be applied in paying stlpends of
£24 per annum to the curate of Hampstead, and £5 per
aunum to the clerk, for performing divine service every
Friday, £10 per annum to the Independent minister,
and for other purposes, Hampstead chapel, in Well
Walk, originally the pump-room of the Wells tavern,
and St. John's chapel on Downshire Hill, erected in
1823, a plain neat building, are proprietary epxscopal

There are places of worship for Baptists,
Wesleyan Methodists, and Unitarians, and a Roman
Catholic chapel. National schools for children of both
sexes are by subscription, and for appren-
per cent.
consols., arising from a bequest of £1000 by John Stock,

- Esq., in 1760, and subsequent benefactions. Dow.
_ Viscountess Campden,
. invested in land, a moiety of which was appropriated to

in 1643, bequeathed £200 t:sl:

_the poor, and the remainder for apprenticing one poor
duld, with which sum, together with £40 given by an un-
‘known bemﬁch'en lands in the parish of Hendon yere

at present £83. 11. per annum.
E Suunuhiloel,m 1698, gave six acres of the

ljnmhhﬂt theprumt revenue
‘estate, which is r the
ml&iﬂaﬁ,

fomuegu:k: .w

cupied by Sir ‘ ‘
formerly a ph.ee of . public enwnmcn

Upper Flask, noticed by Richardson in - Cle
George Stevens, the celebrated commentator on |
speare, lived and died ; prior to which itvuﬂn pllct
of meeting of the Kit Cat Club. Among many distin-
ed persons who were interred at Hmpstetd vme
r. Anthony Askew, a learned critic and physician;
James M Ardell, an engraver in mezzotinto ; John Har-
rison, who obtained a premium from parliament for his
improvements on the chronometer ; Archdecon Travis ;
James Pettit Andrews, author of a history of Great Bri-
tain ; and John Carter, an eminent antiquary.
HAMPSTEAD (EAST), a parish comprising the
hamlet of Bracknell, in the hundred of Coonuu;,
but chiefly in the hundred of RirrrEsmEr=m, county
of Brrks, 4 miles (E,8.E) from Wokingham, con-
taining 615 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of Salisbury,
rated in the king's hooks at£9. 1. 3., and in the pa-
tronage of the Dean and Canong of Christ Church,
Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. Mary :
lene. There are several chalybeate springs in the pa
and a Roman military work, called Ceesar's camp,
HAMPSTEAD- MARSHALL a parish in the hun,, W
dred of KintpurY-EAGLE, county of Berks, 4 miles
(W. by §.) from Newbury, containing 304 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in_the archdeaconry of Berks,
and diocese of Salisbury, rated in thekinga books at .«
£12. 14. 45, and in the patronage of Earl Craven. '
The church is dedicated to St. Mary The Kennet and
Avon canal passes through the parish. Y
HAMPSTEAD-NORRIS, a parish in the hlldud
of Farrcross, county of Berks, 3§ miles (8.E. by 8,)
from East Ilsley, containing 1111 inhabitants,
living is a discharged vicarage, in the
Berks, and diocese of Salisbury, nﬁdh“
books at £9. 18. 114, andmﬂ;e patron
Marquis of Downshire. The h is
to the its, and
In Park buppice isa




amﬁ’fp ) duu.ut,
m&%&mm&nmmn, county
of Curster, 2§ miles (N. E) from Malpas,

207 inhabitants.

, a parish in the hundred of SpeL-
oumty of Mippresex, 134 miles (W.8.W.)

from #‘d ¢ , with the chapelry of Hamp-
ton-Wick, 3549 inhabitants. In the reign of Edward the
Confessor, Hampton belonged to Earl Algar, a powerful
Saxon nobleman, and after the Norman Conquest it was
held by Walter de St. Valeri, who probably gave the ad-
vowson of the living to the priory of Takeley, in Essex,
which was a cell to the abbeyof ‘St. Valeri, in Picardy ;
but the manor subsequently became the property of Sir
Robert Gray, whose widow, in 1211, left it to the Knights
Hospitallers, and they at one period an establish-
ment here for the sisters of that order. Cardinal Wol-
:ey,when in the height of his power, having determined

' a palwe for his principal residence in the
vicilﬂty lis, fixed on Hampton for the
site of it, as bemg one of the healthiest and most pleasant

_ gpots in ‘the south of England. He therefore obtained
- from the prior of St. John a lease of the manor and
_ manor-house, and in 1516 commenced the erection of a
“magnificent mlnaion, which he furnished in a style of cor-

. responding splendour; and before the structure was
W in 1526, he presented it to the king, together
his interest in the manorial estate. In 1538, an act

rlia ‘passed for making a royal chase, called
m Court chase, extending over several adjoining
' shes in Middlesex and Surrey. It was enclosed and
. stocked with deer, but on the petition of the inhabitants,

" after the death of VIIL, the enclosure was re-
moved, though the tract which it comprehended is still
considered ; ‘l‘.-ﬁmyll chase, under the superintendence
called the liem:emnt, or keeper of his

of Hampum Court. The order of the
lers having been suppressed in England
101 hmnevutedmthecrown,andm
: creating the manor
hononr.the office of chief steward

' mﬁhﬂ with that of lieutenant
y se; always been conferred on

in June ann
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mw and a suite of rooms
';’@dthe Duke of York's' , are Now
private families, who have during pleasure fron
the LordChmberhin; the nmnberdthemdm ,in-
chding servants, is about seven hundred. Thepdm
situated on the north bank of the Thames, eomprhu
three quadrangles, with some detached
but the quadrangle at the western entrance aloﬁl
remains as originally erected by Cardinal Wolsey: it
extends one hundred and sixty-nine feet from north to
south, and one hundred and forty-one from east to west.
The second quadrangle, called the Clock-court, from a
curious astronomical clock over the gateway, has been
partially remodelled from a design by Sir Christopher
Wren, who erected an Ionic colonnade leading to the
grand staircase and the state apartments. On the
north side of this quadrangle is the great hall, built by
Henry VIII., the noble roof of which was restored in
1820 : it was used as a theatre in the reigns of Eliza-
beth and George I. and IL. ; and in 1830 it was fitted
up for divine service while 'the parish church was being
rebuilt. The Fountain court, or third quadrangle, was
rebuilt by Sir Christopher Wren, in 1690 ; it is ohe
hundred and ten feet from east to west, and’ one hun-
dred and seventeen from north to south. On the south
side is the king's staircase, leading to the state apart-
ments, the walls of which are ornamented with mytho-
loglcnl paintings by Verrio; and on the north side is
the queen's staircase, with paintings on the walls by
Laguerre. The principal state apartments are the guard-
hall, decorated with arms and armour; the presence-
chambers ; the audience chamber ; the king's dra
room and writing closet ;. Queen Mary’s closet ;
queen's’ gallery, ornamented with Gobelin tapestry ; the
royal bed-rooms and dressing-rooms; and the long
gallery, in which are the Cartoons of Raphael. The
royal chapel, in which is some beautiful carved work
by Grimling Gibbons, is opened for divine service every
Sunday. The gardens, including the site of the palace,

. comprise a space of about three miles in circumference.

In a hot house in the private gardens is a vine of the
Black Hamburgh kind, noted for its extraordinary fer-
tility, often bearing two thousand five hundred bunches
of grapes in a season. There is a fine canal three quar-
ters of a mile in length ; and the gardens are orna-
mented with four beautifully senlptured marble vases.
The village of Hampton stands about one mile and a
half from the palace, on the north side of the Thames,
over which there is a wooden bridge at Humpﬁmcou't.
and there is also a ferry over the verfurmu
foot-passengers at Hampton. It contains ‘hand-
some villas, particularly one which bel to the cele-
butedGmck,onthelawnmfrontofvhichhn-ﬂ
temple dedicated to Shakspeare, with a statue of the
dramatist, the work of G. Garrard, A.R.A.° There are
membhesmthecouueofthemttthem
Hotel at H, Court ; and races are held
y, at Mouhcy Hurst, on the
of the Thames, Courts leet mdhm‘ﬂthmdt

held once a year. Hampton is the ju >
of a court thqwtlﬁrﬂn W&‘y*’ ebts under
40s., held at dnrh' ww
nduﬂxhidphm HW‘KH “nm T
R et e o S
~ Middlesex, and diocese of
# g
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“rated in the king's books at £15. 6. 8., and in the

RN

‘books at £10,and in-
ehm'ch, ‘dedicated to the ‘irgin,
mhcdihﬂdueduhte,swﬁ el :
commemmm ‘of 1830, mdmmb,mum of
i ‘that the first stone of a new edifice was
ini to ‘contain one thousand four hundred pa-
‘gons, with four hundred and free sittings: the
‘estimated expense of « the is about £8000.
‘Here is a place of worship for Independents. A
free - grammar school was founded in consequence
of the bequest of lands and tenements at Hampton,
by Robert Hamonde, in 1556, and the subsequent bene-
factions of Edmund Pigeon, in 1657, and John Jones,
Esq.,in 1691 : the entire annual income is £327. 10.
fnmwm%m receives £287. 13. 6., and pays
1 £60 per annum to an usher, and about £10 per

‘annum for books, &c. The school is open to the
children of all the parishioners, and the scholars are
‘instructed on the National system. There is a Na-
tional school for girls, twelve of whom are clothed at

the of ‘Her Royal Highness the Duchess of
Clarence, and the remainder, seventy-two in number,
by ‘subscription : there is also a Sunday school for
Thoys, on the National plan. The school-house for the
day school and the school of industry was erected in
,'on a piece of ground given by the Duke of Cla-
ce, at the expense of £429.6. 4., raised by voluntary
ntribution.” Queen Anne gave £.5O per annum to the
r of this parish; and there are many other consider-

le benefactions, for apprenticing poor children and
thér charitable purposes. Among the more distinguished
itants of this place who have been interred here,
“be mentioned John Beard, patentee of Covent

arden theatre, celebrated as a public singer, who died
in 1791 ; and Richard Tickell, Esq., author of a popular
phlet  entitled “ Anticipation,” containing satirical
sketches of parliamentary debates.

- HAMPTON in ARDEN, a parish in the Solihull
. divigion of the hundred of HemrLiNGrorD, county of
- Warwick, 4 miles (E. by N.) from Solihull, comprising
‘the chapelries of Balsall and Knowle, and the hamlets
of Kinwalsey, and Nuthurst, and containing 2772 in-
* habitants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry
~of Coventry, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry,

e of the Master and l}rethrenuftheicrl

.mst.Andvew.'al‘hm ' i

, the river Wye, on the north
ble for vessels oﬂtmym‘- ey
by the river Froomy. *

: east.
e oy AH *"I‘H ptg’
HAMPTON (Gmm,tpﬂilh MWM
of the hundred of BLACKENHURST, w-ey)mm
TER, 1 mile (W. by 8.) from Evesham, containing, with
the township of Little Hampton, 824 inhabitants. The

living is a discharged curacy, in the archdea-

conry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's

books at £7. 12, 34, and in the patronage of the Dean

and Canons of Christ Church, Oxford. The church,

dedicated to St. Andrew, uinthehterltylaofE

architecture. The navigable river Avon is crossed by
a ferry here.

HAMPTON (HIGH), a pnigh in the lmndred of
Brack TorrineToN, county of Devon, 84 miles (W.)
from Hatherleigh, containing 282 inhabitants. The liv-
ing is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Totness, and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books
at £8. 19. 44. J. M. Woolcombe, Esq. was patron
in 1810. The church, dedicated to the Holy Cross,
has a plain Norman door : it is situated on a very high
hill, and serves as a land-mark for the snrroundhg
country. Here is a small charity school. =

HAMPTON (HILL), a hamlet in the parish.of
MarTLey, upper division of the hundred of Dopping-

:

TREE, county of WORCESTER, containing 138 mlnﬂ- )

ants.

HAMPTON (LITTLE), a sea-port, muket-wwn, nd
parish, in the hundred of Poring, rape of ArRuNDEL,
county of Sussex, 4 miles (S.) from Arundel, and 61
(8.8.W.) from London, containing 1166 inhabitants.

This place, which is situated on the east bank of the river

Arun, was, a few years ago, an insignificant village, but
is nowacomldenbleport and is much frequented for

|

sea-bathing. Some fine buildings have been erected on

the beach, which commands an ted view of the

coast, from Brighton to the Isle of Wight, and on the land
‘side wmany beautiful and varied prospects. There are
mmmmmfmmemmﬁmms.

5

commodation, and the shops are fitted up with
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"Mw MM, iaw»dlwiﬁm of the hundred of

~ Brackenmu
%ﬁbj&) &_Evmhm The population is returned
‘the  The river Arun here falls into the
w' ; and on its eastern bank there is a
ddmdrtlw entrance to Arundel haven.
- HAMPTON (MAISEY), a parish in the hundred of
Wunt and Minery, county of GLOUCESTER,
2% miles (W.8.W.) from Fairford, containing 362 inha-
‘bitants, . The living is a rectory, with the perpetual cu-
racy of Marston-Maisey, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at £26.17. 33.,
and in the patronage of the President and Fellows of
- Corpus Christi College, Oxford. The church is dedi-
~cated to St. Mary. There are several small bequests
" for the of a Sunday school. '
. HAMPTON (MINCHIN), a parish in the hundred
- of LongTrREE, county of GLOUCESTER, comprising the
~chapelry of Rod , part of the chapelry of
~worth, and the mar: town of Minchin-Hampton, 14
 miles (B.) from Gloucester, and 100 (W.) from London,
~ and con with Rodborough and Nailsworth, 7843
~ inhabitants. Shortly after the Conquest, the manor of
~ Hampton was given to the nunnery of Caen, in Nor-
- mandy, and a church was founded here, and the grant
- of 'a market procured for the town, by the abbess of
“m in the reign of Henry III.; hence it derived
- its prefix of Minchin from Monachma, a diminutive of
~ Monacha, amun.  The town is pleasantly situated on
. the'summit and southern declivity of an eminence bor-
‘ 'Muﬁonlc ‘of the Severn to the east: it.con-
~sists of a long lnaguhr street, intersected by another,
pe ‘paved, and is abundantly supplied with water
springs.

. There are several streams near the
town, and in other parts of the parish, onfwll:xch stand -

iy 5, the principal employment of the inhabit-

' themnﬁ?:tb;teof woollen_cloth,
s long been extensively carried on in the vi-

> A small market for provisions is held on Tues-

~ day; and there are fairs on Trinity-Monday and Oc-

rsT, county of Worcrster, § of a mile

Several benefactions have been made for appnnﬁcitg
poor children, and for other purposes. An ancient un-
endowed almshouse here having become greatly dilapi-
dated, the late David Ricardo, Esq., of Gatcombe park,
in the vicinity, built other almshouses for eight poor
persons, who receive a voluntary allowance from Mrs.

Ricardo. A dispensary is supported by subscription.
Amberley, or Hampton common, a large tract of un-
enclosed land to the westward of the town, was given
to the inhabitants by Alice de Hampton, in the reign of
Henry VIIL : on this common is a very extensive in-
trenchment, supposed to have been a Danish camp ;
and ‘fiear it a valley, called “ Woeful Danes’ Bottom,
where Alfred the Great is said to have obtained a vic-
tory over the Danes.

HAMPTON (NETHER); a chapelry in the parish of
WivrtoN, hundred of Cawpen and CapworTH, county
of Wivnrs, 13 mile (8.E. by 8.) from Wilton, containing
147 inhabitants. The chapel, dedicated to St.Catherine,
is principally in the later style of English architecture,
but the chancel is early English.

HAMPTON (WELCH), a parish in the hundred of
PimuivLL, county of Savor, 24 miles (E. by N.) from
Ellesmere, containing 478 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, endowed with £400 private benefac-
tion, and £400 royal bounty, and in the peculiar juris-
diction and patronage of the Lord of the Manor, the
Rev. Sir Edward Kynaston, Bart. The church is dedi-
cated to St, Michael.

HAMPTON-CHARLES, a hamlet in that part of
the parish of BockrLeron which is in the hundred of
Broxasn, county of HErEroRrD, 5% miles (N.W.by W.)
from Bromyard, containing 91 inhabitants.

HAMP’I‘ON-COURT, an extra-parochial liberty, lo-
cally in the parish of Hope under Dinmore, hundred
of Wowrrny, county of Hererorn, 55 miles (8.8.E.)
from Leominster. Here is a noble and spacious man-
sion, on. the eastern bank of the river Lug, erected by
Sir Rowland Lenthall, yeoman of the robes to Henry IV.,
‘who distinguished himself at the battle of Agincourt.
The buildings, which form a quadrangle, display a
mixture of monastic and castellated architecture :
on the north side are a gate-house and angular towers,

- one of which joins a chapel, with a fine timber roof

ornamented with carved work; mdmthewindwlge
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inhabitants. Tha uaww
and diocese of Wm‘duﬁer, rated . mw hooks at
£9.16. 04.,and in the
Bart. The church is dedica
HAMPTON-LUCY, o&mms HAMP—
TON, a parish in the Snittorfield division of the
hundred of BarrLicEWAY, county of Warwiok, 4%
miles (E.N.E.) from Stratford upon Avon, containing
554 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, rated in the
n{: books at £51./6. 8., in the peculiar jurisdiction
of the Rector, but wills are always proved in the presence
of the Bishop's registrar at Worcester, and are depo-
sited in the ' there.  George Lucy, Esq. was pa-
tron in 1815. The church is dedlcaoed to St. Peter, A
free grammar school was founded in 1635, by the Rev,
Richard Hill, who endowed it with estates now produ-
cing about £148 per annum, for which about gixty boys
from the partshes of Bishop's Hampton, Charlecote,
Alveston, and Wasperton, receive an English education
only, classical instruction not having been given for
many years past. In 1723, the Rev, William Lucy, D.D.,
gave £2000, in support of four scholars from this esta-
blishment at St. Mary Magdalene's Hall, Oxford, but, be-
ing ineligible from the want of classical instructlon,
lections are now made from other foundations,
HAMPTON-POYLE, a parish in the hupdred of
Provearey, county of Oxrorp, 33 miles (E. by 8.)
. from Woodstock, containing 153 inhabitants. The
- living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Oxford, rated in the king's books at £6. 2. 8%., and in
the patronage of the Warden and Fellows of Queen's
College, Oxford. = The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
‘ HAMPTON-WICK, a chapelry in the parish of
. Hampron, hundred of SperraorNE, county of Mip-
' puEsex, 14 mile (B. by N.) from Hampton Court, con-
taining 1261 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and diocese
of London, and in the patronage of the Vicar of Hamp-
ton. The erection of a chapel was completed in 1880,
at an expense of about £4000, granted by the parlinmen-
‘tary commissioners ; it contains eight hundred si
one-half of which are free. The inhabitants of Hnmp.
ton-Wick are entitled to one-third part of thé charit-
able benefactions belonging to the parish, by virtue of
an agreement entered into in 1698, hetween the minister
and officers of Hampton, and the churchwarden of
1-Wick ; and the free school is open to the
children of the chapelry. The trade is principally in
mﬂt,aconuidemﬂe quantity of which is made here,
This place is within the jurisdiction of a court of re-
qumfu'themeeyoidebtsunderw held during
thrmhﬂfywntﬂmﬁwd.mddumgthem
at Ux . A new ‘stone bridge over the Thames to

division of theh\mdudafw Mnfﬂnvﬁ
5% miles (E.N.E.) from Rudgeley, containing
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the
Staﬁ’orgmn;d b(llomka of ‘wmm\w Govmq:m
in the s at £ ' 1,05 in the '
of Chandos Leigh, Esq. ’M dam :
St. Michael. The patish hbmm&d on the south by
the river Trent. A free school, erected in lm.by‘ﬁ.
late Rev. Thomas Leigh, is mpportcdby Im,
Esq., and conducted upon the National system. 0
HAMSTEELS, a joint- township with Bnmop in
that part of the parish of LancmrsTer which is in the
western division of CuesTeER ward, county palatine d
Dvnnua, 62 miles (W. N, W.) from Durham. The
pulation is returned with Bumop ; »
HAMSTERLEY, a chapelry in that part of ﬂmp«
rish of St. ANDREW AUCKLAND which: is in the north-
western division of DarvriNeTON ward, county pala-
tine of Duruam, 63 miles (W.) from Bmhop-\Auckhnd,
containing 552 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Durham,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, £200 royal
bounty, and £1000 parliamentary grant. W. Chlﬁor,‘
Esq. was patron in 1825. The church is duhmul
to St. James. The Baptists have a place of worship,
erected in 1774, with a burial-ground, a house and gar-
den for the minister, and a school-room. There is also
a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. At Bid-
burn are extensive iron-works : coal is obtained in the
neighbourhood. A school-house has been built by pub-
lic subscription, and there is a jmechanics’ institution
in the parish. :
HAMWORTHY, a chapelry in the parish of Smm
MINSTER-MARsHALL, hundred of CoGpEan, Shuhl
(East) division of the county of Dorser, 13 mile (W.)
from Poole, containing 313 inhabitants. It is within
the )uriadictwn of the peculiar court of Sturminster-

tains four hundredandﬁftyfmeliﬁing.ﬂw )
rated Society for the enlargement of churches and
gy b g
pense, i
Ham, the latter of which is the M.,

~ Kingston has recently been erected, instead of a former sing the

bridge of wood, said to have been one of the oldest on
the river. - In making an excavation for the foundation

'nitbeﬁmmlsﬂ

of the abutment of the new bridge, on mm' .
mudm 2




: d of Onuqnww county of WORCESTER, 4 HANDSACRE a joint pamh with Anmtagu, in
; %(l. by N.) from Droitwich, containing 1042 inha- the southern division of the hundred of Orrrow, county
: living is a ‘rectory, rated in the king's of Starrorp, 3§ miles (E.S.E.) from Rudgeley, con-
: bgk. at £29. 15, 8., in the peculiar jurisdiction of the taining, with Armitage, 793 inhabitants. The living ie
, but wills are always proved in the pmmoe of a perpetual curacy, within the peculiar jurisdiction and
the Bishop's registrar at Worcester, and are depos patronage of the Prebendary of Handsacre in the Ca-
in the there : !thinthepth'onngeof'l"l‘ thedral Church of Lichfield.
Vernon, The ehnrch, dedicated to St. John the HANDSWORTH, a parish in the southern division
Baptist, stands upon a very lofty eminence: it is in of the hundred of Oru.ow, county of Srarromrp, 2%
the early, decorlted, and later, English styles of archi- miles (N. W. by N.) from Birmingham, containing, with
~ tecture, and contains some elegant- monuments to the the hamlets of Perry-Barr and Soho, 3859 inhabitants,
e Vernons. The Birmingham and Worcester canal passes The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Stafford,
- through the parish, and in the neighbourhood is a sa.lt and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's
mg. The Rev. Thomas Vernon, in 1627, founded a books at £13. 9. 2., and in the patronage of Wyrley
ty school in this parish, and Thomas Vernon, Esq., Birch, Esq. The church dedicated to St. Mary the Vir-
in 1711, gave certain lands towards its support, besldea gin, has lately received an addition of four hundred and
£200 for apprenticing poor children. fifty sittings, of which two hundred and fifty are free, the
. HANBURY-WOODEND, a township in the pamh Incorporated Society for the enlargement of churches
_of HanBURY, northern division of the hundred of Or- and chapels having granted £500 towards defraying the
:{ﬂw county of S'umnn, containing 256 inhabitants.  expense: it contains two elegant marble monuments to
. HANBY, a hamlet in the parish of Lavincron, the memory of Messrs. Boulton and Watt, the late cele-
otherwise Linton, wapentake of BrrrisLox, parts of brated proprietors of the extensive manufactory called
STEVEN, county of LiNcowLn, 4§ miles (W. 8. W.) from  Soho, at this place, who lived, died, and were buried
tham, containing 82 inhabitants. here ; that to the memory of Mr. Watt is placed in a
; BOROUGH, a parish in the hundred of handsome oratory erected purposely for its reception,
B chmn, county of Oxrorp, 5§ miles (B. N.E.) from The river Tame runs through the parish. A school was
& 885 inhabitants. The living is a rec- established in 1812, on the National system, at an ex-
tory, in the and diocese of Oxford, rated pense of nearly £800, defrayed out of the fund of the
g in the king's books at £11. 6. 0., and in the patronage Bridge trust, and is supported by voluntary contribu-
of the Prelident and Fellows of St. John's s College, Ox- tions.
- ford. dedicmqm St.Peter and St.Paul, ~ HANDSWORTH, a parish partly within the liberty
% ‘hasa mm door. of St.PeTER Of Yonx, and partly in the southern divi-
mm,lmmpinthe parish of TRENT- sion of the wapentake of STravrorTH and TickHILL,
mm division of the hundred of Prremrr, West riding of the county of York, 44 miles (E. by 8.)
myml Suuou, 8 miles (8.) from Newcastle under from Sheffield, containing 2178 inhabitants. The living
224 inhabitants. nummry,mtedlnthehngs books at £12. 4. 7., in
fi e e HANDNRD, a township in the parish of TrREnT- the peculiar jurisdiction of the Chancellor in the Cathe-
g T northern division of hundred of Pireminn, dral Churchof York. The Duke of Norfolk was patron
; containing 490 inhabitants. in 1801. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. A
TH, a joint township with Boxden, in school was erected by subscription about 1778, in which
’l!hh of Cumu, hundred of Maccresriern, ten children are taught free; there is also a dwelling-
‘ylhﬂneofounn,Gimdu(ﬂ W.bys.)from house for the master, who receives £20 a year arising
mm from a bequest of £200 by the Rev. Francis Lock-
ier, D.D,, in 1734, and a similar sum, the gift‘ofl{n.
Emd,wndowuftheluemcwr S RN
o Midmaimsr S e s
M«rof REDLANE, county
d«ﬁonm 54 miles (N. W. byN.) from Blandford-Fo-
rum, containing 13 inhabitants. = This was anciently a
dhtmot parish : here is a chapel in which divine ser-
i ;,vieeil ormed once every Sunday ; it is the burial-
1 the family of Seymour, whose mansion is situated
‘tho south side, and Mﬂwﬁam of
lem Ns PRI N S S
- HAN a m Frsuer-
thu M'ﬂf W (Nw.)




F1CH, county palatme of CuEs-
'E.) from Audlem, containing 258

WN a parish in the hundred of MaLMEs-
mrh county of Wrvts, 3 miles (N.E.) from Malmes-
0y hlmn%. with the tythmg of Cloatly, 356 in-
tants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Wilts, and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's
“booknt #£8.10. The Rev. J. Wi was patron in
The church is dedicated to the Holy Cross.

- Y, a market town and chapelry in the parish
of'S'roxn upon TrENT, northern division of the hundred
of PrreniLL, county of Starrorp, 24 miles (N.E.byE.)
from Newcastle, and 152 (N. W. by N.) from London,
containing 5622 inhabitants. This place, which is situ-
ated within the populous district of the potteries, is of
comparatively recent origin, and is chiefly inhabited by
persons employed in those works, the proprietors of
which have several handsome mansions in the neigh-
bonrhood The streets are paved with brick, and

‘ with gas under the superintendence of commis-
sioners appointed by act of parliament in 1825, and
amended in 1828, the provisions of which extend also

e ikl
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s mpphed with water conveyed into their houses by
pipes. The principal articles of manufacture are china
. an e&thmwm,for which there are numerous manu-
e{)loyment to a considerable part
uding women and children, The

the p tian,

which passes through the adjoi hamlet of
forming a channel of eonv%ce for the -
mmnfactnred andanabnndmtmpply
requisite for their
ednesdayandSa
four times in the year, *‘The
,vh‘ﬂbotnderthecdntroldfﬂu
‘ f bailiff is annually ele
‘_inho.bitan

to the adjoining hamlet of Shelton; and the inhabitants -

le is greatly facilitated by the Trent and Mersey

seription ; and there are St

with the established church and the
congregations, in which tgnnt nnmher
instructed.

HANLEY-CASTLE, a parish .in thﬂ;
of the hundred of Pznnou, of WORCESTER,
14 mile (N.N.W.) from U] tonuponSevem, containing
1424 inhabitants. The living is a discharged M
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated
the king's books at £12, 15., and in the pm f
Sir Anthony Lechmere, Bart The church is di
to St. Mary. There is a chapel for the Roman Catho
Courts leet and baron are held annually. A s
founded by an ancestor of the family of Lechm
is open to children of both sexes, who are supplied with
books, and taught upon Dr. Bell's system: ‘the en-
dowment consists of land producing an income of
£160 per annum, with a school-house mdgmhn :
classics were ori y taught, and the IM='
formerly two small exhibitions to Balliol
ford. The river Severn runs through the pmh,
the margin of which there was a castle s S8
possessed by the Nevilles, Earls of Wnrmd:, tho
Spensers, and the Lechmeres: its remains have
converted into a farm-house.

HANLEY-CHILD, a in the
EAsTHAM, upper dmnion of the lmndnd of | _
TREE, county of WoRCEsTER, 5 miles (8. E. by l-)¢

HANI‘:‘E%- conui% 19§w

sion of the hundred of Dopp: _
oEsTER, 6 miles (E. 8. E.) from '
124 mhab;?ntu ‘I'he llvingk
nb&httﬁs ? 2 § N and
v. R. Whitehead. 'Ihechuroh‘

Weltridh)g
m_m, '
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poor.
ease ; ahn an almshme,
&chcombe , for ten

: n amongst the parish ioners,
,mm (EAST), :parlsh in the hundred
‘county of Essex, 4} miles (S. by W.)
ry, conta 398 inhabitants. The living
5 a rectory, in the uchdeueonry of Essex, and diocese
; !i.bnaon, raud inthekm & books at £13. 15. 7%,
%ev. John Nottidge. The

to All Saints. |

a parish in the

ed of me.umnn, county oi‘ Essex, 6 miles
W.) from Danbury, containing 176 inhabitants.
lhe living is ‘@ rectory, consolidated, in 1785, with that
" West H d, in the nrchdeaconry of Essex,
nd diocese of don rated in the king's books at
' ThechmhisdedlcatedtoSt Peter.

HANNINGFIELD (WEST), a parish in the hun-
of CuxLmsrorp, county of Essex, 6 miles (8. W.)
n Danbury, containing 468 inhabitants. The living
1 rectory, with which the rectory of South Hanning-
consolidated in 1785, in the archdeaconry of
and diocese of London, rated in the king's
16. 13. 4., and in the patronage of Thomas
n, The church is dedicated to St. Mary
t. E ~ The inhabitants are supplied with
'&mwm four hundred and sixty-two

sh in the hundred of OrLING-
mpron, 6% miles (N.N. W.)
1t 177 inhabitants. The

ated with that of Walgrave,
rthampton, and diocese of
s books at £10. 11, 3.,
p of Lincoln. The

Bapti
HANSLOPE a puri-h in the :
g of BuckingHam, 4% miles ( ) from.
i rd, mn:a.mmg “7%Mththom . The li
vicarage mot in charge, petual cw
Cutle -Thorpe, in the arc gf Buckingham, a
diocese of Lincoln, endowed with £600 royal bounty,
and £400 parliamentary grant, and in the
of the Mayor and Corporation of Lincoln, as impropri-
ators of the rectory, which is rated in the king’s books
at £48. The church, dedicated to St. James, had
formerly an octagonal fluted spire, which, with the
tower, rose to the height of more than two hun-
dred feet : it was erected in 1409, by Thomas Knight,
then rector, and was destroyed by lightning in 1804,
There is a pla.ee of worship for Baptists, Hanslope
had the privilege of a market on Thursday, which has
long been disused ; it was granted to William Beauchamp,
Earl of Warwick, in 1293, with a fair commencing on
St. James's day and continuing fifteen days; this also
has been discontinuved, but a fair for cattle is held
on Holy Thursday. Several of the inhabitants are
employed in the manufacture of lace. Children of
both sexes are put to the lace schools at the early age of
five years, and when arrived at that of eleven or twelve
are able to support themselves. A school was founded
and endowed in 1721, by Lucy, Lady Pierrepoint, for
teaching four children ; besides which there are various
charitable gifts to the poor, vested in the hands of fe-
offees, and annually distributed on St. Thomas's day.
HANTHORPE, or HARMTHORPE, a chapelry in the
parish of Mom‘ox, wapentake of AvELAND, parts of Kes-
TEVEN, county of LiNCOLN, contai 254 inhabitants,
HANWELL, a parish in the hundred of EntHoRNE,
county of MippLEsEx, 8 miles (W.) from London, con-
taining 977 imhabitants. The livi :sarectory in
the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and diocese of London
rated in the king's books at £ 20, and in the
age of the Bishop of London, The church, dedxmted
to St. Mary, is a small brick edifice, rebuilt in 1781, at
an expense of about £1675, principally raised by m‘b-
scription, There is a place of worship for !
The river Brent runs through the parish, and the Grand
Junction canal bounds it on the west. William Hob-
bayne, in 1484, gave for charitable uses lands then
valued at £6ayear, now producing upw ards of £105,
ofwhichmmi.ssperannnm mappliedmthemppm
of a charity school. A lunatic asylum for the
of Middlesex is mow being erected here.
Henry Glasse, rector of Hanwell, who died in 18
an eminent classical scholar, lnd distlnwxﬂlﬂ
wﬁtiwﬁreek paetry and by his Gree
W Ja




A puriih mththeperpemﬂmoﬂ!d el
parish in the hnndred of Sru.- deaconry of Totness, and diocese
Mippresex, 3% miles (S. W. by 8.) king's books at £49. 2. 1., -and
552 inhabitants. The living Dean and Chapter of Eseter %
giction of the Commissary of St. Andrew, contains a vu-y\dchmne
rently wi stone stalls, and has lately received an addition
at £11.18. 4, : hundred and seventy sittings, of which
"1819. The church is dedicated to Bt and thirty-three are free, the Incorporated Si
‘The manor-house was the occasional residence enlargement of churches and chapels having
("Vm and of Elizabeth, before she ascended £100 towards defraying the expense. - There is
llegrew, a wit, dramatist, and of worship for Baptists. Kemmeh%m
almshouses for ten poor persons.  There
i plsc an endowed chapd;tWashbonmht\mW e
HANWORTH, a pnnsh in the morthern diviskm HARBLEDOWN (ST, Mlcm\m.ym yarish
idf the hundred of Erpineuam, county of Norvork, hundred of WesreaTe, lathe of St. A
5% miles (N.byE) from Aylsham, containing 250 of Kenrt, 1§ mile (W.8.W.) from Cante:
inhabitants.  The living is a discharged vleahge ing:678 inhabifarita, Thelivitg tv avebtery) 1
ﬁmmﬁoryofﬁmton,mthe archdeaconry of deaconry and diocese of Canterbury, mmw
,anddioeeoequmwich,ntedmthnkhg books at £9. 2. 6., and in the : of the
$£5. 1.8, * The church is dedicated to St. bishop of Canterbury. “The urch, ‘dedicated 1
; Michael, hulawlyreueindmm ;
(OOLD), a parish in the ustem and eighty-four fmﬁtﬁﬂgb " the
. ofAtum,pamdm:m-,formem!nganmt of churches and
¢ Mj&ﬁf’hﬁem ‘8% miles (N. N. E) from to i
ining 67 inhabitants. The living is a
! ; of Stow, and
. Mmthekiﬁg»sbouklat £5. 10,,
* patronage of Robert Cracroft, !
 t wsmmmmym
as m« mmmﬁm




and  expense of the counhesofhioectarand

RBOROUGH (MAGNA), a parish in the Kirby
ththundndef KnicuTLOW, county of WAR-
miles (N.N. W.) from Rngby, eonmnmg 319
3. The living is a rectory, in th

t: uddloc-eofLichﬁclddeovenu-y,
,Hng'sboehttdl4 18. 4., and in the
Ladyl.nish. Thech\wdxu dediatedtoAllSamts

; a market town
p Qll‘ilh of BowpEn-Maena, hundred of Gar-
. r of hm;;nu, mﬂu (N) fro:lnd Nor-
: MA )“ Ec_ s.) I‘mmr 83

7N.) from London,

The petty sessions for thehuadrodofcmmj
here occasionally; and a court leet and baron fm'
mmorunlsoheld,butatunoempenodl
m curacy, mthemhdewonryoflmcenq,

of Lincoln, and in the pa of the Dean

and Canons of ChnszChurch Oxford. The church,
which is dedicated to St. onnyums, is a large, handsome,

. and uniform edifice, and ranks among the finest in the

county : it consists of a nave, aisles, and a chancel, with
two tiers of windows, two porches and a tower, havmg

an octangular crocketed spire : it is said to have been
built by John of Gaunt, about the year 1370. There
are places of worship for Independents and Wesleyan
Methodists. ~ Here is a free grammar school, founded
about 1614 by Robert Smith, a native of this place,
and Chamberlain of London, who purchased of the lord
an annuity of £ 10 per annum,

quent benefactions, but the whole being i

for the support of aclasswdteacher it has htdybem

converted into a National lchoolmdin;“hlgl‘;mw one

hundred boys are gratuitously. gives

the titles of bnrot::ﬁd earl to the family of Sherard.
HARBOTTLE, a township in the parish of HarLuy-

sTONE, western division of CoQUETDALE M wm

of Nounvuunuun, 2 miles (N.W.) from.

containing 181 inhabitants. A place of worship for P

bybenmwuerected m1756. 'l‘haemtwofnh‘qfu

endowed thheertampropmypmdncingil& mlm.
for which sixteen children are educated, besides thirteen
others instructed at the expense of Thomu Clennell,
The castle, now in ruins, was, in the reign of Ed-
ward L, a very strong fortress, and sustained the reiter-

S’

ated attacks of the whole Scottish army in. lm. ‘Hither

@
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w.gmle in lﬁlﬂ,ﬂmded a school for teac
children of the parish, and endowed it with £20 a year,
which is paid to the master, who reddes’in a house
appropnated ‘to his use.

~HARBY, a parish in the hundred of Framuanv,

ty of Lercester, 8% miles (N.) from Melton-

bray, containing 457 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king’s books at £20, and in the
patronage of the Duke of Rutland., The church is de-
dicated to St. Mary. The Nottingham and Grantham
canal passes through the parish. Here are several
chalybeate springs, and in the village is an ancient
stone cross.

HARBY, a chapelry in the parish of Nortr Crrr-
ToN, northern division of the wapentake of NEwARk,
county of NorriNneuAM, 8% miles (W.) from Lincoln,
containing 267 inhabitants. The chapel has lately re-
ceived an addition of one hundred and ten sittings, of
which eighty are free, the Incorporated Society for the

t of churches and chapels having granted
£60 towards defraying the expense. There is a place
ef worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

' HARCOURT, a township in the parish of Stanron

ipon Hine Heata, Whitchurch division of the hundred
of Braprorp (North), county of Savor, containing 34

" inhabitants,

HARDENHUISH, a parish in the hundred of
. CnrereNaaMm, county of Wivts, 14 mile (N. W.) from
Chlppenhun containing 70 inhabitants. The living is a

| rectory not in charge, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and

| diocese of Salisbury, and in the patronage of T. Clut-
. terbuck, Esq.. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas.
Chmtopher Anstey, Esq., author of the New Bath Guide,

' and of several miscellaneous poems, died here in 1805.

«Ohty_pmﬁ LANCASTER,

HARDHAM, a parish in the hundred of Bury, rape

‘of AruNpEL, county of Sussex, 6 miles (8. E. by E.)
‘from Petworth, containing 114 inhabitants. The living
isa diocharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Chichester, rated in the king's books at £5. 5. 10., and
_endowed with £1600 royal bounty. Sir C. F. Gormg,
- Bart. was patron in 1788. The church, dedicated to
Qt. B&olph is in the early style of English architecture.
The parish is bounded on the east, north, and south
3% ‘river Arun, andpnrtlyontheweatbyahranch
the Rother, which there falls into the Arun. A
priory delack canons, in honour of the Holy Cross,
orofSt.Geotge,wufoundedhm butbywhomiaun—
certain. v
HARDHORN, a joint township with Newmn !n
the parish of Pom.'rox, hundred of Auommr.mmm,
4 mile (B ) from Paul-
Sﬁ WW" i

early style of English architecture. The river Bﬁ,
a branch from the Grand Junction canal to N ;
ton, pass through the parish, and join at C
where are commodious wharfs and wmhousu
are many fine springs of water, and some which a
strongly impregnated with iron. Near the side of |
London road is one of the beautiful monumental
erected by Edward I. to the memory of his consort
Eleanor, called Queen's Cross, to the south-west of
which is a commanding eminence crowned by the re-
mains of Danes’ camp, & circular fortification enclosing
an area of more than four acres, and supposed to have
been constructed by Sweyn, the father of Canute. Inan
adjoining field the skeletons of soldiers have been found, SF
buried with their arms, consisting of swords, speangu.,
also some earthen vessels of a peculiar shape. A battle,
called the battle of Northampton, was fought here, in
which the Duke of Buckingham and other nobles were
killed, and Hem'y VI. was made prisoner, in the 38th
year of his reign. James Hervey, author of the Me-
ditations, was born at this vxllage in 1714. i
HARDINGTON, a parish in the hundred of
MERSDON, county of SoMERSET, 4% miles (N.W. b
from Frome, containing 31 inhabitants. The liv
a discharged rectory with that of Hemington,
archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of Bath and Wdll\, )
rated in the king's books at £6, and in the pat
of Sir G. Ba.mi'ylde, Bart. The church is dedicated to
St. Mary. "hm i
HARDINGTON MANDEVILLE, a pu'lsh in the
hundred of HounpsBOoROUGH, Bnnmcx, and ‘COKER,
county of SoMERsET, 44 miles (8. w.) from Yeovil,
containing 537 inhabitants. The living is a x 3
the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of Bath and
Wells, rated in the king's books at £9. 15.74. William
Helyar, Esq. was patron in 1823. The church, dedicated
to St. Mary, has hmlymcewedmaidiﬁonofme h!h-

HARDLEY, a parish in the lmndred of
county of NoRroLK, 7 milec (8. by w.) from 4




of S'r.Atmumu, county
) M‘Camtbnry containing 243
- , with the perpetual
~in the u'chdeac and diocese of
in’ the king's books at £19. 13. 14.,
in the of the Heirs of Lady Hardres.
church, dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul, is prin-
ly in the early style of English architecture. The
ncient Stane street passes through the parish. Eliza-
‘beth. Denward in 1785, gave a dwelling house and two
rooms, with lands and certain stock in the Navy
- five per cents., towards the support of a master and a
 mistress, who teach twenty boys and twelve girls upon
ﬁc National system.
 HARDROW, a chapelry in the parish of AyscarTH,
division of the wapentake of Hawea, North
i of the county of Yorxk, 18§ miles (W. by N.)
from Middleham. The population is returned with
sﬁlhe township of High Abbot-side. The living is a
: perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond,
2 cand diocese of Chester, endowed with £400 private
«benefaction, £800 royal bounty, and £400 parliamentary
B t, and in the patronage of Lord Wharncliffe, who
Enrecently endowed a school with £10. 10. per an-
num. Within  the parmh is a tremendous waterfall,

“dous - éoneof ice.
, ’i;WGK, a hamlet in the parish of Monk-
N, southern division of Easingron ward, county
ne of Durmam; 11 miles (E. by S.) from Durham.
on is returned with the parish. Here was
7 & chapel, which has been demolished. - A ser-
i) ~canal runs into Hardwick park, and passing
~under a handsome bridge, empties itself into a lake
Ay wmhg -about thirty-six acres. Artificial cascades and
- mock ruins of a monastery, the latter formed principal-
carved stones brought from the ancient priory of
orough, also adorn the grounds.
A ICK, a in the parish of StaNDISH,
- division of thehtn&edof WHITSTONE, county of
cnmm -5 miles (8. W, by 8.) from Gloucester,
446 inhabitants, The chapel has a low em-
d tower at the west end of the south aisle. The
~and Berkeley canal passes through the cha-
vh@vuthemudbummd e-rl to
y of Yckd‘- P )

dedicated to St. Lawrence.

Bichop of Ely, rated in the

2 miles (l.!.!.) fmtn

f« 2 #

R
HARDWICK, a parish in the hundred a!

0 Akl i
BURY, county of NorTHAMPTON, 34 miles (N. W byg) 84

IromWellmgbomugh containing 87 inhabitants.

ing is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Nm".hnnm
and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's

at £6. 17, 6. The Rev. H. Hugheswas patron in 1805.
The church is dedicated to St. Leonard,

HARDWICK, an extra - parochial lxberty, though
locally in the parish of Hawstead, hundred of THINGOE,
county of Svurrork, 1} mile (8. by w.) from Buary-
St. Edmund’'s. The population is returned with Haw-
stead. At Hardwick-house, in this liberty, lived and died
Sir John Cullum, a learned antiquary, and author of
the History of Hawstead.

HARDWICK (EAST), a township in the parish of
PonteFrRACT, upper division of the wapentake of Os-
GOLDCROsS, West riding of the county of York, 13
mile (N. by W.) from Pontefract, containing 96 inhabit-
ants. Stephen Cawood, in 1653, conveyed to trustees
certain estates for the purpose of erecting and main-
taining a chapel and a free school, and for other cha-
ritable uses : the annual income is £132, and thirty chil-
dren are educated free.

HARDWICK (PRIORS), a parish in the Burton-
Dassett division of the hundred of KineTon, county
of Warwick, 53 miles (8. E.) from Southam, containing
263 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, with the per-
petual curacy of Priors-Marston, in the archdeaconry of
Coventry, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in the king's books at £23. 16. 0§. The Duke of
Marlborough was patron in 1796. The church is de-
dicated to St. Mary. The Oxford canal passes through
the parish.

HARDWICK (WEST), a township in that part of
the parish of Wraesy which is in the upper division of
the wapentake of Oscorpcross, West riding of the
county of York, 4 miles (8. W.) from Pontefract, con-
taining 93 inhabitants.

HARDWICKE, a parish iu the hundred of Cor-
TESLOE, county of Buckinguam, 3% miles (N. by w,)
from Aylesbury, containing, with the hamlet of Weedon,
627 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdéa-
conry of Buckingham, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £39. 9. 7., and in the patronage of the
Wa.rden und Fellows of New College, Oxford. The church
is dedicated to St.Mary. John Bridle, D.D., in 1781,
founded a charity school and endowed it with lands,
the proceeds of which areappbed to the mctmctmof
eighteen boys and twelve girls. Sk
- HARDWICKE, a parish in the hnndredof
stow, county of CAMBRIDGE, 5§ miles (B. by N.) f
Caxton, oontammg 184 inhabitants, b,m
rectory, in the peculiar jurisdiction andpcm m

king's books l‘-’ “. 2.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

'HARDWICKE, a hamlet in M M Of th‘
of Auma\;upwt which is in the m
hundred ABERGAVENNY, county

Am

‘el‘rf i

W




. The hvmg is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry

W ‘f’h,ppﬁiamﬁxefﬁdha‘ :
v@?"of ®p, 5 miles (N.) from Bice
ing, with the parish of Tusmore, 98 inhabitants.

and diocese of Oxford, rated in the king's books at £5,
dowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
of Sir H. W, Dashwood, Bart. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Mary.
HARDY, a joint chapelry with Chorlton, in the pa-
rish of MancuESTER, hundred of SaLrorp, county pala-
tine of LANCASTER, 44 miles (8.5.W.) from Manchester.

- The population is returned with Chorlton, under which

the account of the living is given.

HAREBY, a parish in the western division of the
soke of BoriNeerokg, parts of LinpsEy, county of
LiNcoLN, 4% miles (W.) from Spilsby, containing 71
inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, united
in 1739 to the rectory of Bolmgbroke, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books
at £6. 4. 7. Earl Brownlow was patron in 1816. The
church is dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul.

HAREFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Ewv-
THORNE, county of MippLESEX, 43 miles (N.) from Ux-
bridge, containing 1228 inhabitants. =The living is a
donative, in_the jurisdiction of the Commissary of
London concurrently with the Consistorial Court of
the Bishop, and in the patronage of Charles Newdigate
Newdigate, Esq. The church, dedicated to the Virgin
Mary, contains several memorials of the ancient family
of Newdigate, and a splendid monument to the me-
mory of Alice, Countess of Derby, who, about 1637,
founded and endowed almshouses for six poor widows.
The Knights Hospitallers had here a preceptory, a cell
to that of St. John, Clerkenwell, the chapel of which,
still standing, is in the early style of English architec-
ture. The parish is bounded on the west by the river
Colne, and the Grand Junction canal passes through it.

HARESCOMB a parish in the middle division of
the hundred of Dupstone and King's BarToN, county
of GrovcesTer, 2% miles (W. by N.) from Painswick,
containing 104 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory with that of Pitchcomb, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's hooks at
£6. 8, and in the patronage of —Pernal, Esq. The

J m,ded:mted to St. John the Baptist, hu been lately

rebuilt, and the expenses defrayed by voluntary con-
tributions.

- HARESFIELD, a parish in the uj division of
the hundred of WaiTsTONE, county of GLOUCESTER,
ﬂmﬂu(ﬁ;w vg.;:om&roud,mmlngm
inhabitants a discharged vicarage, in the

~and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the

Bookl ullv‘,ddin m:mge of the Earl '

to St.Peter, ap-

miles (N.w. )
The living is a perpetml
diction and patronage of the f
in the king's books at £1. 15. 8. ;
cated to St. Denis, The petty sessions for the di
are held here every fourth Tuesday. This ptrish fo
part of the ancient Forest of
said King Edgar assassinated Earl Etkelwold for
deceitful conduct towards the fair Elfrida. The ear] had
a castle here, the scene of Mason's dramatic %
“ Elfrida.” ;
HAREWOOD, a parish comprising the towmhi ;
of Dunkeswith and Weeton, in the upper division oﬁ“"‘*
the wapentake of CrLaro, the township of East Keswick,
in the lower division, and the townships of Alwoodley,
Harewood, Weardley, Wigton, and Wike, in the upper
division of the wapentake of Sxyrack, West riding of
the county of York, and containing 2348 inhabitants,
of which number, 849 are in the township of Hm.
wood, 6% miles (W,8.W.) from Wetherby. The livix
is a dmcharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry 4
diocese of York, rated in the king's books at £ 14. 1. 10.,
endowed with £37 per annum private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of |the Pa-
rishioners and Mr. Wheeler alternately. The church,
dedicated to All Saints, was erected in the reign u* <
Edward ITL, upon the site of an edifice supposed to have 4
been built soon after the Conquest : it contains stately
monuments to the memory of several of the anclentpo.‘ A
sessors of Harewood, and one to the memory of the cele-
brated Sir William Gascongne, ‘Kut., Lord Chief Justice
in the reign of Henry IV., the upnght judge, who, form'»'
insult offered to the dxgmty of the bench, committed the
Prince of Wales (afterwards Henry V.) to prison. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The
parish is thought to contain coal, though none is obtained.
A charter for a market on Monday was granted to Lord
Strafford about 1633, also a fortnight fair in Summer and
two other fairs; the latter only are continued, and are
held on the last Monday in April, and the second llng-
day in October. Ontheaoclivxtyoflhm,tx the
of which winds the river Warf, are the noble rui
a castle, supposed to have been built about the ‘ ,
the erection of the original church, by one of the
Romellis : it afterwards came mtothe of :
celles, and was




‘ ‘in that pnrt of the parish
hlohfdnshe lower division of the hundred
= eomty palatine of Cnr.mn, 53 miles
oy | . The population is returned with
% uapu'pemalcmcy,inthe
; o md diocese of Chester, and in the patron-
: certain Trustees nominated by the parishioners
avin. The chapel is dedicated to St. Michael.
HARGRAVE, a parish in the hundred of Hicmam-
RRERS, county of NorTHAMPTON, 35 miles (W. by N.)
from Kimbolton, containing 192 inhabitants. The living
‘_h&xmtory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and
; se of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
,il& 6. 8. John Baker, Esq. was.patron in 1818. The
is dedicated to All Saints.

_HARGRAVE, a parish in the hundred of TuinGos,
ty of Surrork, 6§ miles (W.8.W.) from Bury-
Edmund's, containing, with Southwell Park 360 in-
wbitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
dSndbnry and diecese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £4, 11. 8. The Rev. John White was patron
in 1819,
) HARKSTEAD a parish in the hundred of Samrorb,

. aty of Surrork, 63 miles (S. by E.) from Ipswich,
aining 301 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
_den.conry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich,
the king's books at £11. 3. 9. The Rev, H,
ers was patron in 1803. The church is dedi-
Mary, besides which there was formerly a
dedicated to St.Clement. The navigable river
ns on the southern side of the parish.

i (TON, a parish in the soke of GrANTHAM,
ts of KesTEVEN, county of LiNcoLN, 3 miles (S. W.)
m 389 inhabitants, The living
is % the nry and diocese of Lincoln,
te h - at 825 6. 10%., and in the

: the Prebendaries of North and
% in the Guthedrnl Church of Salisbury.

Th M is. dedicated to St. Mary and St. Peter 5 its

to surmounted by a spire, and the chancel is sepa-

the nave hy&wvedwoodenscreen. The

1 canal passes through the

RL Y(KI.RKQ a puuh inoi-luNnmh-
of ‘m;m.w ward, county ORTHUMBER-
of andKlrkc:fHuﬂe and i
wick contann
‘mdwhlchunmber l%minth g

to the same

HARLE (WEST),atowmh.lp i )
WHELPINGTON, north-castern division of TiNDALE
ward, county of NorTHUMBERLAND, 144 miles (W hy
8.) from Morpeth, containing 64 inhabitants.
HARLESTON, & market town in the parish of
DENHALL, hundred of Earsnam, county of NorroLE,
19 miles (S.) from Norwich, and 991 (N. E.) from
London. The population is returned with the parish.
The original appellatwn of Herolfston, or Herolveston, of
which the present is a corruption, was derived from
Herolf, one of the Danish leaders who came over with
Sweyn, and settled in this part of the kingdom: in
the centre of the town stands a stone, formerly called
Herolf’s stone, whence probably originated the name of a
family to which belonged Sir John Herolvestone, who in
the reign of Richard IL. quelled a formidable insurrec-
tion in Norfolk and the neighbouring counties. The
town is situated on the high road from Bury-St. Ed-
mund’s to Yarmouth, about one mile from the river
Waveney, over which there is a bridge : it is lighted
with oil by subscription among the inhabitants, and well
supplied with water from springs, but not paved The
manufacture of hombazines has been carried on of
late years to a limited extent, The market is on Wed-
nesday : fairs are held on Midsummer-day, and on the
9th and 10th of September ; the latter, which is still
a large sheep and cattle fa.u:, formerly continued eight
days; on the st of December is a fair for Scotch cattle,
which continues one month, and which was removed,
hither many years since from Hoxne in Suffolle  The,
whole town is under the superior jurisdiction of the
Duke of Norfolk, who is lord of the manor, and has the.
tolls of the markets and fairs, holding courts for the
manor occasionally. In the centre of the town is a cha-.
pel of ease, dedicated to St. John the Baptist, which was.
rebuilt in 1726, and, enlarged in 1823, at the expense
of the parishioners, by taking in the site of the market
cross, which stood at the east end: the curate is no-
minated by the Master and Fellows of Emanuel College,
Cambridge, pursuant to the direction of Dr. Sancroft,
Archbishop of Canterbury, who in 1688 settled upon that

society £54 per annum, in trust, to nominate a chaplain

and schoolmaster, and pay him that swm for the performs.
ance of daily service in this chapel, and for the edueunpm
of youth. The chapel has lately received an additi
one hundred and fifty free sittings, towmhdefnymg
g of which the Incorporated . Soct;aty for, ﬂqu
argement of churches and chapels £100. There
are of worship for Independents and Wesleyan
Methodists, The rents of an estate in the adjoining par
of Rushall, purchased with £200, the gift of M
Dm,wlwdwdm 1690; likewise a rent-charge of 20
onapneeof land called the Fairstead, are appropriat;
se. A Natlon&loohoo) :




Esq. patron in 1826 i
_HARLESTONE, a paﬂuh in the lmmh'ed of Nonor-
‘r&h-Guovn, county of Nonfélwn, 4 miles (N. W.)
ﬁbm Northampton, 564 inhabitants. The liv-
ing is a rectory, in the aréhducanry of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterboron@g, rated in the king's books
at £20. 9. 7. R.Andrevn ‘Esq. was patron in 1809.
The church is dedicated to St. Andrew. On Delves
heath are vestiges of an ancient fortification.

HARLEY, a parish in the hundred of CoxpovER,
county of Sn.ov, 2% miles (N. W. by W.) from Much
Wenlock, ing 235 inhabitants. The living is a
recto , in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of

dluld Coventry, rated in the king's books at
£.5 12. 1., and in the patronage of Sir Edward Kynas-
ton, Bart. The church is dedicated to St.Mary. The
river Perry, and the Ellesmere canal, pass through the
parish.

HARLING (EAST), a market town and parish in
the kundred of Guinr-Cross, county of Norrork, 2%

v miles (8. w.) from Norwich, and 89 (N. E.by N.) from
London, containing 867 inhabitants. This place is called
East Harling and Market Harling, to distinguish it

* from the neighbouring parish of West Harling. It is
situated on the banks of a rivulet, between the towns
of Thetford and Buckenham : the streets are neither
lighted nor paved, but the inhabitants are well supplied
with water, The manufacture of linen was formerly

| considénble, but the town is now nearly destitute of
trade. A charter for a market and two fairs was grant-
ed in the reign of Edward IV.; the market is held
on Tuesday, and there are fairs for live stock on
May 4th, the first Tuesday after September 12th, a fort-
night Mmhaé]mas-day, and October 24th, and.a
r for hiring servants a fortnight before Michael-
mas-day. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
hooks at £12, and in the patro of John Steward, Esq.
The church, dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul, was erect-
. ed about the middle of the fifteenth century ; it is a fine
| :xﬁfum edifice, with a south porch, and a square tower
surmounted by an open battlement and a small spire :

‘the screen, separating the nave from the chancel, is

ﬂjﬂy carved, and the chancel windows are adorned

‘with ancient stained glass removed from the dilapidated

uundon_ot' Harling hall : ~adjoining the south aisle is a

chapel to the family of I'Iarling,
ch is an altar-tomb, with the recumbent

®

ﬂ"Bn‘Bnbu't Harh and his ,and
tombs and mem hOf individuals be-
places of wonhip fo&-

Met.hodiau

%mm nefvu'e
d of

HEAD, county of Bﬁnnﬁn, n:if
hill, containing 398 inhabit
chnrged vicarage, in the archdes
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the K
J. Cooper, Esq. was patron in mt
dedicated to St. Mary. ,
HARLINGTON, a parish in’ 'the BnﬂM ;
THORNE, county of ‘MipprLESEX, 4 miles (N, W. by W
from Hounslow, containing 472 inhabitants. The liv
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex, an:
diocese of London, rated in the kmgs books at £24.
The Rev. E. Davison was patron in 1822, The chureh;
dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul, has & Norman door=
way, and a square embattled tower at the west w«a
There is a place of worship for Baptists. H Ry
otherwise Arlington, gave the titles of baron and eﬂﬂw
the family of Bennet. L A
+HARLOW, a parish in the hundred of H:AB i
county of Essrx, 17 miles (W. by N.) from Chelm
and 23 (N.N.E.) from London, containing 19928 mhn;
bitants. The living is a vicarage, in the arch
of Middlesex, and diocese of London, rated in the
books at £15.7.11. The Earl of Guilford was'
tron in 1801. The chnrch, dedicated to St. Mary, "
partly destroyed by fire in 1711, but was rebuilt and
windows adorned with stained’ glass at the expe
of the Rev. Mr. Taylor, then vicar, and the ge '
the neighbourhood : the ancient tower, which rose :- f.
the centre of the original cruciform structure, hubﬁ At
succeeded by a cupola. There is a place of wo
Baptists. Harlow had formerly a weekly market, als
considerable woollen manufactory, but the chief br
of trade now is spinning. Fairs are held on May
for wool, November 28th for horses and cattle; 5
one on September 9th, called leow-BmN fair, ona’ i_
common about two miles from the village, whic hich is muchs
reshrted to. The petty sessions for the division are
held here every Monday. Almshouses for four
wery erected in 1717, agreeably to the wil]of
Reeve, who, in 1637, left £100 for ¥
* other almshouses were founded in 1651, by A
Stafford, for two widows, towards clothing iwm
Wright, in leg:g, bequeathed £160, a.nd, in 172
Taylor conv to trustees two
land, in further aid of both t‘bﬁe
HARLOWHILL, a t
OviNGHAM, eastern divi
of Non-rnvuuunm, A

s BN




i itants.
H, a pt-hhtn themred of
M g miles (E. by N.)

0 ning. 1076 it.(;t.w Thnerlaiv-
Muhted with that est Dray-
ar of Middldex, and diocese of

, in the king's books at £12, and in the
md J. G. De Burgh, Esq. ‘The church, dedi-

cated to the Virgin Mary, has a Norman door, and
‘tower with angular turrets and battlements.
+Hounslow heath, within this parish, is a square

“intrenchment, each side measuring one hundred yards,
to bave been the work of Cewsar in his war
Cassibelaunus.

 HARMSTON, a parish in the higher division of the
e of Boormsy-Grarro, parts of KesTeven,
~ county of Lancorn, 6 miles (8.) from Lincoln, contain-
ing 333 inhabitants. The living is a llmcharged vicar-
| age, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £7. 6. 8., endowed with £300
private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the
of Benjamin Thorold, Esq. The church is

to All Saints.

HARNHAM, a township in that part of the parish
‘. Boram which is in the north-eastern division of
“luuu ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 12 miles
w.) from Morpeth, containing 61 inhabitants,
: the site of an ancient fort, has been a place

{ .strength : it is situated on the brow of a preci-
e formed of rag-stone, having vast rocks on one
' ’M ‘& morass on the other ; the entrance, which is
‘a narrow defile to the northward was formerly
- 'HARNHAM (

i pEN and Capwortu, county of WiLts, 11 mile
W. by W.) from thabury containing 267 inhabit-
ants. The living is curacy with the vicarage
".&thuett, in peculiar jurisdiction of the

Prebendal court of Coombe and Harnham. The church

l is dedicated to St.George.

ST), a parish in the hundred of

~ HARNHILL, a parish in the hundred of Crow-
m and MiNery, county of GLOUCESTER, 4 miles
E.) from , containing }‘:’5 inhabitants.
is a disc in the a.rchdeaconry
' ,ﬂ.mw of Gmmmm king's hooks at
f’&dﬁ.b} and in the patronagé of the v.Robert
el\wch is dedicated to St. Michael. -
VDEN, a parish in the hundred of Daco-
Tty d Hllm:n,B;nM (N. zls'hbyi‘E) from
, containing 1693 inbabitants. e isa
y ‘anuexed to the rectory of Whmam
chdeaconry of Huntingdon, and dnocese
church, dedicated to St, Nicholas. is
: ' composed of flint and
e square embattled
: m of worship for Independents
! 8. Aﬁirforhormtndmﬂe

m.g ;m (hvaiiimﬂ
DlNNa miles
M

i |
%Roﬂe Theclmrchdedlutedwsu

?f’.‘,v"ﬁ " % ';' ¢
HAR

and diocese of
at £18, 11, 3., and in

T

belonged to the abbey of St. Michael de Monte, lndﬂl‘
uently given to Sion College

"HARPHAM, & parish in the wa
NG, East rndmg of the county of Yorxk, 54 miles (N.E.
by E.) from Great Driffield, containing 251 mhabltmu
The living is a perpetual curacy annexed to the vi
of Burton-Agnes, in the archdeaconry of the East ridi
and diocese of York. The church is the burial-place of
the family of St. Quintin, whose founder came over with
the Conqueror; their pedigree, from 1080 to 1777, shew-
mg an umnterrupted succession of twenty- elght gene-
rations in the male line, is beautifully represented in
stained glass in the windows : on the western side of
the church-yard are vestiges of the ancient family
mansion and fish-ponds. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists.

HARPLEY, a parish in the Lynn division of the
hundred of FrREEBRIDGE, county of NorroLk, 8 miles
(E. by N.) from Lastle-Rxsmg, conwmng 359 inhabit-
ants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's hooks at £2¢2,
A. Hamond, Esq. was patron in 1786. The church is
dedicated to St.Lawrence: the windows exhibit some
fragments of stained glass, of which the insignia of
that saint, viz., agndn-on, Or, is the most conspicuous.

HARPOLE a parish in the hundred of NosorTLE-
Grove, county of NorTHAMPTON, 4 miles (W.) from
Northampton, containing 687 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
£18, 13. 4. Earl Fitzwilliam was patron in 18083.
The church, dedicated to All Saints, is partly Norman,
and partly in the early style of English architecture.
There is a place of worship for Baptists. In pursuance
of an act of parliament passed in 1778 for enclosing
land, an allotment was made for the support of a free
school ; the rental is £50 a year, for which all children
who apply are educated.

HARPSDEN, a parish in the hundred of Bixrierp,
county of Oxrorp, 1% mile (8.) from Henley upon
Thames, containing, with Bolney, 223 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Oxford, rated in the king's books at £12. 10. 5., and in
the patronage of the Warden and Fellows of All Souls’
College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. Mar-

HARPSWELL, a parish in the western division of
the wapentake of Asvacok, parts of LiNpsey, county
of LincoLx, 7§ miles (E. by 8.) from Gainsborough,
contunmg 79 inhabitants. The living is a
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Stow, and diocese of
Lincoln, and in the patronage of Sir T. Wlnchcote,ﬂun.
The church is dedicated to St. Chad.

"~ HARPTON (LOWER), a township in that puld‘
the parish of OLp Rapnor (Wales) which is in the

hundred of WieMoRe, county of Hererorn, 14 mile
 inhabitants. .

(S.8.E.) fromNewRadnow,contnM?’
HARPTREE (EAST), a parish in the hundred of
WINTERSTOKE, county of Soxnln,: ml': Wiylx)

take of Du:le- ;

“

4§
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HAR,

Cathedral Church of Wells, rated in the
at £8. 15, The church, dedicated o St. T
a northern doorway in the Norman s
place of worship for Wesleyan M
house was erected by John' Newton,
per annum, the of William'
the schoolmaster for teaching poor
village is situated in a rich v‘alley,'cm the horth-eastem
side of the Mendip hills, where are several mines
of lapis calaminaris, in which are also found man-
ganese and chrystal spar; and above the village is a
curious cavern, the roof of which, consisting of lime-
stone rock, is splendidly ornamented with concretions
of stalactite. Richmond castle, an ancient baronial for-
tress of the families of Harptree and Gournay, stood
ahout half a mile north-westward from the church. It
was soned by the Empress Maud, in 1138, and
bort%;r:ftemrds besieged and taken by King Stephen,
but was not destroyed till the reign of Henry VIIL,
when its remains were removed for the purpose of
metln.%u private mansion,
PTREE (WEST), a parish in the hundred
of Curwrox, county of Somerser, 8 'miles (N. by n.)
from Wells, contdining 528 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bath, and
. diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at
- £13.19. 41, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
' King, as Prince of Wales. The church, dedicated to St.
Mary, has been partly destroyed, and the manor-house,
which displays several marks of antiquity, is converted
into a farm-house. Ten poor children are instructed for
£15 a year, the produce of a bequest by Samuel Lockier,
in 1817 ; and there is a benefaction for apprenticing
children, left by John Buckland, in 1673. Lapis cala-
minaris is obtained here to a considerable extent. Ralph
Buckland, a Roman Catholic priest and a learned
theological writer in the reign of James I, was born
her'e'

HARPURHEY, a township in the parish of Man-
CHESTER, hundred of SaLrorp, county palatine of
Lmasnn, 24 miles (N.N.E.) from Manchester, con-

297 inhabitants, The spinning, manufacturing,
"‘“&

of cotton are carried on here.
Y, a township in that part of the parish
‘of Sr. t’:vnnu, CarnisLe, which is in CuMBERLAND
ward, county of CumserrAND, 1% mile (8. E) from
, com 46 inhabitants,
"HARRATON, a townsh cﬁ in that part of the parish
of Cursrer le Srreer which is in th:fu;i)d‘;ﬂe division
" of Curster ward, county palatine RHAM, 8%
gﬂu (NUN.E.) from Durham, containing 2217 inhabit-
ants. Thaemvdmbkmdmvecoalminesmthe
ncighbourhood, one of which in 1708, whereby
it A it A ‘:;’&ii‘m
“explosion took place in t
individuals "loatptheir Tives. M w
& shipp!ng ddhlon tﬁew acre

5,';‘;, is held on the ‘BW Almsh ;
poorpersonsufl-hrﬂenp-nj W' scayed members
of ‘the Fishmongers’ Gampiny,mww 542, b
Mr. Mark Quested, citizen and ver of London,
Sir Charles Booth, in 1792, bequeathed certain
now producing upwhrds of £ 67 a year, for the
of a schoolmaster and a schoolmistress, who

thirty-five boys and twenty-six girls on the m

system. Kk T mrd
HARRINGTON, a small sea-port and i
Avrverpare ward above Darwent, county of ComMBER-

LAND, 22 miles (8.) from Workington, connlning ‘1845
inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester, rated
in the king's books at £7.7.8%., and in the patronage of
H. C. Curwen, Esq. The chureh is a neat structure, -
out a tower, standing upon an eminence a little jar
from the old village of Harrington, and eastward of
ngw town, which is a small but thriving sea-port,
wmerly termed Bella-port, situated at the mouth of a
stream called the Wyre, which falls into the Trish sea, and
subordinate to the port of Whitehaven. The harbour was
considerably improved at the expense of the Tate J. C.
Curwen, Esq., whose father constructed the first qﬂly
from which period its trade has been gradually increas-
ing. In 1760, not a single ship belonged to the port,
but there are now upwards of forty, averaging one hun-
dred and twenty-two tons each; they can sail’
into the town, loading and unloading before the houses,
and are chiefly employed in conveying large quantities
of coal obtained here to Ireland ; besides these; about
five hundred sloops annually take in lime, which “is
brought by land from the adjoining parish of Distingtor
for Scotland. Iron-stone and fire-clay abound in'‘the
parish, and much of both was formerly exported to
Scotland and Wales. The town now consists of several
streets, though seventy years ago not a si hémw
been erected. There are two shipwrights' yards, a
walk, and vitriol and copperas m
Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists have each a M #
worship. A school-house has been mmy(wny
subscription, to which the late Mr. Curwen was
principal contributor, for teaching cluldren on W
casterian plan, R s i
HARRINGTON, a parish in the m«m
parts of Linpsey, comty of Lincoun, 54 miles (N. N.
W.) from Spilsby, containing 105 inhabitants. :
living is a discharged , in the archdeac
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
£9. 16. 105. Mrs, Buckworth was
The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
HARRINGTUN a parish in t

WELL, Couty W




hmlw St. Jolm the Baptut. o
-place and joint town-

!with.&ltan. in. m of KNARESBOROUGH,
division of the wapentake of Craro, West

vof the county of Yorxk, 3 miles (S.W.) from
h, 15 (N.) from Leeds, 21 (W. by N.) from

Uﬁ, and 200 (N.N.W.) from London, containing,

© with 1934 inhabitants. This place, originally
called Heywragate, derives its appellation from being si-
tuated on the direct road from Knaresborough to Hey-
ward park. It comprehends the two villages of High
and . Low Harrogate, which are half a mile apart,
both standing on part of what was formerly the Forest
of Knaresborough, now enclosed and cultivated. High
occupies an eminence which commands the

view of an extensive landscape, diversified with woods,
fields, towns, and villages, and bounded by the motn-
tains of Craven, Hambleton hills, and the wolds of
Yorkshire. Low Harrogate is pleasantly situated in a
valley, and is adorned with many handsome stone
houses, erected principally for the accommedation of
visitors. The rapid increase of buildings renders it pro-
bable that the two villages will at no distant period
become united, The mineral waters, which have long
xendered Harrogate a place of fashionable resort from
“Qy to October, are of three kinds, chalybeate, sulphu-
reous, and saline chalybeate, sumlnr to the Cheltenham
waters. . In High Harrogate is the old spa, a chaly-
gprhg, which was discovered in 1571, by Cap-
“Wﬂhﬂ Slingsby, surrounded by a terrace sixty
_square in 1656, the sides of which furnish an
promenade, and surmounted by a handsome

m in 1786, at the expense of Lord Loughborough.
‘About three quarters of a mile to the westward is the
Temi& well, the water of which possesses similar proper-
These were the only chalybeate wells known for

a lm time ; but in 1819 a saline chalybeate spring was
discovered, ‘which is daily increasing in repute: the
~water is called water, from the similarity of
its mu to those of the purgative waters of Chel-
‘tenham ; and being private property, persons are ad-
amitted to the spa on. subsmbmgtwo shillings and six-
pence a week, and also to the grounds, in which are
5 nt walks, a large sheet of water, aad various or-

! plantations. . InLoanmptemtheold
”Matthefootof:hiﬂ_whxghrh'esto

~May 13th, July 6th, and October 11th.

and £200 ’bonuty lnﬂ n the
- Countess de Grey. The church,
’ . v A ¥ *
e i
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24
for the leuoa The mndimlﬂ quali
ﬁﬁm waters is, pmnclpdl tonic_a
that of the sulphureous ltrong{
are nc;:i 1ext:o:rnally and in
parti y serviceable in scorbutic complaints, and dis-
orders of the skin. The principal place of pubh?rtqgt
is a large and elegant room near the sulphur wells, called
the Promenade room, which is supplied with medJ@l
publications, an appropriate library, and an organ, on
which, durmg the season, an organist plays every morn-
ing and evening, and on Sunday evenings there is a per-
formance of sacred music ; the terms of subscription are
moderate. In High Harrogate are also a good library
and a theatre, the latter being open during the months
of July, August, and September. Assemblies are held at
the different hotels three or four nights in the week
during the season; and there are races in summer.

A chapel, dedicated to St. John, was erected in High
Harrogate in 1749, by subscription, Lady Elizabeth
Hastings having been a liberal contributor : it is a neat
edifice of freestone, containing several marble monu-
ments to the memery of visitors who have died here ;
and it has lately received an addition of two hundred
and forty sittings, of which one hundred and eighty-six
are free, the Incorporated Society for the enlargement of
churches and chapels having granted £200 towards de-
fraying the expense. The living is a perpetual curacy,
in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Ches-
ter, and in the patronage of the Vicar of Knaresho A
In Low Harrogate is a small church or chapel, erected
in 1824, and containing about seven hundred and fifty
sittings, of which five hundred are free,the Incorporated
Society having granted £ 500 for that purpose. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeacorry and diocese
of York, and in the patronage of the Crown. There is
a place of worship for Independents in High Harrogate,
and one for Methodists midway between the two, vil-
lages. - There is also an endowed school for the children
of the poor of Bilton cum Harrogate. The Bath hospital
was erected by subscription in 1826, upon a plot of
land near the hogs, granted for that purpose by the Earl
of Harewood ; and here the poor may obtain the benefit
of the mineral waters free of expense : at present only
twenty-four patients can be accommodated, but it is in
contemplation to enlarge the building, and extend the
benefits of the institution.

HARROLD, a market town and parish in the hun-
dred of WiLLey, county of Beprorp, 8 miles (N, W.
by W.) from Bedford, and 58 (N.N.W.) from London,
conmnmg 939 inhabitants. This small town is siw
in a fertile agricultural district, on the banks of the
river Ouse, over which there is a stone bri The
brl\nch of manufacture carried on is that of lace.
is a small market on Tuesday ; and fairs for the
cattle and are held on the Tueudays

sions for the hundreds of Barford, Stoddm,u‘«? ille
mehxeﬂyd;h:lcdhﬂe but sometmttb‘ soe,

ving is a harged vicarage, in -
Bediord, and, diocese of Lincoln,
books at £8, endowed with, uﬁm

y, and are con-i..' 3
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almshouses for six FOor widows were founded in 1723,
by Mrs. Anne Jolliffe, and sub:eqndnﬂyreedvad a small
endowment from a benefaction by her niece, Ann Mead,
who also gave £20 per annum to the Vicar, for an after.
noon lecture every Sunday. A priory was 'founded here
in the reign of Stephen, which afterwards beécame a
convent of Augustine nuns, the revenue of which, at the
dissolution, was estimated at £47.3. 2.: there-are no
remains of the conventual buildings except the refec-
tory, which has been used as a barn.

HARROW on the HILL, a parish (formerly a mar-
ket town) in the hundred of Gore, county of MippLE-
sex, 9miles (N.W. by W.) from London, containing, with
the hamlet of Weald with Greenhill, 3017 inhabitants.
This place is chiefly distinguished on account of the
free g ar school, founded in the reign of Elizabeth,
in 1571, which ranks among the most celebrated classical
scl\ooh in England. The founder was John Lyon, a
native of the neighbouring hamlet of Preston, who, in
1590, drew up a set of statutes for the school, in which,
among various regulations, he directed that the pupils
thm%. ‘be instructed in archery, and it was customary,
lmﬁ'f about the middle of the last century, for the scholars
%0 hold an annual festival on the 4th of August, when
they 8hot at a mark for a silver arrow: this usage having
‘been abolished, public speeches are now delivered on the
enniversary of that day: the school is under the di-
rection of six governors. The head master has a salary
of £20 per annum from the funds of the institution,
with liberty to take private pupils; the second master
has £10 per annum ; and there are six assistant masters;
but the emoluments of all these gentlemen are ptinci-
pally derived from stipendiary tuition. The school is
frec for all boys belonging to the parish of Harrow, who
are entitled to gratuitous instruction, but very few avail
‘themselves of the privilege. The number of boys
not on the foundation is usually between three and four
hundred, and they enjoy all the privileges attached to
the lnttitutian Two exhibitioners from this school are
admitted at Cambridge, and two at Oxford, with pen-
sions allotted by the founder, who directed that £20
per annum should be divided among them, but they
now receive £20 per annum each for eight years, The
governors have not long since instituted two annual
scholarships, with pensions of £52. 10. for four years
at either of the Universities. The rents of the estates
given for the of this institution' by Mr. Lyon,
amounted in 1795 to £669 per annum, which was expend-
ed by the’ ‘governors in paying salaries and exhibitions,
eds - poor children, relieving decayed housekeepers
repairing roads, &c., agreeably to the directions of the
donor : at present the income is much more considerable,

part of the eutawshuvnﬁbémleton building leases. A

charter was granted by Henry 1IL. to the inhabitants of

W, for a market on Mond:y,mdahw fair ;

the former has been dihcbntmubd‘,bnt*h MM’held on
“the jnm Monday in Au,

ed on, the trade of

“eated to St. Mary, is a spacious
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s structure, with a tower
and lofty spire at the west end the pillars between the
nave and the aisles, and GW“@W
is a curious Norman doorway, probably formed portions
of a church recorded to hdve been founded by Lanfrane,
Archbishop of Canterbury, in the reign of William L. ; buit
the remainder of the edifice appears to have been rebuilt
in the latter part of the fourteenth century : in this
church was interred the celebrated poet and

Sir Samuel Garth. There is a chapel.of elle&xﬂn

ner, in this parish. Here are places of - for
Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists. - Besides the gram-
mar school, there is a charity school for twelve poor
children, with a small endowment, partly from a be-
quest by Edward Robinson, in 1711; and alsova
school on the National plan. At the extremity of sthe
parish, towards Stanmore, was anciently a priory calléd
Benethly, or Bentley, the site of which now forms part
of the estate of the Marquis of Abercorn, who has
near it a splendid and richly furnished mansion, called
Bentley Priory. The learned Dr. Samuel Parr was born,
in"1747, at Harrow, )where his father practised as an
apothecary,) and died at Hatton, in Warwickshire; fn
1825. 1Ny

HARROWBY, a township in that part of the parigh
of GranTaAM which is in the wapentake of Wrnmy-
BRIGGS and TaRreo, parts of Kestevex,. county’of
Lincoun, 14 mile (E.) from Grantham, containing 45
inhabitants. Harrowby gives the titles of: barom. lnd
earl to the family of Ryder.

HARROWDEN (GREAT), a parish in the lulm’ln‘l
of OrLINGBURY, county of NorrmAaMPron, 2% miles
(N.N.W.) from Wellinghorough, containing 140 inhabit-
ants. The living is a discharged vicarage, with which
that of Little Harrowden is united, in the archdeaconry
of Northnmpmn, and diocese of P , ~rated
jointly in the king's books at £13. 3. 8., and ed‘.qi
with £200 private benefaction, and m'royd’hkhnty
Earl Fitzwilliam was patron in 1808, The churchuis
dedicated to All Saints. I {houmen

HARROWDEN (LITTLE), a parish in, the hundred
of OrLINGBURY, county of NorTHAMPTON, 8 miles
(N.W. by N.) from Wellingborough, containing 420 in-
habitants. The living is ldnchm'godww
to that of Great Harrowden, in the
Northam and ‘diocese .of Petes! Jm
with £200 private benefaction, and £200 unlm
The chureh is dedicated to St. Mary. - oo

~ HARSLEY (EAST), a parish in the wap '
Brrororta, North: o@*ﬂw: C
miles (N.E. by E.) from ;
inhabitants. .| The livh‘tah' a

arch
gg::d t}xgcson M
ty 0 N.M
"HARSLEY (W
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0 HARSTON m,hundmdofrumm,
weounty of LEicesrer, 6 miles (8, W. by W.) from

- 162 inhabitants. The living is a

mm m.cheMonry‘ot‘lam

1and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
8. 1. 8.;and in the of the Crown, The church,
~dedicated to St. Michael, has lately received an addition
-of fifty sittings, of which twenty-seven are free, the

Society for the enlargement of churches

+Incorporated
&ighpds hwmg granted £50 towards defraying the

3t »H&ESWEI.L a parish in the Holme-Beacon division
rof .the ‘wapentake of HamrrmiLr, East riding of the
«county: of York, 8% miles (W. by 8.) from Market-
[Weighton, containing 78 inhabitants. The living is a
'discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of the East
rand: diocese of York, rated in the king's books
‘at £4, - Slingsby, Esq. was patron, in 1816. The
.church  is dedicated to St. Peter.
#r ‘HART, a parish in the north-eastern division of
Srockron. ward, county palatine of Durmam, com-
prising the townships of Dalton-Piercy, Elwick, Hart,
rsnd: Throston,; and containing 590 inhabitants, of which
number, 231 are in the township of Hart, 41 miles
{wsN.W.) from Hartlepool. The living is a vicarage,
swith the perpetual curacy of Hartlepool, in the archdea-
{conry of Northumberland, and diocese of Durham, rated
in the 's books at £11.17. 1., and in the patronage
‘of ‘the Crown, | The church, dedicated to St, Mary Mag-
«dalene, has a low massive tower with Norman piers and
-arches; and contains an enriched font, In the register are
recorded the deaths of eighty-nine victims to the plague
vim 1587, The strata of magnesian limestone extending
‘meross ithe My from Nottingham terminates in this
(RS T2
n.;mmmz, u‘mmllup in the parish of STockTON
~mpon Tres, south-western. division of StockTon ward,
wnnty palatme of DuraaAM, 14 mile (8. W. by W.) from
Tees, containing 121 inhabitants.
m&ummnm a pl‘nth comprising the townships,
~of High Angerton, Low Angerton, Corridge, Hartburn,
Hartburn-Grange, Highlaws, Longwitton, North Mid-
‘wdleton; South Middleton, .. Rothley, East Thornton,
'West Thornton, Todridge, and Whitridge, in the west-
) of Morerra ward, and the townships of
Gmbo, Deanham, Fvvinlqy -otherwise Farnlaws, Green-
i ] Hall, Harwood, East

‘HAR

‘HARTBURN-GRANGE, a a_township in_ ‘
of the parish of HarTBURN which. i t)em
division. of Morerrn ward, county 5 NoRTHUM)
m. 9 miles (W.) from Morpeth, containing 68

itants, g
HARTEST, & parish in the hundred of Bankren,
county of SurroLK, 7 miles (N.E.) from Clare, con-
taining 740 inhabitants. The living is a rectory with
that of Boxted, in the archdeaconry of Sud ﬂ)d
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's book
£29. 14. 2., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedlcated to All Saints. Almshouses for four
widows were founded in 1646, by Thomas Wright, whe
left a small rent-charge to keep them in repair. Thomas
Sparke, in 1721, bequeathed a house and land, now pro-
ducing an annual income of £50, for tcachmg children.

HARTFIELD, a parish in_the hundred of Hart-
FIELD, rape of PEVENSEY, county of Sussex, 6 miles
(E.8.E.) from East Grinsted, comprising North and
South Hartfield, and containing 1440 inhabitants, of
which number, 474 are in North Hartfield, and 966 in
South Hartfield. The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese of Chichester,
rated in the king's books at £10, and in the patronage
of the Rector of Hartfield ; the rectory is a sinecure,
rated at £7, and in the patronage of the Heirs of the
Duke of Dorset. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is
partly in the early, and partly in the decorated, style of
English architecture. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. The rivers Medway, Bole,
and Kentwater, run through the parish, which includes
part of Ashdown Forest: there are some fields, called
Castle fields, probably the site of an ancient fortress.
The Rev. Richard Rennes, in 1640, founded a free school,
and endowed it with certain property, now producing
£27 per annum ; and, in 1725, the Earl of Thanet gave
a rent-charge of £10 a year, in augmentation of the
master’s salary, for which all children who apply are
instructed, There is a spring, the water of which pos-
sesses similar efficacy to that of Tunbridge Wells.

HARTFORD, a chapelry in that part of the P‘" sh
of GrEAT Bupworta which is in the second division
of the hundred of Eppissury, county palatine of
CuESTER, 1§ mile (S.W. by W.) from Northwich, con-
taining 772 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £1000 parliamentary grant, and in the
pntronageofthreeTmteesonthepartofthetoqndqn
The chapel is dedicated to St.John, Here is an en-
dowed school, also a Sunday school supported by
profits of a bazaar, which in 1828 amounted to
than £100. ‘ LY

HARTFORD, a parish in the hundred of Hurst L“‘
STONE, county of HUNTINGDON, 14 mile (E. b N. ,
Huntingdon, containing 371 inhabitants. The living is
discharged vmnge,mtheuchdeacomqf'ﬂm ingd
uddweueofldncolmruedmthe
£4. 1. 04, endowed with, £900Tx:yal
t.he nage of the Crown, The clm-cl;,

Saints, has various pomm msﬁemm qle
of architecture, o
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HARTEORD (WEST), mmap% the pacieh of
Hom,nmdivﬁmcfcmnmd.emwd
NORTHUMBERLAND, 6§ miles (8. E. by 8.) from Morpeth,
con! 57 inhabitants, Tlu river Bl is here
crossed by a bridge on the north road.

HARTGROVE, a. in the parish of Fonr-
MELL-MAGNA, in that part of the hundred of SixpENNY-
Haxprey which is in the Shaston (West) division of
the county of Dorser, 4 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Shaftes-
bury, containing 274 inhabitants. The curacy is annexed
to the vicarage of Iwerne-Minster, in the archdeaconry
of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol. The chapel is dedi-
cated to St. Peter.

HARTHILL, a parish in the higher division of the
hundred of Broxron, county palatine of CHESTER, 7
miles (8.W. by 8.) from Tarporley, containing 147 inha-

.. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-

and diocese of Chester, endowed with £200

private benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the

of Thomas Tyrwhitt Drake, Esq. The church,

dedicated to All Saints, was erected about 1609 ; it has

no tower. There are several quarries of a soft sand-
stone in the parish.

* . HARTHILL, or HARTLE, a township in the pa-

rish of BakgweLy, hundred of Hicu PeAx, county of

-DEersy, 3} miles (8.8.E.) from Bakewell, containing 60

inhabitants.

HARTHILL, a parish in the southern division of
the wapentake of StrarrorTH and Tickminn, West
riding of the county of Yorxk, 9% miles (8.8.E.) from
Rotherham, containing, with the township of Wood-
all, 650 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £18. 11. 10§. The Duke of Leeds was pa-
tron in 1812. The church is dedicated to All Saints.
The Rev. John Hirst, in 1812, bequeathed certain pro-
perty, producmg about £16 a year, for the education

, in addition to which, £ 12, the annual dona-
tlnl\ of the Duke of Leeds, is paid in augmentation of
thz master's salary.

HARTING, a parish in the hundred of Dumprorp,

rape of CricHesTER, county of Svssex, 7 miles (W.
&&i)‘ Afrom Midhurst, containing 1072 inhabitants.
ving comprises a rectory and a vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Chichester, the former rated

mﬁl&Wﬂ books at £26. 13. 4., and in the patronage
of Sir H. Fetherstonhaugh, Bart., and the latter at £9,
, m&&ﬁﬁ of the Rector. The church, dedicated to

St/Mary,is partly in the early,and partly in the decorated,
style of h architecture. There is a place of wor-
ship for Independents. has the privilege of

oys to the school founded by Mr, Oliver

. An hospital for lepers, in honour

of StJohn the Baptist, was established here by Henry
mthe time of X
\RTINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Wirxs-

wmyofnwm,

‘miles (8. W.) from Bakes

' which have
but fairs are held at Newhaven, for cs '
hardware, on the 2nd i
ber 30th ; the latter is also agzeat plauv.teﬁm %
are lead ‘mines. in the . parish,  Hartington glnm
title of marquis to the family of Cavendish, Dukes of
Devonshire.

HARTINGTON, a township in that plrt,of ﬁh
parish of Harrsurx which is in the north-eastern divis
sion of TinpaLe ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND,
124 miles (W. by N.) from Morpeth, containing 55 inha-
bltants

HARTINGTON-HALL, a township in that past
of the parish of HarrpumrN which is in the north.
eastern division of TinpALe ward, county of NOB“;
UMBERLAND, containing 45 mhabxtanta.

HARTLAND, a parish and sea-port (furmerly Q
market town) in the hundred of HARTLAND, coi
of Devon, 14% miles (W. by 8.) from Bideford, 53
(W.N.W.) from Exeter, and 2153 (W. by 8.) from Lon-
don, containing 1968 inhabitants, This place probably
owed its origin to a convent said to have been originally
founded by Githa, wite of Earl Godwin, in the reign
of Edward the Confessor; and re-founded for canoms
regular of the order of St. Augustine, by Geoffrey Dinant,
in the reign of Henry II., the revenue of which, at the
dissolution, was £306. 13, 24. : a modern mansion now
occupies the site of the ancient conventual edifice, some
portions of which are retained, particularly the cloisters,
forming the basement story of the eastern and western
fronts of the mansion. The town is bleakly situated on
a cape which terminates in the promontory of Hartland
point, about three miles to the north-west; and on the
south are some marshy heights, among which is the
source of the river Torridge : the government is vested
in a portreeve. An act of parliament. passed in the
reign of Queen Elizabeth for completing this poxt,
which is subject to the port of Bideford : there is a pier
or quay on the coast, two miles westward from the town,
the descent to which is very steep, being bfm cut
in the rocky cliff. Coasting-vessels here |
their cargoes of coal and limestone, and receive
export ladings of corn, &e. Off the coast isa’
fishery, in which the inhabitants of the town are i
ested, they having advanced money to the fis] >
Bideford to enable them to s hit.
market-house ; but tho mrkea




i “in the lower’ divmon of the

w of Onwn.wnow, county of WoORCESTER, 2
miles (. by 8.) from Stourport, and containing 1857
inhabitants. ~ The living is a rectory, in the peculiar
jurisdiction of the Rector, rated in the king's books at
£30, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Worcester.
The church, dedicated to St. James, has considerable
in the Norman style of architecture, and some

it the decorated style. The free grammar school is one
of the five in the county having alternately the right
of ‘presentation to six scholarships in Worcester College,
Oxford, founded by Sir Thomas Cookes, Bart.: the exact
period of its establishment is unknown, but it existed in
1400 : in the 1st of Elizabeth it was by charter made a
royal foundation, when twenty discreet men of the pa-
rish were constituted a body corporate, with a common
seal, for the ent of its funds, &c. ; there are
now, however, o seven trustees: its possesslons
eomsist of about one hundred and eighty-four acres of
land, the vental of which is about £120: the head
master and the under master have, in addition to their
salary, each a good house, and liberty to take boarders.
A''school for twelve girls was founded and endowed
with £200, by Mrs. Hanmah Eyre, in 1726; and a
Sunday school, under the patronage of the Bishop, was
established in' 1824, which is supported by voluntary
eéontributions, and attended by about ninety children.
Hartlebury castle has long been the residence of the
diocesans, to whom it was given by Burthred, King of
the present is a neat brick mansion, erected
‘bﬂ‘h of the Restoration, the ancient castle
li'dﬂngbeeh taken by Colonel Morgan in 1646, and de-
stroyed during the great rebellion. The Staffordshire
uﬂWmemﬂnn canal pnuee through the mnorth-

i

HARTLEPOOL, a sea-
port, borough, and parish, in

&&)  Srockron ward, county pa-
ny latine of DurmAM, 19 miles

W7 (E.S. E) from Durham, and
~IWZ 257 (N. by W.) from London,
containing 1249 inhabitants.
. In the time of the Normans
thisplmeobtamedthename
of Hart le pol, the
pool or mere of the “ Harts,"
Mg 23 or deer, from its situation on

; ﬂ@u the mouth of the Tees, on a
quented by deer. The earliest mention

the north-eastern division of *

Hﬁmhomnﬁlﬂumdof'., tter demolition by
mm,wheh% lan lace in the
year 800. In 1171, H of Bar, brought his fleet
into St. Hildw's bay, with a body of Flemish soldiers, in-

tended to assist William, King of Scotland, in his inva-
sion of England. The famllyof Bruce were lords of
Hartness, but on the accession of Robert Bruce to the
throne of Scotland, his estates in England were forfeit-
ed, and Hartlepool was conferred on Robert de Clifford.
Soon after this it was attacked by Sir James

whose soldiers committed great devastation in the m.
compelling the inhabitants to take refuge on board the
vessels in the bay, to preserve their lives and p

During the invasion of Scotland by Edward I and his
immediate successors, the port was frequently vmted,
and its ships and sailors pressed into the service. In
1346, it furnished five ships and one hundred and forty-
five men towards the armament prepared by Edward TIT.
for the invasion of France. It was at this time a place of
considerable importance, and on the insurrection of the
northern lords it was taken possession of and garrison-
ed-bythem. The royalists held it during the early part
of the contest between Charles I. and his parliament ;
but in 1644, when the Scots entered England to assist
the parliament a second time, Hartlepool was taken by
the Earl of Calender, who threw up intrenchments, placed
a garrison in the fortress, and kept possession of it till ©
1647, when, with other northern towns, it was transferred
to the parliament. It appears to have been strongly for-
tified : within the walls was a basin which served as
a harbour ; it comprised nearly twelve acres of ground,
and was guarded by a range of towers on each side,
and at the entrance were two round towers, with
a chain capable of being thrown acrose the mouth of
the harbour, which was so capacious that one hun-
dred large ships might anchor in it, secare from
storms or the enemy : it is now nearly choked up, and
in 1808 it was granted to an individual who enclosed
it for cultivation, but an indictment having been brought
against him, a verdict was obtained at Durham in 1813,
and the undertaking was abandoned. The old walls and
forts are in ruins, yet sufficient still remains to convey,
probably beyond those of any others in the kingdom,
a‘correct idea of the ancient method of fortification.
On the moor near the town are two batteries mounted
with cannon and defended by an intrenchment,

The town stands on a kind of peninsula formed by
the German ocean, and consists of one principal and seve-
ral smaller streets ; but it is only scantily supplied with
water from a few we]ls The surrounding scenery is of
& romantic character, particularly along the sea-shore,
where the shelving precipitous rocks, which the Mof
the waves has hollowed into caverns and recesses, present
a wild and picturesque ce : several ‘houses
have been erected for the accommodation of numerous
visitors, who resort to the town for "“‘wﬁr ’m
out the walls, near Water gate, is a celebrated dm
spring, called the Spa Wi whi'chthh covered by
at ‘water: it contains iron wi Epcun uhre
omh:‘:& ‘some sea-salt, and a little ‘ m
the oou&embottery is m i
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mdapnnetpdetut‘oﬁcer,twohdevm,mdbout-
men, are the only custom-house stationed here.

The limits nftheportextend from the Black shore inthe
river Tees on the south, to the Blackhalls on the sea-shore
northward. The present harbour, which is distinct from
the old one, possesses considerable advantages for com-

merce: it is formed by a pier projecting from a point
to the south of the southern wall, which having become
greatly dilapidated, application was made to govern-
ment for assistance towards repairing it, but without
success : a subscription was then set on foot with a
view to raise £3500, the amount estimated to be neces-
sary for that purpose : in 1811 and the two succeeding
years, the sum of £1857 was raised, and expended
thereon ; but this being wholly insufficient, an act of
parliament was passed, April 15th, 1813, authorising a
duty to be levied on vessels, and a rate on the househol-
ders, for the purpose of completing this desirable object.
The pier is nearly straight, and extends one hundred and
fifty-four yards from east to west, The Master and Bre-
thren of the Trinity House at Newcastle have the appoint-
ment and regulation of the pilots for this port ; and here
is a life-boat under the management of a local committee.
The fishery is now the chief source of employment to
the inhabitants, about two-thirds of them being engaged
in it : the kinds of fish caught are cod, haddock, ling,
skate, whiting, soles, plaice, herrings, and mackerel, and
* likewise turbot, the fishery for which is very produc-
tive, and a considerable quantity is annually sent to Lon-
don. The market, formerly held on Thursday, is now
on Saturday ; and the fairs, which were once held on
May 14th, August 21st, October 9th, and November
27th, and to which a court of pie-powder was attach-
ed, have nearly fallen into disuse. The first charter
granted to the borough was by John, in 1230; and
Elizabeth, in 1598, gave the inhabitants a new char-
ter, by which the government is vested in a mayor,
recorder, and twelve capital burgesses, assisted by a
town clerk, two serjeants at mace, and other officers.
The mayor is annually chosen from among the alder-
men, on the Monday after Michaelmas-day, and is a
justice of the peace for the borough. The freedom
is obtained by gift of the corporation, patrimony, or
servitude ; it descends to the eldest son only, ‘or to the
eldest surviving =on, in case the former die before he
has been admitted. Among the privileges of the free-
men is the right of pasturage for a cow and a horse on
the town moor, the soil of which belongs to the mayor
and chief burgesses. Courts leet and baron, the latter
of which takes cognizance of debts under 40s., are held

twice a_year, before the recorder or his deputy. The
guildhall, in which the public affairs of the borough are

transacted, was built about the year 1750.

’I‘heh‘vmgu a perpetual curacy, in the archd

- and diocese of Durham, endowed with £600 private be-
nefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £ 1600 parl
grant, and in the of the Vicar of Hart. The
Mgh. dedicated to St. . (is-a spacious structure
in the early style of English architecture !
portions in the later Norman character, and havi

&
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was rebuilt in 1m,ndhmmmm¢~
ntructure. ~Among the m ‘monuments are some
to the royal Bruce, and a- large
to the memory ofme mdwidulmuu.
There is a place of for Wesleyan Methodists.
The free school was founded in 1742, by John Crooks,
of this town, gent., by whom it was endowed with land
producing then £ 15 per annum, for a master to instruct
twenty-four boys, in reading, writing, and arithmetic,
and £5 a year for purchasing shoes and shirts for them :
the endowment now yields £28 per annum, and the
number of boys has consequently been increased to
thirty, but the distribution of clothes is discontinued. A
Sunday school, established about the year 1810, is sup-
ported by subscription. The poor receive the interest
on various sums of money bequeathed for their benefit,
besides the rent of nineteen acres of land, purchased with
a bequest of £500 by Henry Smith, alderman of Lon-
don, in 1620, and now let for about £ 110 per annum,
A convent of Franciscan friars was founded here prior
to the year 1275, the exact site of which is not known,
but it is supposed to have been near a house now called
the Priory, where the foundations of some ancient build-
ing have been discovered. The Rey. William Romaine,
a learned divine, and a celebrated Hebrew scholar, was
born at Hartlepool in 1714 : he was for many years
rector of St. Anne's, Blackfriars, London, where he was
buried.

HARTLEY, a parish in the hundred of Axtox, DAR-
TrorD, and WiLminGTon, lathe of Surron at Hone,
county of Kent, 63 miles (8. E. by 8.) from Dartford,
containing 161 inhabitants. - The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Rochester, rated in the
king's books at £7. Richard Forrest, Esq. was patron
in 1827. The church is dedicated to All Saints, i

HARTLEY, a sea-port and township in the parish
of Earspon, eastern division of CastLe ward, coun
of NorTHUMBERLAND, 5 miles (N.) from North Shields,
containing 1795 inhabitants, who are chiefly employed
in the collieries, fisheries, and salterns, and in the
and copperas works established here. There are p!
of worship for Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists. A
chapel, dedicated to St. Mary, and a hermitage, formerly
stood on Bates’ island, opposite to the village of Hartley.
The small harbour was made at the expense of Lord
Delaval, to shelter fishing-boats in stormy weather. A
woodeock was shot ‘near this place in 1765, in the
stomach of which was found a very valuable diamond,
See SEATON-SLUICE. -

HARTLEY, a township in the parish of Kirkny-
SteruEN, East ward, county of Wuruonma, lim
(E.) from Kirkby-Stephen, con: 136 i
Veins of lead and cof)per luve been
1897 but mnch larga o{mmm

fell Vestiges of Ihthy m

may still be tll\oad o a ¢
which is a
feet

HARTLEY-B N, a
Havrwaistie, western
county’ of; Nomnu




m the kin '8 bodks

1. 10%., and in tbé %utmn of Lord Sherborne.
"*m ’gw‘ROW ‘a nmleta?: the parish of HarT-
d’ﬁ of the

INTNEY, hundred of Oprmam, Basingstoke divi-

“of Sovrmampron, § a mile (8. W.

W.) ‘from Hartford-Bridge. The population is re-
od with the parish. There is a place of worship for
Fairs are held on Shrove-’l‘uesday and June

Biptists.
20th, for pedlary.

- "HARTLEY-WESTPALL, a pansh in the hundred
‘ o!’!!omsﬂo-n-, Basingstoke division of the county of
i SOUTHAMPTON, 5'miles (W.) from Hartford-Bridge, con-

tﬁﬁug 272 inhabitants, The living is a discharged rec-
tory, ‘in ‘the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester,
rated in the king's books at £6. 16. 8., and in the
patronage of the Dean and Canons of Windsor. The
c!!hrch is dedicated to St. Mary. A branch of the river
Loddon runs through the parish.

“CHARTLEY-WINTNEY, a parish in the hundred
of “Opraam, Basingstoke division of the county of
M’maumw, 14 mile (8. by W.) from Hartford-Bridge,
containing, exclusively of the tything of Hazely-Heath, a
part of which is in this parish, 935 inhabitants. The living
ig'a‘discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Wihchester, rated in the king's books at £4. 0. 73.,
endowed with £ 300 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of Paulet St. John Mild-
may, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. A
Cistercian nunnery, in honour of the Blessed Virgin
MJSQL Mary Magdalene, and St. John the Baptist, was

founded here in the reign of William the Congueror,
which at the dissolution contained a prioress and seven-
teen muns, whose revenue was £59. 1.

“* HARTLINGTON, a township in the parish of Burx-
SALL, eastern division of the wapentake of STAINCLIFFE
and Ewcross, West riding of the county of Yorx, 10
miles NN ) &om Skipton, containing 141 inhabit-
4 m‘r 7 & iy
‘ ' HARTLIP, a parlhh in the hundred of MirToN, lathe
of Scray, county of Kenrt, 6 miles (E.S.E) from
Chatham, conta.inmg 300 inhabitants. The living is a
vibt?, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury,
rated in the king's books at £9. 10. 10,, and in the pa-

of the%un and Chapter of Rochester. The
hmm $t. Michael. Mrs, Mary Gibbon, in
mwm\m,m et for £52. 13,

: teac!
‘hingm resides in
i --mdind ‘unknown.  Quen-
ldud m the north side of the pa-

Eog ¢ hu
e
' M'Pnnma Tythe, North' riding" of the

e

™

Eﬂl‘lﬂi

York, containing 134 inhabitants. ¢ ool
qn HARTON, o township in ‘the pmn of Tamnow,
eastern dxvmon of Cursrer ward, county
DurnAM, 2 miles (S.E.) from Sonth ‘Shields, contain-
ing 235 inhabitants. Velvet Bed, an island near the
sea-shore, covered with soft grass, “is much resorted to
by pleasure parties from the neighbouring bathing-
places ; near it is a remarkable cavern, termed Fﬁnét
Kettle.

HARTON, a township in that part of the parish of
BossaLy which is in the wapentake of BuLmer, North
riding of the county of Yorxk, 10 miles (N. E.) from
York, containing 190 inhabitants,

HARTPURY, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of DupsTone and Kine's Bartox, county of
GLOUCESTER, 4} miles (E. by 8.) from Newem contain-
ing 811 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the
king's books at £16. 6. 5%., and in the patronage of the
Bishopof Gloucester. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HARTS-GROUNDS, otherwise GIBBET-HILLS,
an extra-parochial district, though locally in the parish

. .of Gosberton, wapentake of Kirron, parts of HoLraxD,

county of LincowN, containing 67 inhabitants,

HARTSHEAD, a township in the parish of AsuToN
under LinNg, hundred of Savrrorp, county palatine of
LancasTER, 9 miles (E.N.E.) from Manchester, contain -
ing 9187 inhabitants.

" HARTSHEAD, a joint chapelry with Clifton, in
that part of the parish of Dewssury which is in the
wapentake of MorrLey, West riding of the county of
York, 5% miles (N.E. by N.) from Huddersfield, con-
taining 2007 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual cu-
racy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of York, endowed
with €460 private benefaction, £400 royal hounty, and
£800 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Vicar of Dewsbury.

HARTSHILL, a hamlet in the parish of Maxcer-

‘TER, Atherstone division of the hundred of Hem-

LINGFORD, county of Warwick, 3 miles (N.W. by w.)
from Nuneaton, containing 662 inhabitants. There is
an endowed school in the township, also the remains of
an ancient castle. Michael Drayton, the poet, was born
here in 1563, and died in 1631.

HARTSHORN, a parish in the hundred of Rerron
and GrEsLEY, county of Dersy, 3 miles (N.W. by N.)
from Ashby de la Zouch, containing 870 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Derby,
and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the
king's books at £3.2. 1., and in the patromgeofthe
Earl of Chesterfield. The church, which is dedicated

mept £1 pid to the vicar, I8 o St Peter,\s n the early style of Eng\\s\xuc\meem
sixty children of

There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,
This parish is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lan-
caster, and within the jurisdiction of a court of pleas
held at Tutbury every third Tuesday, for the

Tecovery
of debts under 40s. A school was endowed with lands
and tenements by the Rev. William Delhyk,*-h um,
the annual ineaneinﬁ&. Nur&d’ :

unmedubbuvum
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miles (5. by W.) from Wooler, containing 80 M ’

ants. SRy

HARTSUP a joint chapelry with m the
parish of BAB‘I‘ON, West ward, county of Wl
LAND, 6} miles (N.N.E. ) from Ambleside, 282
inhabitants. A school is supported by chnnu.ble dona-
tions amounting to about £6 per annum,

HARTWELL, a parish in the hundred of Ayres-
BURY, county of BuckiNGuAM, 2 miles (W.8. W.) from
Aylesbury, containing 138 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, with the curacy of Little Hampden, in
the archdeaconry of Bu ham, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king’s books at £14. 5. 5. Sir G. Lee,
Bart. was patron in 1803. The church, dedicated to St.
Mary, was erected by the late Sir William Lee, Bart., in
imitation of the early style of English architecture, with
two octagonal towers, and a roof highly decorated with
tracery. This was the residence of Louis XVIIL and
his court during the stay of that monarch in England,
prior to his restoration to the French throne.

HARTWELL, a parish in the hundred of CLELEY,
county of NorruAmpTOoN, 7% miles (8. by E.) from
Northampton, containing, exclusively of a portion of
the hamlet of Old Stratford which is in this parish, 432

" inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Northampton, and diocese of Peterbo-
‘rough, endowed with £200 private benefaction, £600
royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary grant. Colonel
P. Skeene was patron in 1791. The church is dedicated
to St. John the Baptist. '

HARTWITH, a joint chapelry with Winsley, in the
parish of Krrksy-Marzearp, lower division of the
‘wapentake of Craro, West riding of the county of
YoRrK, 4 miles (W. by N.) from Ripley, containing 675
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the

iar jurisdiction of the Prebendal court of Mashan
the Cathedral Church of York, or in that of the

Dean and Chapter of York, being claimedd by both, and
the matter not yet determmed endowed with £1100
private benefaction, and £ 800 royal bounty, A small
school-room has been erected, and is endowed with an
estate by Robert Haxby; the present annual income
is £29.

' HARTY (ISLE of), a parish in the hundred of Fa-
vERSHAM, lathe of Scray, county of KenT, 9 miles (8. E.
by E.) from Queenborough, containing 45 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Cante , rated in the king's books at £20. 6. 0.,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £600 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of S.E. Sawbridge, Esq.
The church, dedicated to St.Thomas the Apostle, is a
small ediﬂce comprising a body, chancel, and two' side
chantries, with a pointed western turret. The isle
consists of rich pasture land, on which numerous flocks
of sheep are fed. There is no village, only a few small
cottages, in which the overseers of different estates
reside. The East Swale is navigable on the south side

~of the parish, which is b ‘on the west by Cable
creek, and on the east by Muswell creck. - :

~ HARVINGTON, a parish in the middle dhﬁonof

er division of the hund!ed of B

ﬁe hundred of Oswu.mnow, Mﬁgh loﬂlﬂy“& the
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HARWELL, in mm of llomnn,
county of Brrks, 6§ miles (E. by N.) from Wantage,
containing 701 inhabitants. The living is a vi in
the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of Salisbu
rated in the king's books at £12. 4. 2. Sir J. Chet-
wode, Bart. was patron in 1823. The church is de-
dicated to St. Matthew. ~In 1644, Robert Loder be-
queathed a messuage and land for a schoolmaster to |
teach the children of twelve poor men; the total in-
come is £54 ; the master is appointed by trustees. In
1772, the Rev. Matthew Eaton devised the interest of
his estates to trustees, for apprenticing chlldren of
Harwell, Milton, and Hagbourn, and fg:m‘
poor widows, or other industrious poor, at the dxacratiun
of the trustees: from this fund a sum is paid to the
master on Loder’s charity, for teaching twenty-five bayl
reading, writing, and arithmetic; he likewise
a house and orchard belonging to the estate rent
A benefaction from some person unknown, called the
Feoffees’ gift, and consisting of fourteen acres of land and
an orchard, produces about £26 per annum, which is
distributed in money amongst the poor, by the church-
wardens and overseers. An almshouse was founded by _
Frances Geering, or Jenmngs, in 1715, for six 1
widows, who receive six shillings per week, nn(!
annual sum for clothes. In the church is a h.blet on A
which is recorded a singular benefaction by Christopher
Elderfield, an eminent divine, and a native of this
parish, of £350, vested in land for the purchase of two
milch cows, to be given every spring to two of the 3
poorest men in the parish ; the proceeds having exceeded 2
the price given for the cows, the surplus is
in white waistcoats, which are distributed among twnw
five poor men at Christmas.
HARWICH, a sea-port,
borough, and market town,
having separate jurisdiction,
locally in- the hundred of (f
Tendring, county of Essex, |
42 miles (N. E. by E.) from W
Chelmsford, and 72 (N.E.Q
by E.) from London, con-
taining 4010 inhabitants. The
name of this place, which is
expressive of circumstances
connected with its early
history, is, by Camden, de-
rived from the Saxon Harewic, signi
or harbour for soldiers; and from the
it is supposed that, during the time
the counts of the Saxon shore
castle here, in which a force




and sixteen Danish ships, which terminated in the
| entire defeat and capture of the latter. In 1326, Prince
i Edward and his mother, Queen Isabel, landed here from
3 Hainault, with a force of two thousand seven hundred
t and fifty soldiers, and being joined by several of the
i nobility, and headed by Thomas de Brotherton, Duke of
‘ Norfolk, then lord of the manor and resident in the
, town, proceeded to Bristol, to make war against the
i . In 1388, the same prince, then Edward III,
r embarked at this port with a fleet of five hundred sail,

manned with archers and slingers, on his first expedition
against France; and in the year following, the French,
i in retaliation, made an unsuccessful attempt with eleven
.' galleys to set fire to the town. In 1340, the French
‘ navy, consisting of four hundred ships, having been
stationed near Sluys, in Flanders, to intercept the king's

to France, Edward assembled here his naval
forces, and sailing on Midsummer-eve, and forming
with the northern squadron under the command of
Lord Morley, encountered the enemy, destroyed one-
half of their ships, and killed or captured nearly thirty
thousand of their men. In some of the naval engage-
ments between the English and the Dutch, in the reign
of Charles II,, the contending parties approached so
near to the town as to render their operations visible
- spectators on the cliffs,. Henry VIIL. visited Har-
wich in 1548, and in 1558 preparations were made
there for the reception of Philip, King of Spain, on his
arrival to celebrate his nuptials with Mary, Queen of
Queen Elizabeth was sumptuously enter-
in 1561 by the corporation, who escorted
her as far as the windmill on her return. When Har-

£
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g wich was fortified the Dutch in 1666, Charles II.
~ having proceeded Newmarket to Landguard fort,
sailed hither in his yacht, accompanied by the Dukes of

B York, Monmouth, Richmond, and Buckingham, and, with
k others of his suite, attended divine service at the parish
o church; in the evening the royal party embarked for

b they proceeded by land to Ipswich,
o William III., George 1., and George IL., visited Harwich
[ on their ve tours to the continent; and the Prin-
! cess of burgh Strelitz landed at this port on her

arrival in England to celebrate her nuptials with King
* George 1I1. In 1808, the Countess de Lille, consort of

the Duke and Duchess of éme, the

' - de Demas, and others of the
ili France, ing an asylum in this country,

eign of Napoleon Buomaparte, arrived here in the

......
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in breadth. The town is in general well built, and
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sists ipally of three streets: an act of

was i in 1819, for watching, paving,
lighting it, and for supplying the mhlhlunmtf’ i
water, under the provisions of which it has been wi
paved, but is not yet lighted; and, after boring to the
depth of four hundred and ninety-five feet, all

to procure a supply of fresh water have failed; the

inhabitants are consequently supplied with rain water

preserved in cisterns, and with spring water brought in

carts from Dover-court, and in boats from Lan

fort, and from Arwarton, in the county of Suffolk. The

foundations of a castle and fortifications by which the

town was defended were seen previopsly to the encroach-

ment of the sea, at an extraordinary ebb of the tide in

1784 ; but of its ancient walls and gates, with the ex-

ception of a very small portion serving to indicate their

former strength, the memorial is preserved only in the re-

cord of tolls levied in the reign of Edward IIL for their

repair. Harwich is much resorted to during the season

for sea-bathing, and hot and cold baths, arranged with

every accommodation, are supplied from a large reser-

voir of sea water ; there are also bathing-machines on
the jetty. The harbour is protected on the east by the
isthmus on which the town is built, verging towards the
north, and on the west by a similar projection of the
coast towards the south : the entrance is defended by
Landguard fort, erected on the eastern promontory of
the opposite coast, by a large martello tower, and by a
number of shoals near the fort, which so much contract
the passage as to admit only one large vessel at a time,
rendering the harbour difficult of access, except to
expert navigators. Though of unequal depth, the har-
bour and the bay together form a capacious roadstead
for the largest ships of war, one hundred of which were
assembled here during the war with Holland, in the
reign of Charles IL, exclusively of their attendant
vessels, and three or four hundred sail of vessels carry-
ing coal. To facilitate the entrance into the harbour
by night, two light-houses were erected, under letters
patent of Charles II., and furnished with patent lamps,
previously to building which that object was effected by
burning at night a blazing fire of coal, and six one-pound
candles, in a room with a glazed front, over the principal
gate at the south entrance into the town : on the eastern
part of the town, where the light-houses are situated, is
a convenient stone quay, and near it is a delightful pro-
menade, called the Esplanade. By means of these lights,
vessels are guided off a sand bank called the “Andrews,”
forming a bar across the entrance to the harbour
from Landguard fort into the ;{:)gmg grounds, &:;n
which the passage leading into anchorage is 3
The custom-house establishment consists of a collector,
comptroller, and other officers. The trade of the port
principally arises from its being the station of the post-
office packets, by which a constant intercourse is kept
up between this country and the continent ; four extra
packets sail hence every week for Gottingen, and this
is the principal place of embarkation for Holland and
Germany, from which ci t \
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by means of ‘wherries, with

One hundred and three British mdmf vessels
entered inwards, and fifty-eight British and five fo-
reign vessels cleared outwards, in the year 18%: the
number of ships belonging to the port in 1828 was
ninety-one, averaging a burden of sixty-four tons. Ship-
building is also carried on to a considerable extent ;
the dock-yard is well provided with launches, store-
houses, and other requisites: several third-rate and
other large vessels have been built here, and a patent
slip has been recently constructed, on which ships of
very large burden may be hauled up for repair with great
facility. About one hundred small vessels and boats
are employed in and near the harbour in dredging for
stone for making cement. The manufacture of copperas
from stones, which are found in abundance on the
shore, was carried on here in the seventeenth century,
about which time an attempt was made to obtain potash
from various sea-weeds, but it was soon abandoned. The
market days are Tuesday and Friday : the fairs, prin-
cipally for toys, are on May 1st and October 18th, each
for three days.

The borough was first incorporated by charter of Ed-
ward IT., which was renewed, with additional privileges,
by James L, through the interest of Sir Edward Coke,
and subsequently confirmed by Charles IL., by which
the government is vested in a mayor, recorder, high
steward, eight aldermen, and twenty-four capital bur-
gesses, assisted by a chamberlain, town clerk, and other
officers. The mayor is elected annually on the 30th
of October, from among the aldermen; the recorder,
high steward, chamberlain, town clerk, water bailiff, and
other officers, are elected by the corporation at a court
of common council: the mayor, the late mayor, recorder,
and steward, are justices of the peace for the borough:
The freedom is inherited by the eldest son of a free-
man, and obtained by purchase or gift, and, among
other privileges, confers an exemption from serving on
juries for the county. The mayor and eleven of the
corporation possess conjointly the powers of the court
of admiralty, witk all its privileges and profits, without
accounting to the Exchequer; and at the admiralty
sessions, the mayor was usua.lly preceded by a person
bearing a silver oar, which was kept for that purpose
in the town chest: the extent of their maritime juris-
diction has not been strictly defined, but the corporation
have amerced persons for unlawfully fishing at Shotley,
about a mile north of the town. The corporation hold

quarterly courts of session on the day preceding the
sessions for the county, for the trial of all not accused of
capital offences ; and a court of record, under the char-
ter of Charles II. every Tuesday, for the recovery of
debts not exceeding £100, which from the expensive-
ness of the proceedings, has almost fallen into disuse, A
new guildhall has been recently erected, the of
which umeduapmonforthebom@,nhw
confinement of prisoners previously to their qnmmm.l
to the county gaol, and the upper part »
ﬂlﬂ £ 4 M R ‘ m'
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Duke of Mq Colonel  Sir MM
Governor of Landguard fort in the reign of Charles IL;
Sir Harbottle Grimstone, Masuuofrik Rolls in the -
same reign ; the Duke of MM&
broke ; nnd Edward Earl of Olfwd;. who ‘were re-
corders of the borough. = The first sent mem-
bers to parliament in the 17th of Edward IIL, but dis-
continued till the 12th of James L., since which time it
has made regular returns: the right of electionis vested
in the mayor, aldermen, and capital burgesses, thirty-
two in number : the mayor is the returning officer.
The borough comprises the parishes of Dover-court
and St. Nicholas, in the archdeaconry of Colchester,
and diocese of London. The living of Dover-court
is a vicarage, with the perpetual curacy of St. Ni-
cholas, rated in the king's books at £5.0. 10., en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 parlia-
mentary grant, and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church, dedicated to All Saints, is an old building :
it contains several ancient monuments, and was cele
brated for a rood, or crucifix, held in high veneration,
for the destruction of which three men from Dedham,
who had stolen it from the church and burnt it, were:
hanged for sacrilege in 1532. The church of St. Ni-
cholas was rebuilt in 1820, at an expense of £18,000:
it is a handsome edifice in the later style of English
architecture, with a lofty square embattled tower; and
contains one thousand free sittings ; in the chancel are
three finely-painted windows, presented by John Hop-
kins, Esq., and containing severally the arms of that
gentleman, those of the town, and of Dr. Howley, then
Bishop of London : among the monuments is a well-:
sculptured bust of Sir William Clarke, Secretary at War
to Charles I. and Charles II. There are places of wor-
ship for Baptists, Independents, and Wesleyan Metho-:
dists. A school-room, with an adjoining house for the
master, was built in 1724, by Sir Humphrey Parsons,
and given to the corporation, in which thirty-two boys.
of their nomination are instructed : there is also a Na«
tional school supported by subscription, in which nearly
two hundred children of both sexes are taught. Two.
almshouses for aged widows were built by the corpora-
tion in 1785. A fine spring of clear water formerly
issued from the cliff between the beacon and the town ;.
it was much esteemed for its medicinal pxopeﬁm, Cln(L
possessed a petrifying quality, turning the blue clay
which falls from theu:‘iﬂ' into stone, suﬂiclenﬁy ‘bard for
paving the streets and for building: it is noticed in.
the Philosophical Transactions for the year 1669. Quan-.
tities of amber, and, according to some, , are
occasionally found on the shore; *and in the vicinity of
Landguard fort transparent pebbles are found, M g
were formerly set in rings by the MW& o \WM iy
HARWOOD, a chapelry in-  Miopies
TON m‘:;l.wm;.l.,noiﬂa wmdivjsm m;f D \RLI)
TON W county palatine RHAM, miles (8.
by 8.) from Aldstone-Moor. The population is xetur
with the township of Forest with Frith, |
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“ - HARWOOD, a township in that part of the pn-hh
ot ‘Harrsur~ which is in the north-eastern division of

TiNpaLe ward, of NORTHUMBERLAND, 134 miles
(W. by N.) from Morpeth, containing 39 inhabitants.

“HARWOOD (GREAT), a chapelry in the parish and
lower division of the hundred of BrAckBURN, county
palatine of LancasTER, 4§ miles (N.E.) from Blackburn,
contammg 2104 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, ‘in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £400 private benefaction, and £400 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Vicar of Blackburn.
The church is dedicated to St. Bartholomew.

- HARWOOD (LITTLE), a township in the parish
and' lower division of the hundred of BrACkBURN,
county palatine of LANcAsTER, 2 miles (N.E. by N.)
from Blackburn, containing 210 inhabitants.

HARWOOD-DALE, a joint chapelry with Silpho,
in the parish of Hack~ess, liberty of WaITBY-STRAND,
North riding of the county of York, 9 miles (N.w.)
from Scarborough, containing, exclusively of Silpho, 285
inhabitants.

"HARWORTH, a parish in the Hatfield division of
the wapentake of BasseTrAw, county of NoTTINGHAM,
2% miles (W.8.W.) from Bawtry, containing, exclusively
of ‘a portion of the township of Styrrup, which is in this
parish, 395 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated
in the king's books at £5. 9. 7. — Hartley, Esq. was
patren in 1780. * The church is dedicated to All Saints.
Robert Brailsford, by will dated October 21st, 1700, de-
vised certain lands for the support of a school, and for
distributing clothing among the poor of Harworth,
Serlby, nd Styrrup : the estate, which is under the su-
perintendence of trustees, condists of a farm-house and
about fifty-eight acres of land, now let for a term of
years ‘at a rental of £59 per aonum, in addition to
which thescharity possesses stock in the three and a half
per £9 per annum : of this aggregate
amount, the schoolmaster receives £40 per annum (in-
cluding an annuity of £10 assigned by Mary Saunder-
son, who died in 1724), and a schoolmistress about £26,
the remainder being principally expended in clothing
for the poor : the school premises comprise a residence
for the master, and separate rooms for the instruction
of the children*; the school is conducted on the Madras
system, and is open to all children of the three above-
mentioned places. Mary Saunderson also gave £10
per annum towards .apprenticing the children. In a

of the parish adjoining the town of Bawtry is an
-mpdnugachapel and two almshouses, an-
_ by Robert Morton, of Bawtry, Elq g
persons, with an endowment in
f £5. 6. 8, paid by the receiver-
\ faﬁ York together with other maller
‘master pdnta the almspeople, who

“ants, The chapel, whicl_l m
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books at £6. 3. 9., and in the gﬁon*mf “M‘:W

Mackenzie, D.D. The ch dedicated to St.

contains portions in the early and decorated ltylﬂbi
ish architecture,

HASELBEECH, a parish in the hundred of RoTa-
WELL, county of Nonraulmu, 11} miles (N. by W.)
from Northampton, contuining 170 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books
at £13. 14. 9§ Lady Apreece was patroness in 1822.
The church is dedicated to St. Michael.

HASELBURY-BRYAN, a parish forming, with
the parish of Flfehead-Nenlle a detached portion of
the hundred of Pimperne and of the division of Bland-
ford (North), being locally in Cerne sub-division of the
county of DorseT, 10 miles (W.N.W.) from Blandford-
Forum, containing 574 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of
Bristol, rated in the king's books at £19. 13. 9., and in
the patromage of the Duke of Northumberland. The
church is dedicated to St. James. Twenty-four acres of
land were left by some person unknown, the rental of
which is divided amongst the most deserving poor.

HASELEY, a parish in the Snitterfield division of
the hundred of BarLicEWAY, county of Warwick, 34
miles (N.W. by W.) from Warwick, containing 210
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeacon-
ry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's books
at £4. 9. 4L. Sir E. Antrobus, Bart. was patron in
1827. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. The sum
of £4 per annum, the proceeds of the town close, is
paid for the instruction of poor children.

HASELEY (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of
EweLME, county of Oxrorp, 34 miles (W.) from Tets-
worth, containing, with the township of Littie Haseley,
and the hamlets of Latchford, Lobb, and Rycote, 628
inhabitants. The living is a gwectory, annexed to the
deanery of Windsor, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Oxford, rated in the king's books at £30. The
church is dedicated to St. Peter,

HASELEY (LITTLE), a township in the parish of
Grear HaseLey, hundredof EweLme, county of Oxmln,

3% miles (W. by 8.) from Tetsworth, containing 153 in-

habitants.

HASELOR, a township in that part of the parish
of St.MicuAEL, LicurieLp, which is in the northern
division of the hundred of O¥rrow, county of Star-
FORD, 44 miles (N.) from Tamworth, containing 49 in-
habitants. It is within the peculiar ecclesiastical juris-
diction of the Dean of Lichfield. Here was anciently
a chapel, which has fallen into ruins.

HASELOR, a parish in the Stratford division of the
hundred of BARLICHWAY, county of WARWICK, 24 miles
(E.) from Alcester, containing 387 inhabitants. X
living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Worcester, rated in the king's books at £6. 13. 4.,
endowed with £ 100 royal bounty and in the patronage
of the Crown. The church is dedicated to ‘S!.m
and All Saints,

HASELWOOD, or HASLEWOOD, a chapel
the hundred of Pmunou-:, county of 'S\?sfim‘i.“x, 13
mile (N.N. W.) from Ald 1, containing 99 inhabit-
: Mary, is
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HASFIELD, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of WesTMINSTER, county of GrovcesTER, 6
miles (N.) from Gloucester, containing 237 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the jurisdiction of the pecu-
liar court of Deerhurst, within which, however, no ec-
clesiastical authority is exercised, rated in the king's
books at £18. 6. 8. — Miller, Esq. was patron in 1800.
The church is dedicated to St, In 1724 Mrs.
Mmz::t Parker gave £40vfor the education of poor
chil ; the present income arising from this bene-
faction is £8 per annun, which is paid to a school-
master for teaching poor children to read. The navig-
able river Severn runs on the south-east of this parish.

HASKETON, a parish in the hundred of CArLrorD,
county of Svrrork, 1§ mile (N.W.) from Woodbridge,
containing 530 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king’s books at £13. 6. 8., en-
dowed with £200 royal bounty. Mrs. Freeland was pa-
troness in 1819. The church is dedicated to St. Andrew.

HASLAND, a township in the parish of CarsTEr-
¥ieLp, hundred of ScarspaLE, county of DErBy, 14 mile
(8. 8. £.) from Chesterficld, containing 770 inhabitants,

HASLE, a township in that purt of the parish of
Wraesy which is in the upper division of the wapen-
take of OscorLpcross, West riding of the county of
Yorx, 4 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Pontefract, containing
139 inhabitants.

. HASLEBURY, a parish in the hundred of Cmip-
ipENEAM, county of Warrs, 61 miles (8.W.) from
'Ghippenbam. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
lconry of Wilts, and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the
‘king's books at £1. 15. 5., and in the patronage of the
{Crown. The church, which was dedicated to All Saints,
thas fallen to decay, and the inhabitants, consisting only
of a few families, attend the church at Box.
HASLEBURY -PLUCKNETT, a parish in the
hundmd of HounpssorovuGH, BErwick, and CokEer,
county of SomersET, 2% miles (N. E. by E.) from Crew-
kerne, containing 768 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
vicarage, rated in the king's books at £7, en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage
of the Prebendary of Haslebury in the Cathedral Church
of Wells. The church is dedicated to St. Michael. St.
Walfric, a hermit, had a cell here, and dying in 1154,
was interred in the parish church, and his tomb became
the resort of pilgrims: a few years prior to his death,
a monastery for canons was founded here, but
it was destroyed during the war between John and the

HASLEMERE, a h, ‘market town, and
parish, in the second division of the hundred of Gob-
ALMING, county of Surrey, 123 miles (8. W. by 8.)
from Guildford, and 43 (S, W.) from London, containi
887 inhabitants. This place is situated in the south-

west angle of the county, where it borders on Sussex
d Haml‘nyire, whence the
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of Henry
and in 1398, )
market and a fair, but these had fallen into disuse pre-
viously to the grant of the charter by Queen Elizabeth.
The town stands on very high ground, and “is remark-
ably clean ; it is well supplied with water, but neither
lighted nor paved. There is a silk crape manufactory,
which formerly afforded employment to more than one
hundred persons, but it is at present on the decline ; and
near the town is a paper-mill, for making fine paper only.
The market is on Tuesday ; and there are fairs for cattle,
May 13th and September 26th. A charter for the re-
establishment of the market and fair, which had fallen
into disuse, was granted in the 38th of Elizabeth, in which
it is also stated that “the burgesses had from time im-
memorial, at their own costs, sent two members to par-
liament.” This is a borough by prescription, the officers
belonging to which, consisting of a bailiff, constable,
searchers and sealers of leather, and ale-tasters, are choseh
annually at the court leet, in April or May. The privilege
of electing representatives hasonly beenregularly exercised
since the 27th of Elizabeth: the right of election is vested
in the resident freeholders, or burgage tenants: the bailiff
is the returning officer; and the patronage of the borough
belongs to the Earlof Lonsdale. The living is a )
curacy, annexed to the reetory of Chiddingfold, in the
archdeaconry of Surrey, and diocese of Winchester, The
church, dedicated to St. Bartholomew, is an ancient edi-
fice, situated on an eminence to the north of the town,
and consisting of a nave, north aisle, and western tower.
Here is a place of worship for Independents. A National
school for poor boys of Haslemere and the adjoining

parishes is kept in the market-hall. On a common

near the town is an unendowed almshouse for eight
poor persons, erected in 1676, through the exertions of
James Gresham, Esq. A hill, called Blackdown, at a
short distance from the town, affords a view of the sea
and the surrounding country to a great extent ; and in
the vicinity is a telegraph.

HASLINGDEN, a market town and chapelry in that
part of the parish of WaaLLey which is in the lower divi-
sion of the hundred of BLackBURN, county palatine of
LANCASTER, 40 miles (8.E.) from Lancaster, 17 (N.) from
Manchester, and 208 (N.N.W.) from London, contain-
ing 6595 inhabitants. This place, which is situated in
the midst of a mountainous district on the border of
the Forest of Rossendale, probably took its name from
the abundance of hazel trees which formerly grew in
its vicinity. The town originally stood on the declivity
of a hill, but the modern buildings have been erected at
ite base ; and many old houses of mean appearance have
been replaced by new and tantial edifices, which
contribute much to the uniformity of the whole. The
e since the

improvements which have taken place
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o of the manufacturers in the conry and diocese of Norwich, rated in the

f cotton . The market day has been cha king's books at £4, endowed with £200 royal bounty.
rom Wednesday to Saturday, to prevent fﬁ.h The church is dedicated to St. Mary,

“the market of Blackburn ; ﬁ fairs mﬁ,
' Peébruary 2nd, on Easter Tuesday, May 8th, July 4th,
and October 2d; the Easter fair is for the sale of horses,

- and the others chiefly for cattle. An act of parliament
was passed. in the 34th of George IIIL, for making a
navigable canal from Bury, by Haslingden, to Church
,to join the Bury, Bolton, and Manchester canal
on the south, and the Leeds and Liverpool canal on
the mnorth, but the projected undertaking has not been
executed. Here are a public news-room and two sub-
seription libraries. Races were formerly held on Lound-
Hey, near the town, but the ground has been recently
enclosed for cultivation. The living is a perpetual cu-
racy, with that of Goodshaw, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Chester, endowed with £600 private benefac-
tion, £400 royal bounty, and £ 1600 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of the Vicar of Whalley. The church,
dedicated to St.James, and standing on an eminence at
thenorth end of the town, is a substantial edifice, rebuilt
of stone about fifty years ago, except the tower, which be-
longed to the preceding church, erected in the reign of
Henry VIIL. : it has lately received an addition of five
hundred and eighteen sittings, of which four hundred

|

-

B and sixty-two are free, the Incorporated Society for the
B enlargement of churches and chapels having granted
i £450 towards defraying the expense. There are places

of worship for Baptists, Independents, Wesleyan Me-
thodists, Sandemanians, and Swedenborgians. A free
grammar school was founded in 1749, for the education
of ten poor boys, and subsequently endowed with pro-

roducing about £ 18 per annum,
P?",‘zzg;.adl‘l‘fGFlELl), a pal!)iesh in the hundred of We-
7 ﬁiu.n‘!, county of CAMBRIDGE, 5§ miles (S.W. by 8.)
L from Cambridge, containing 544 inhabitants. The living
E is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely,
rated in the king's books at £8. 10. 7. C. Mitchell,
Esq. was patron in 1800. The church, which is dedi-
cated to All Saints, was erected in 1352 ; it is in the
early style of English architecture. A charity school
* was founded by Simon Ertman, a Dane, who died here
in 1658 ; the t income is £28 per annum. Ina
chapel dedicated to the Virgin, and formerly much re-
sorted to, a pair of huge iron fetters was hung up, as a
votive offering, by one Lord Scales, in commemoration
of his release from imprisonment.
' HASLINGTON, a chapelry in that part of the
parish of Barrmomrey which is in the hundred of
NantTwics, county palatine of Curstir, 3% miles
(8.8.W.) from Sandbach, containing 985 inhabitants,
e living is a p al curacy, in the archdeaconry
ocese of , endowed with £200 private be-
‘  royal bounty, and £1100 parliamenitary
Broughton, Bart. was patron in 1814.
‘worship for Independents. j
wnship in that part of the parish
is in the hundred of Nanrwics,
Cuester, 3 miles (8. by E) fram
218 inhabitants. - :

i oy i

HASSOP, a hamlet in the parish of Baxewery,
hundred of Hicm Prax, county of Dersy, 8 miles
(N. by E.) from Bakewell, containing 128 inhabitants.
EHauop lg:lsl was garrisoned for the king by Colonel

yT, in 1643.

HASTINGLEIGH, a parish in the franchise and
barony of Bircmour, lathe of Surpway, county of
Kext, 6§ miles (E. by N.) from Ashford, containing
194 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's
books at £10. 5., and in the patronage of the Archbishop
of Canterbury. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HASTINGS, the princi- .
pal of the cinque-ports, and
a borough and market town,
having separate jurisdiction,
locally in the rape of Hast-
ings, county of Sussex, 69
miles (E.) from Chichester,
and 64% (S.E.) from Lon- &\{
don, containing, exclusively
of that part of the parish of $EZ
St.Mary in the Castle which ‘ ,
is in the hundred of Bald- " Arms.
slow, 6085 inhabitants. This place, which is of great
antiquity, attained considerable importance during the
Saxon Heptarchy, and is generally supposed to have
derived its name from Hastings, a noted Danish pirate,
contemporary with Alfred the Great, who erected a for-
tress here to secure the retreat of his party after having
pillaged the neighbouring country. In 924, Athelstan
established a mint at this place, of which some notice
occurs in Domesday-book ; and William the Conqueror,
on his landing at Pevensey, repaired the castle and took
up his station in this town, whence he marched to meet
Harold, whom he defeated in that decisive battle to
which Hastings has given name, but which was fought
at the distance of eight miles from the town, on a
on which he subsequently built the abbey of Battel.
Of the castle, which was erected on a high hill to the
west of the present town, there are still extensive re-
mains, consisting of a considerable portion of the outer
wall, in which are parts of two towers and gateways of
Norman architecture, and the foundation of the keep,
surrounded by a broad and deep fosse, with vestiges of
a draw-bridge and other fortifications. Within, the walls
have been cleared from the rubbish, which for more than
two centuries had nearly concealed them, and thus have
been discovered the remains of the church and conven-
tual buildings of a free college, for a dean and seven
prebendaries, probably founded by Henry de Eu, in the
reign of Henry I, and dedicated to the Blessed Virgin :
at the dissolution, the revenue of the was rated
at £20 per annum, and that of the prebends, co :
at £41.13. 5. The collegiate church is 0:3“ m
and ten feet in length, and adjoining it are the remains
of the parish church of St. Mary
ter-house, and the prebendal s, forming an in-

ing mass of ruins, which have been en-
closedhyﬁ.efEarl of Chichester. Nu ‘Saxon coins,
fragments of columns, pottery, and other relics of anti-

*




~ Wma
‘ HAS R

of Richard L, a priory of Black canons was m
here by‘Wa'ltchrieet of which the church and other
buil having been ' destroyed by the encroachments
of the sea, Sir John Pelham, in the reign of Henry IV.,
gave the brethren lands at Warbilton, for the foundation
of a church and monastery, which were finally erected
near the town, and of which, at the dissolution, the re-
venue was £57.19. By charter of William the Con-
queror, this town, together with Hythe, was added to the
thrée previously incorporated ports of Sandwich, Dovor,
and Romnmey, being invested with peculiar privileges ;
and in the time of Edward I. it was rated at twenty-one
ships, with twenty-one mariners in each, for the service
of the king for fourteen days, at its own charge: it
soon became, and has ever since been considered, the
principal ‘of the cinque-ports. In 1377, Hastings was
burnt by the French, who made a descent upon this part
of the coast ; but it was soon afterwards rebuilt.

The town is pleasantly situated in a vale formed into
an amphitheatre, open to the sea on the south, by two
lofty cliffs, of which one extends to the sea, and the
other towards the land, and consists of two principal
streets parallel with each other, which, from their decli-
vity towards the sea, are always clean and dry: it is well
paved and lighted by act of parliament, the expense
being flefrayed by a duty of three shillings per chaldron
on all coal brought into the port: the houses are in ge-
neral well:built, and the inhabitants are supplied with
water from the Bourne, which divides the town into two
. The salubrity and mildness of the air, arising from

tered ‘gituation of the town, by which it is de-
ded from the north and east winds, render it peculiar-
eligible as a pl’nce of"residence for invalids, and these
dvantages concurring with the openness of the coast,
d the smoothness of its beach, have long made it a
x‘ahimhle and well-frequented place for sea-bathing.
At low water, the fine level sands afford a healthy and
fuhwnnble promenade, and from the high grounds
sots are richly diversified with scenery of
“eultivation, and of boldly romantic character.

e more recent improvements are the erection

of Pelhn.m-place and crescent, the Bazaar, Wellington-
square, and numerous handsome lodging-houses near the
sea for the accommodation of visitors: the Pelham baths
are well fitted up with hot, cold, vapour, and shower-
baths, with every convenience for their use, and numer-
ous bat] machines are in constant attendance on the
beach. There are some good libraries : assemblies and
concerts take place during the season at the Swan Inn.
A small theatre has been recently erected; and races, es-
tablished in 1827, which have been highly patronised,
are annually held in September. A fine terrace-walk
has been formed on the east side of the Castle-hxll,
where are the ruins already noticed. ' The town is
defended by a strong fort, and the coast by additional

batteries and martelld towers. The harbour, now

called the Stade, formerly afforded safe mhvmge for
.hips, hn&lbnintodiluelinceﬂwnignof
m,wmmmummbyamm
which time the
#lllnptadmitv
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don market. The market days are Wednesd
Saturday, the latter for corn: the ﬁn
Tuesday, July 26th and 27th, and Ndvmber ﬂard.

Seal of the Corponnon. A

Obverse.

The government, by charter of incorporation g ‘
by Elizabeth in 1588, and confirmed and e by

Charles 1L, is vested in a mayor, recorder, and twelve
Jjurats, who are called barons, assisted by a ftown-
clerk, chamberlain, and other officers, of whom i
pier-warden, and regulates the port, collectingy 10s.
from every vessel not in ballast which enters it. * The
mayor is elected from among the jurats by the freemen, . |
on the third Sunday after Easter, and is liable to, fine or
imprisonment for refusing to serve the office; and the
jurats are appointed by the mayor as vacancies occur.. = .
The mayor and jurats are justices of the peace, with =
whom, in respect to the custom and excise laws, the
county magistrates have concurrent jurisdiction,
freedom of the borough is inherited by the eldest qf
a freeman born within the borough, or obtained by
from the corporation : the inhabitants are exempt
serving on juries at the assizes or sessions for the co?y
The corporation hold quarterly courts of sessiom,

which the mayor presides, for determining on oﬂ’enia
committed within the borough; but though invested thh
power to try capital offenders, these are generally tried at
the assizes for the county, held at Lewes. They also hold
a court of record, for the recovery of debts to any amount,
every alternate week, at which the mayor presides,
Guestlings and brotherhoods are courts held at uncer.  ©
tain intervals by the corporations of the cinque-ports: =
a guestling consists of a full assembly, composed of five
or six deputies from each port, with plenuypowera %
the mayor of every port in turn issuing notices for the
meetings : a brotherhood consists of one or two dqpu 4
ties from each port, convened to deliberate on affairs of
inferior mportanoe The town-hall, under which
market is held, xsnnwediﬂeo,m& 1838 |
expense of the ’ﬂq mon

small building dlvided *
of receiving onl

was conferred sﬁ the M of m !n:..
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A nutm aml w and alterations. An
_episcc Mmdintheoentreof Pelham-cres-
¥ cent, a chaste and elegant edifice, was by the late,
uﬂ“& e dmn&ly completed by the present, Earl of

er. There are places of worship for Baptists,

nites *H\MTMI Independents, and Wesleyan
sts. A school for the instruction of boys in

ading, writing, arithmetic, and navigation, was founded
1619, by the Rev.William Parker, who endowed it with
property producing upwards of £210 per annum’; it is
open to ull ‘the of the town. A school was
founded in 1708, by James Saunders, Esq., who endowed

it with estates producing nearly £240 per annum, for

~ teaching seventy boys reading, writing, and the English
and Latin languages, and for the payment of £ 10 per an-
num to two mistresses, for teaching thirty younger chil-
dren of each of the parishes of All Saints and St. Clement

s wmd the schools are under the direction of the cor-
The fourth part of an estate of one hundred

‘and nmety-two acres of land, belonging to the dissolved
ptﬁury, and producing £270 per annum, was bequeathed,
in 1714, by Mr. Richard Ellsworth, for teaching poor
~ children; but the benefaction has not been carried into
de'ct ‘owing to the property being involved in a suit in
Chancery. Mr. J.'Spencer Milward, who died intestate
_ in 1760, directed that £ 10 per annum should be paid for
 the instruction of poor children; and.in consequence
d - recommendation a larger sum is mow applied
ive to that purpose. The Magdalene

m ‘which the corporation are trustees, was en-
{Qyiome unknown benefactor with an estate pro-

dh more than £150 per annum. About two miles
is ‘a large stone, on which it is said that

Wmmu the eror dined on his landing on this
. Titus Oates, the ministerial informer in the reign

h of Churles 11, was the officiating clergyman of All Saints’

parish, and lived in a house which is still in existence ;
and Edward Capel, Esq., one of Shakspeare’s commen-
" tators, resided in a housé now called East Cliffe House,
in the garden of which is a mulberry tree planted by
Garrick. Hastings gives the title of marquis to the
n%le family of Rawdon-Hastings.

" HASWELL, a township in the parish of EAsiNGTON,
division of EasiNeToN ward, county palatine
vaAM, 6 miles (E by N.) from Durham, contain-
itants

CH, a hanht in the parish of Norraivy,
W’Wmn, county of Bevrorp, 2% miles

N. from B , containing, with Thorn-
S R ».mnpntowam 241

in the parish of Kmeméunpnn
of the hundred of Kinasron,
an,»with Ham, 961 inha-
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W - HATCH (WEST), a parish in thé northern division.

of,tﬁe hundred of Curry, county of SomErsT, 43
miles (8. E. by E.) from Taunton, containing 367 inha~
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the
vicarage ‘of North Curry, in the peculiar jurisdiction
of the Dean and Chapter of Wells, endowed with £200
private benefaction.

HATCH-BEAUCHAMP, a pansh in the hundred
of Aspick and Buufroun, county of SoMERSET, 6%
miles (N, W, byN)fromllmmner con 245 inha-
bitants. - - The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the
king's books at £13. 5. 2§., and in the patronage of the
Rev. W. G. Dymock The church, dedicated to St.
John the Baptist, is a handsome edxﬁce, consisting of a
nave, aisle, chancel, and south porch, with an embattled
tower at the west end : the altar-piece is a fine painting
of the Descent from the Cross. There is a place of wor-
ship for Baptists. License for a market and a fair, both
long since disused, was obtained by John de Beauchamp,
lord of the manor, in 1301.

HATCLIFFE, a parish in the wapentake of Brap-
LEY-HAVERSTOER, parts of LiNpsEy, county of LincoLn,
64 miles' (E. by 8.) from Caistor, containing 99 inhabi-
tants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the peculiar
jurisdiction and patronage of the Collegiate Church of
Southwell, rated in the king's books at.£5.4. 2. The
church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HATFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Worrny,
county of Herevrorp, 7 miles (N. W.) from Bromyard,
containing 153 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford,
endowed with £ 10 per annum private benefaction, and
£600 royal bounty. SirJ. G. Cotterell, Bart. was pa-
tron in 1812. The church is dedicated to St. Leonard.

HATFIELD, a parish in the southern division of
the wapentake of StrarrorTH and Tickminy, West
riding of the county of York, comprising the town-
ships of Hatfield and Stainforth, and containing 2642
inhabitants, of which number, 1948 are i the to
ship of Hatfield, 3 miles (8. W. by 8,) from Thorne,
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Yok, rated in the king's books at £15. 5.,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £ 1000
royal bounty. Lord and Lady Deerhurst were patrons
in 1817. The church, dedicated to St. Lawrence, is
in the later English style. Here is a place of worship
for Independents. Tn the reign of Charles I., Thomas
Wormeley devised to trustees property for securing an
annuity of £10 to a schoolmaster to instruct the chil-
dren of the inhabitants: in 1682, a school-house was
built by John Hatfield, Esq., and in 1716 assigned to
trustees for the use of the schoolmaster, but at the time
of the inquiry of the Commissioners of Charities, in 1828,
the school was discontinued.

HATFIELD (BISHOP'S), 'a market town andyt-
rish in the hundred of BroapwaTer, county of Hert-
¥ORD, 7 miles (W.8.W.) from Hertford, and 19 (N.N.W.)
from London, on the great north road, 3215
inhabitants. The manor, which was an ancient de-

mesne of the crown, was given by Mgutothe
monastery of St. Ethelreda, atElm 'buhom”
foundation having been converted into a by
Henry 1., in 1108, the parish ,'Wdthepndx

to its name. Hm%hs%n%hdam
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